TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2021
5:30 P.M.

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1
October 19, 2021, Regular Meeting
October 19, 2021, Closed Session

3 APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 16, 2021, AGENDA 11

5:35 4 PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED MR. JOE FURMAN 13
AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

5:40 5 PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE MR. LARRY WARREN 167
PrRoPOSED 2022 SCHEDULE OF VALUES MR. RYAN VINCENT
5:45 6 UPDATE ON THE NEW RIVER CONSERVANCY’S SOUTH FORK Ms. CHELSEA BLOUNT 169
PROJECT Ms. ELIZABETH UNDERWOOD
5:50 7 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA MEDICAL CENTER  MR. JiM DEAL 269
ByLAwWS Ms. DEANNA MooL
5:55 8 CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE Ms. JENNIFER GREENE 275
6:00 9 REQUEST TO PURCHASE MOBILE RADIOS MAJOR KELLY REDMON 277
6:05 10 PRrRopPOSED REPLACEMENT OF THE COURTHOUSE HVAC MR. ROBERT MARSH 283
CONTROLS SYSTEM
6:10 11 TAX MATTERS MR. LARRY WARREN
A. Monthly Collections Report 289
B. Refunds and Releases 291
6:15 12 FINANCE MATTERS Ms. Misty WATSON
A. FY 2021 Carry Forward Purchase Orders 297
B. Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract 301
6:20 13 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE
A. Proposed Acceptance of Communications Grant on 305
Behalf of NC State Highway Patrol TSU/NCEM
B. Proposed Appalachian State University Tower Lease 359
Renewal
C. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Sheriff’s Salary 377
D. January Meeting Schedule 379
E. Boards and Commissions 381
F. Announcements 385
6:25 14 PuBLIC COMMENT 386
7:25 15 BREAK 386
7:30 16 CLOSED SESSION 386

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
7:45 17 ADIOURN



AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

October 19, 2021, Regular Meeting
October 19, 2021, Closed Session



MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2021

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
October 19, 2021, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. The following were present:

PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman
Carrington Pertalion, Commissioner
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Vice-Chairman Welch opened with a prayer and Commissioner Turnbow led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the October 5, 2021, regular meeting
and closed session minutes.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the
October 5, 2021, regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-4(Welch, Kennedy, Pertalion, Turnbow)
Nay-0
Absent-1(Wallin)

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the
October 5, 2021, closed session minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-4(Welch, Kennedy, Pertalion, Turnbow)
Nay-0
Absent-1(Wallin)

[Clerk’s Note: Commissioner Wallin arrived at the meeting at 5:35 P.M.]

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the October 19, 2021, agenda.



County Manager Geouque requested to add a discussion of the recent ARP Contract with Blue
Ridge Energy/Skybest under Miscellaneous Administrative Matters, possible action after closed
session, and consideration of the removal of members from the Adult Care Community Advisory
Committee under Boards and Commissions.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the
October 19, 2021, agenda as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE

Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, provided an update on the Coronavirus
(COVID-19). The report was for information only and, therefore, no action was required.

UPDATE FROM VAYA HEALTH

Mr. Dustin Burleson, Regional Community Relations Director, provided an update on VVaya Health
and the consolidation with Cardinal. The proposed composition of the Board would be two
directors appointed by each Regional Community Board; four directors appointed by Consumer
& Family Advisory Committee with the goal that CFAC regions would align and there would be
one director from each CFAC region); one director appointed by the DHHS Secretary; up to eight
at-large directors appointed by the current VVaya Board in consultation with the Cardinal Board,
CCABs, and counties (this would be appointed after the Regional Boards made their appointment);
and the Provider Advisory Council President would serve as non-voting director along with up to
three non-voting advisory directors.

Vaya was notified they received the Tailored Plan Award on July 26, 2021. They were currently
working to submit post-award documents as required by the NC DHHS. In the process of
developing contracts with pharmacy and physical health providers, Vaya planned to go live as a
Tailored Plan on July 1, 2022, or one-year post award. Watauga County currently has 5,566
Medicaid-eligible residents with an estimated 5,049 Medicaid members moving to Standard Plans
in July. An estimated 517 members would stay with Vaya after the July Standard Plan launch.

Mr. Burleson also announced that over 700 Narcan kits were distributed by Community Relations
Regional Directors.

Vaya’s Community Relations continued to coordinate and facilitate Department of Social Services
(DSS) meetings across the catchment area by meeting with every DSS at least quarterly with some
groups preferring to meet monthly.



PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS

A. Proposed Change Order # 4 for Middle Fork Greenway

Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, presented Change Order #4 for the Middle
Fork Greenway Section 4 project in the amount of $3,789. The change order covered the removal
of a pine tree and shrubs, addition of a split rail fence, bollard and 2 boulders. As with the previous
Change Orders, the funds to cover the costs would come from the Blue Ridge Conservancy.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve Change Order
#4 for the Middle Fork Greenway Section 4 project in the amount of $3,789 with the funds to come
from the Blue Ridge Conservancy.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

B. Request to Include Additional Amendments to the Public Hearing for Citizen
Comment on Proposed Amendments to the Watauga County Planning &
Development Ordinance

Mr. Joe Furman presented additional amendments to development regulations to be added for
public comment at the Public Hearing already scheduled for November 16, 2021. Mr. Furman
stated that Session Law 2021-138 was recently ratified and then signed into law September 2,
2021. It contained a provision in Part X111 that "decriminalizes™ local ordinances, and takes effect
December 1, 2021. The law required the amendment of the Planning & Development Ordinance
to remove all references to using criminal enforcement procedures. The law does not affect the
County's ability to use civil penalties. As a practical matter, the County has almost exclusively
used civil penalties when any penalties were necessary. Mr. Furman reviewed the proposed
amendments and requested they be considered during the previously scheduled November 16,
2021, public hearing at which time other amendments to that ordinance were being considered.

Chairman Welch stated that the additional amendments would be included for citizen comment at

the November 16, 2021, public hearing for amendments to the Watauga County Planning and
Development Ordinance.

PROJECT ON AGING ANNUAL REPORT

Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, presented the Fiscal Year 2021 annual
comprehensive evaluation of the agency’s operations and policies as required by the North
Carolina Division of Health Service Regulation.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to accept the annual report
as presented by Ms. Boitnotte.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

Tax Administrator, Mr. Larry Warren, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of
September 2021. The report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was
required.

B. Refunds and Releases
Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for September 2021 for Board approval:
TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the Refunds and
Releases Report for September 2021 as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

C. Request to Schedule Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comments on the 2022
Schedule of Values

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, introduced Mr. Ryan Vincent, with Vincent Valuations,
who presented the 2022 Schedule of Values to be used in establishing prices for properties. A
public hearing was required to allow public comment on the Schedule of VValues and was requested
to be scheduled for November 16, 2021. Consideration for adoption of the 2022 Schedule of
Values was also requested for November 16 should there be no public comments. The Schedule
of Values would be available on the County’s website and a hard copy in the Tax Administrator’s
Office.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to schedule a public hearing
to allow citizen comments on the 2022 Schedule of Values for November 16, 2021, at 5:30 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

APPOINTMENT OF DANGEROUS DOG APPEAL BOARD AND APPEAL OF DANGEROUS
DoG DESIGNATION

County Manager Geouque stated that Section V. Animal Management, Subsection Section 5A.
Confinement and Control of Dangerous Domestic Animals of the Watauga County Animal Care
and Control Ordinance addressed issues related to animals deemed “dangerous” or “potentially
dangerous.” Owners of animals deemed “dangerous” or “potentially dangerous” could request
reconsideration of the designation to the appeals board appointed by the Board of Commissioners.
The last appeal received by the Board was in 2011. Due to the limited turnaround time in
responding to the appeal and the infrequent amount of appeals staff would recommend the Board
serve as the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board for the Animal Care and Control Ordinance.



Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to appoint the Board of
Commissioners to serve as the appeals board for the Watauga County Animal Care and Control
Ordinance.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Upon the Board being appointed as the appeals board, there was a current appeal to be heard.

Chairman Welch called upon Animal Control Officer Eric Presnell to provide his report. Mr.
Presenll stated that the incident happened at approximately 8:23 P.M. on September 24, 2021, in
the parking lot of Lowe’s Hardware. Nothing was intentional; however, Mr. Thomas Jahns dogs
“Cheese” and “Tank” did attack Ms. Dee Dee Taylor and her dog, “Lula” while Ms. Taylor had
her dog properly restrained on a leash. The dogs were tested for rabies and the results were
negative. “Lula” and Ms. Taylor were both injured during the attack. Mr. Jahns requested the
dangerous dog designation given by the Animal Care and Control Office to his dogs be overturned.
Ms. Taylor stated that she was attacked by both “Cheese” and “Tank” and required stiches for
herself and “Lula” has had three surgeries due to the incident. Ms. Taylor stated that she was
tankful that “Cheese” and “Tank” were not going to have to be put down but did agree with the
dangerous dog designation.

Chairman Welch acknowledged Ms. Kayla Dillard’s presence at the meeting and stated that they
had her written statement as a witness to the incident as well as written statements from Mr. Jahns
and Mr. Presnell. County Manager Geouque shared a video, taken by the Lowe’s Hardware
parking lot camera which showed the incident.

Mr. Jahns appealed the dangerous designation of both his dogs and requested the designation be
reversed.

After reviewing the reports and hearing Mr. Presnell, Mr. Jahns, and Ms. Taylor speak, Vice-
Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to uphold the Animal Care and
Control’s designation as a Dangerous Dog for both of Mr. Jahns dogs, “Cheese” and “Tank.”

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Proposed Daymark Lease Renewal

A resolution for the lease renewal for Daymark Recovery Services office space has been adopted
and advertised for the required ten-day period. The space to be leased was at the County’s Human
Service Building and included 13,775 square feet of space. Daymark agreed to lease the space at
the rate of $10 per square foot ($137,750 per year) in monthly installments of $11,479.17. The
new lease term would be from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2024. Included in the lease under Section
10 was an additional fee in the amount of $67,718 per year, to be paid in monthly instaliments of
$5,643.17, which was to cover utilities and janitorial services.



Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the lease with
Daymark Recovery Services as presented by the County Manager.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

B. Recommended Contract Award for Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurance

County Manager Geouque stated that renewal rates had been received for medical, dental, and life
insurance benefits. The initial renewal rate received from CIGNA for medical insurance was a 22.2%
increase. Further negotiations and analysis of additional claims reduced the increase to 5.04 %.

Dental and Life insurance premiums through Ameritas Dental and Symetra will remain unchanged due
to the current rate lock.

Staff recommends CIGNA’s Level Funding plan for the County’s medical insurance with a 5.04%
increase and for the County to fund $1,000 into each eligible employee’s HSA account. Staff further
recommends Ameritas Dental and Symetra Financial for dental and life insurance. Adequate funds
have been budgeted to cover the renewal rates.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve CIGNA’s Level
Funding plan for the County’s medical insurance with a 5.04% increase and for the County to fund
$1,000 into each eligible employee’s HSA account as well as approve Ameritas Dental and Symetra
Financial for life insurance.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

C. Boards and Commissions

County Manager Geouque presented the following for consideration:

Watauga County Board of Adjustment

The Board of Adjustment term of Mr. Lonnie Webster was set to expire in November 2021. Mr.
Webster did not wish to be reappointed. The revised North Carolina General Statute 160D no
longer makes any mention of appointments representing zoned areas of counties with partial-
county zoning; therefore, it was not necessary to consider where appointees live. The term will be
for three years. Citizens were encouraged to apply to serve on the Board.

Watauga County Planning Board
The At-Large Planning Board term of Mr. Ric Mattar was set to expire in December 2021. Mr.
Mattar was willing to be reappointed for the four-year term.

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to waive the second reading
and reappoint Mr. Ric Mattar as an At-Large Planning Board with a term that ends December 31,
2025.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee

Pat Taylor and Karen Robertson were no longer eligible to serve on the Adult Care Home
Community Advisory Committee and, therefore, Stevie John, Regional Ombudsman, had
requested the two be formally removed as members of the Committee.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to remove Pat Taylor and
Karen Robertson as members of the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

D. America Recovery Plan Contract

County Manager Geouque stated that discussion was needed with the County Attorney in Closed
Session regarding a recent American Recovery Plan (ARP) contract and possible action could take
place after Closed Session.

E. Announcements

County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e The Watauga County Parks and Recreation Department scheduled a Trunk or Treat event
at the Community Recreation Center (CRC) on Sunday, October 31, 2021, from 6:00-8:00
P.M. Contact Parks and Recreation to register your trunk for the event.

e The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners scheduled for November 2, 2021, has
been cancelled. The next regular meeting will be held at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday,
November 16, 2021, in the Commissioners’ Board Room.

e Two Public Hearings will be held at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, November 16, 2021; one to
allow citizen comment on proposed amendments to the Watauga County Planning &
Development Ordinance and one to allow citizen comment on the 2022 Schedule of
Values.

PuBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Michael Bugge shared an open letter with the Board regarding issues and concerns associated
with The Cottages of Boone rental housing development.

Chairman Welch stated that the Health Department had reached out to the State to make sure the
health concerns do not happen again. Ms. Jen Greene, Director of AppHealthCare, stated that the
North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality were consulting with the Attorney General’s
Office regarding The Cottages.



CLOSED SESSION

At 7:09 P.M., Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to enter Closed
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Pertalion, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to resume the open meeting
at 7:59 P.M.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PossIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION

County Attorney di Santi made the following statement:

Because of the difference in federal law regarding the funds the County is to receive from
the United States pursuant to the American Recovery Plan, which the county intends to use
a portion thereof to provide broadband to unserved and underserved areas of the County,
and NC law regarding the County’s use of the funds, it is necessary to rescind the contract
which the county executed with Blue Ridge Electric Membership Corporation and
Skyline/Skybest, to which both entities agree and have confirmed. An amendment to the
NC law has been introduced and is pending before the NC General Assembly in hopes that
it is adopted so that the County can proceed with its broadband initiative with the American
Recovery Plan funds appropriated to the County.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to rescind the contract
between Blue Ridge Energy and Skybest/Skyline and Watauga County which was approved at the
August 17, 2021, Board meeting.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ADJOURN

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to adjourn the meeting at
8:02 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

John Welch, Vice-Chairman

ATTEST:
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 16, 2021, AGENDA




Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 4:

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW PuBLIC COMMENT ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO
THE WATAUGA COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

A public hearing has been scheduled to allow public comment regarding the amendment of the
Watauga County Planning & Development Ordinance.

The Planning & Inspections staff presented proposed amendments to Chapters 7, 8, 9, and 21 of
the Planning & Development Ordinance to the Planning Board on September 20, 2021. The
Planning Board discussed and voted to approve the amendments and to recommend that the Board
of Commissioners schedule a public hearing to consider amending the Ordinance as proposed.

On October 19, 2021 additional amendments were added for consideration that addressed
decriminalizing local ordinances and takes effect December 1, 2021.

Upon completion of the public hearing the Board may adopt the changes as presented, request
additional information, or schedule a special called meeting prior to the December 1, 2021
deadline.

Board action is required.



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will hold a legislative public hearing at 5:30 PM
Tuesday, November 16, 2021 to consider proposed amendments to the Planning & Development
Ordinance. The purpose of the amendments is to bring the ordinance into compliance with
changed federal and NC laws and rules. Specifically, the Erosion and Sedimentation Control, Flood
Damage Prevention, and Watershed Protection regulations, as well as applicable definitions must
be brought into compliance with model ordinances provided by the overseeing NC agencies.
Optional amendments included in the Flood Damage Prevention and Watershed Protection
model ordinances are also being considered upon recommendation of the Watauga County
Planning Board. In addition, enforcement provisions of the entire Planning & Development
Ordinance must be amended to remove criminal penalties pursuant to NC Session Law 2021-138.
The hearing will be conducted in the Commissioners Board Room, County Administration
Building, 814 West King Street, Boone. For further information, contact the Department of
Planning and Inspections, (828) 265-8043, p&i@watgov.org.

John Welch
Chairman


mailto:p&i@watgov.org

WATA U GA C O U N TY Planlr?ii%agr?r?:;e%ftions

126 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite 201 Boone, NC 28607 Phone (828) 265-8043
TTY 1-800-735-2962

Voice 1-800-735-8262

or 711

FAX (828) 265-8080

Memorandum

Date: October 22, 2021

To: Board of Commissioners
From: Joe Furman, Director

RE:  Ordinance amendments

The Watauga County Planning & Development Ordinance
http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/Planning/viewordinances.aspx?DblD=119
includes three (3) chapters of regulations that are either mandated by the state, or are local
programs overseen by state agencies:

e Water Supply Watershed regulations — mandated by NC Statute and overseen by NC
Division of Mineral, Energy, and Land Resources (DEMLR)

e Sedimentation and Erosion Control regulations — local program overseen by NC DEMLR

e Flood Damage Prevention regulations — local program overseen by NC Department of
Public Safety (DPS) in partnership with Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA)

The NC agencies involved in oversight provide model ordinances to assist local governments to
comply with relevant state and federal regulations. New model ordinances have been provided
by those agencies for the three listed regulations within the past year. Accordingly, Watauga
County must comply with the minimum requirements of the Sedimentation and Erosion Control
and Flood Damage Prevention models, and must at least incorporate changes in NC Statutes
included in the 2021 Water Supply Watershed model. The Planning & Inspections staff
presented proposed amendments to Chapters 7, 8, 9, and 21 of the Planning & Development
Ordinance to the Planning Board on September 20, 2021. The Planning Board discussed and
voted to approve the amendments and to recommend that the Board of Commissioners schedule
a public hearing to consider amending the Ordinance as proposed.


http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/Planning/viewordinances.aspx?DbID=119

The Flood Damage Prevention model includes some optional provisions that are designed to
provide a higher level of protection from flooding events or to reduce flood insurance rates for
owners, or both. The Planning Board is recommending some, but not all of these options; they
are highlighted in the attachment. As mentioned, the County is not required to fully comply with
the Water Supply Watershed model ordinance, other than a few mandatory provisions, but the
Planning Board is recommending some other components of the model they believe will be more
user-friendly than the current regulations. Compliance with the Sedimentation and Erosion
Control model ordinance is mandatory; the Planning Board is not proposing anything other than
the changes incorporated therein. Amendments to Chapter 7, Definitions, are also proposed in
order to comply with the model ordinances. The majority of the proposed amendments to the 4
chapters are mandatory. The needed and proposed amendments to all three of the regulations
plus definitions are indicated with strike-throughs, red ink, and highlighting in the attachments.



€Y

@)

)
4)

)

(6)
)

)
€))

(10)

(11)

12)

CHAPTER 7 DEFINITIONS

Abandoned Sign - A sign which for a period of at least 180
consecutive days or longer no longer advertises or identifies a legal
business establishment, product or activity.

Abandonment — Cessation of use of a wireless support structure for
wireless telecommunications activity for at least the minimum
period of time specified under this ordinance.

Accelerated Erosion - means any increase over the rate of natural
erosion as a result of land-disturbing activity.

Accessory Equipment - Any equipment serving or being used in
conjunction with a wireless facility or wireless support structure.
The term includes utility or transmission equipment, power
supplies, generators, batteries, cables, equipment buildings,
cabinets and storage sheds, shelters or similar structures.
Accessory Structure (Appurtenant Structure, Accessory Building)

- means a structure located on the same parcel of property as
the principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the
use of the principle structures. Garages, carports and storage
sheds are common urban accessory structures. Pole barns hay
sheds and the like quality as accessory structures on farms and
may or may not be located on the same parcel as the farm
dwelling or shop building.

Accessory Use - See Chapter 10, Article V, Section 5.

Act - means the North Carolina Sedimentation Pollution Control Act
of 1973 and all rules and orders adopted pursuant to it.

Addition (to an existing building) - means an extension or
increase in the floor area or height of a building or structure.
Adequate Erosion Control Measure, Structure, or Device - means
one which controls the soil material within the land area under
responsible control of the person conducting the land-disturbing
activity.

Administrative Approval — Approval that the Administrator or
designee is authorized to grant after administrative review.
Administrative Decision — Decisions made in the implementation,
administration, or enforcement of development regulations that in
involve the determination of facts and the application of objective
standards set forth in this Chapter or local government
development regulations. These are sometimes referred to as
ministerial decisions or administrative determinations.
Administrative Hearing — A proceeding to gather facts needed to
make an administrative decision.




(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

Administrative Review — Non-discretionary evaluation of an
application by the Administrator or designee. The process is not
subject to a public hearing.
Administrator - The person or persons assigned by the Board of
Commissioners to enforce this ordinance. Aka, Ordinance
Administrator, County Official, Zoning Administrator, Watershed
Administrator, Planning Staff, etc.
Adult Arcade - means any place to which the public is permitted or
invited wherein coin-operated, slug-operated, or for any form of
consideration, or electronically, electrically, or mechanically controlled
still or motion picture machines, projectors, video or laser disc
players, or other image-producing devices are maintained to show
images to five or fewer persons per machine at any one time, and
where the images so displayed are distinguished or characterized by
the depicting or describing of "specified sexual activities" or "specified
anatomical areas."

Adult Bookstore - means a bookstore:

(a) which receives a majority of its gross income during any
calendar month from the sale or rental of publications
(including books, magazines, other periodicals, videotapes,
compact discs, other photographic, electronic, magnetic,
digital, or other imaging medium)which are distinguished or
characterized by their emphasis on matter depicting,
describing, or relating to specified sexual activities or specified
anatomical areas, as defined in this section; or

(b) having as a preponderance (either in terms of the weight and
importance of the material or in terms of greater volume of
materials) of its publications (including books, magazines,
other periodicals, videotapes, compact discs, other
photographic, electronic, magnetic, digital, or other imaging
medium) which are distinguished or characterized by their
emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating to
specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas, as
defined in this section. A commercial establishment may have
other principal business purposes that do not involve the
offering for sale or rental of material depicting or describing
"specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas™ and
still be categorized as ADULT BOOKSTORE, ADULT NOVELTY
STORE, or ADULT VIDEO STORE. Such other business
purposes will not serve to exempt such commercial
establishments from being categorized as an ADULT
BOOKSTORE, ADULT NOVELTY STORE, or ADULT VIDEO STORE
so long as one of its principal business purposes is the offering
for sale or rental for consideration the specified materials which




are characterized by the depiction or description of "specified
sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas."

(17) Adult Cabaret - means a nightclub, bar, restaurant, or similar
commercial establishment which regularly features:

(a) persons who appear in a state of nudity or semi-nude; or

(b) live performances which are characterized by the exposure of
"specified anatomical areas" or by "specified sexual activities";
or

(c) films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other
photographic reproductions which are characterized by the
depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or
"specified anatomical areas."

(18) Adult Establishment - means an adult bookstore, adult motion,
picture theatre, adult mini motion picture theatre, adult live
entertainment business, or massage business as defined in this
section.

(19) Adult Live Entertainment - means any performance of or involving
the actual presence of real people which exhibits specified sexual
activities or specified anatomical areas, as defined in this section.

(20) Adult Live Entertainment Business — means any establishment or
business wherein adult live entertainment is shown for observation by
patrons.

(21) Adult Mini Motion Picture Theatre - means an enclosed building with
viewing booths designed to hold patrons which is used for presenting
motion pictures, a preponderance of which are distinguished or
characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or
relating to specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas as
defined in this section, for observation by patrons therein.

(22) Adult Motel - means a hotel, motel or similar commercial
establishment which:

(a) offers accommodations to the public for any form of
consideration; provides patrons with closed-circuit television
transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or
other photographic reproductions which are characterized by
the depiction or description of "specified sexual activities” or
"specified anatomical areas"; and has a sign visible from the
public right of way which advertises the availability of this adult
type of photographic reproductions; or

(b) offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time that is less
than ten (10) hours; or

(c) allows a tenant or occupant of a sleeping room to sub-rent the
room for a period of time that is less than ten (10) hours.

(23) Adult Motion Picture Theatre - Means enclosed adult building or
premises used for presenting motion pictures, a preponderance of




(24)

(25)

(26)

27)

(28)

(29)

(30)

1)

(32)

(33)

which are distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter
depicting, describing, or relating to specified sexual activities or
specified anatomical areas, as defined in this section, for observation
by patrons therein. “Adult motion picture theatre” does not include
any adult mini motion picture theatre as defined in this section.

Adult Theatre - means a theatre, concert hall, auditorium, or similar
commercial establishment which regularly features persons who
appear in a state of nudity or semi-nude, or live performances which
are characterized by the exposure of "specified anatomical areas™ or
by "specified sexual activities."

Affiliate — means a person that directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control of another person.

Agricultural Farm — A bona fide farm whose primary purpose is the

production of agricultural products including but not limited to
crops, fruits, Christmas trees, vegetables, ornamental or flowering
plants, dairy, livestock, poultry, and all other forms of agricultural
products having a domestic or foreign market.

Agricultural Use - The use of waters for stock watering, irrigation,
and other farm purposes.

Alteration - Any change in copy, color, size or shape, which changes
appearance of a sign, or a change in position, location, construction
or supporting structure of a sign, except that a copy change on a
sign is not an alteration.

Alteration of a watercourse - means a dam, impoundment, channel
relocation, change in channel alignment, channelization, or change
in cross-sectional area of the channel or the channel capacity, or
any other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or
change the direction and/or velocity of the riverine flow of water
during conditions of the base flood.

Animated Sign - A sign which has any visible moving part, flashing
or osculating lights, visible mechanical movement of any
description, or other apparent visible movement achieved by any
means that move, change, flash, osculate or visibly alters in
appearance in a manner that is not permitted by these regulations.
Antenna - Communications equipment that transmits, receives
or transmits and receives electromagnetic radio signals used in
the provision of all types of wireless communications services.
Appeal - means a request for a review of the Ordinance
Administrator’s interpretation of any provision of this ordinance.
Approving Authority — means the Division or other State or a
local government agency that has been delegated erosion and




(34)
(35)

(36)
37)

(38)

(39)

(40)

(41)

(42)

(43)

(44)

(45)

sedimentation plan review responsibilities in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

Area of Sign - Refer to measurement standards in Chapter 16
Article 11 Section 1.

Area of Special Flood Hazard” see “Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA)”.

Art - An aesthetic physical item or artistic creation.

Asphalt Plant — A facility utilizing equipment that blends, dries,
heats and mixes aggregates with asphalt cement to produce hot
mix asphalt (HMA), including batch and drum plants.

Assisted Living Facility — Any group housing and services program
for two or more unrelated adults, however named, that makes
available, at a minimum, one meal a day and housekeeping
services and provides personal care services directly or through a
formal written agreement with one or more NC licensed home care
or hospice agencies.

Attraction or Reader Board - Any sign having changeable copy for
the purpose of advertising events, sales, services or products
provided on the site.

Automobile Graveyard — An outdoor establishment which is used for

storing, keeping, processing, buying or selling more than five (5)
wrecked, abandoned, scrapped, ruined or dismantled motor
vehicles or motor vehicle parts.

Awning Sign - Any permanent sign painted on or attached to or
supported by an awning.

Awning - A shelter extending from the exterior wall of a building
and composed of non-rigid materials except for the supporting
framework.

Balance of Watershed (BW). The area adjoining and upstream of
the critical area in a WS-1l and WS-IIl water supply watershed.
The “balance of watershed” is comprised of the entire land area
contributing surface drainage to the stream, river, or reservoir
where a water supply intake is located.

Balloon Sign - A temporary lighter-than-air gas-filled balloon,
tethered in a fixed location that has a sign with a message on its
surface or attached in any manner to the balloon.

Banner Sign A temporary, lightweight sign that contains a
message which is attached or imprinted on a flexible surface that
deforms under light pressure and that is typically constricted of
non-durable materials, including, but not limited to, cardboard,
cloth and/or plastic.




(46)

47)

(48)

(49)
(50)

(51)

(52)

(53)

(54)
(55)

(56)

(57)

Base Flood Elevation (BFE) - means a determination of the water
surface elevations of the base flood as published in the Flood
Insurance Study. When the BFE has not been provided in a
“Special Flood Hazard Area”, it may be obtained from
engineering studies available from a Federal, State, or other
source using FEMA approved engineering methodologies. This
elevation, when combined with the “Freeboard”, establishes the
“Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.

Base Flood - means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of
being equaled or exceeded in any given year.

Base Station - A station at a specific site authorized to
communicate with mobile stations, generally consisting of radio
transceivers, antennas, coaxial cables, power supplies and other
associated electronics.

Basement - means any area of the building having its floor
subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.

Being Conducted - means a land-disturbing activity has been
initiated and not deemed complete by the Approving Authority.

Best Management Practices (BMP) - A structural or nonstructural
management-based practice used singularly or in combination to
reduce nonpoint source inputs to receiving waters in order to
achieve water quality protection goals.

Bona Fide Farm Purposes — Agricultural activities as set forth in
G.S. 160D-903.

Boarding House - A residential use consisting of at least one
dwelling unit together with more than two rooms that are rented or
are designed or intended to be rented but which rooms, individually
or collectively, do not constitute separate dwelling units. A rooming
house or boarding house is distinguished form a tourist home in
that the former is designed to be occupied by longer-term residents
(at least month-to-month tenants) as opposed to overnight or
weekly guests.

Borrow - means fill material that is required for on-site construction
that is obtained from other locations.

Buffer Zone - means the strip of land adjacent to a lake or natural
watercourse.

Buffer - An area of natural or planted vegetation through which
stormwater runoff flows in a diffuse manner so that the runoff does
not become channelized and which provides for infiltration of the
runoff and filtering of pollutants. The buffer is measured landward
from the normal pool elevation of impounded structures and from
the bank of each side of streams or rivers.

Building - Any structure having a roof supported by columns or by
walls, and intended for shelter, housing or enclosure of persons,




(58)

(59)

(60)

(61)

(62)

(63)

(64)

(65)

(66)

(67)

(68)

animals or property. The connection of two buildings by means of
an open porch, breezeway, passageway, carport or other structure,
with or without a roof, shall not be deemed to make them one
building.

Building ldentification Sign - A permanent sign containing the name
or address of a building and may include hours of operation and
emergency information, such sign being located on the same site as
the structure.

Building Lines - Lines tangent to the exterior surface of a building
and parallel to front, side and rear property lines.

Building Setback Line (Minimum) - A line parallel with the property
line designating an area bordering the property lines on which no
building shall be placed.

Building, Accessory - A minor building that is located on the same
lot as a principal building and that is used incidentally to a principal
building or that houses an accessory use.

Building, Principal - The primary building on a lot or a building that
house a principal use.

Built-upon area - Built-upon areas shall include that portion of a
development project that is covered by impervious or partially
impervious cover including buildings, pavement, gravel roads,
recreation facilities (e.g. tennis courts), etc. (Note: Wooden slatted
decks and the water area of a swimming pool are considered
pervious).

Canopy - A freestanding permanent roof-like shelter not attached to
or requiring support from an adjacent structure.

Canopy Sign - Any permanent sign attached to or constructed
underneath a canopy. These signs are below a projecting structure
which extends over the pedestrian walkway which effectively
prevents the wall signs for being visible to the pedestrian walking
under the canopy. See Also Projecting Sign.

Carrier on Wheels or Cell on Wheels (COW) - A portable self-
contained wireless facility that can be moved to a location and set
up to provide wireless services on a temporary or emergency basis.
A COW is normally vehicle-mounted and contains a telescoping
boom as the antenna support structure.

Cement Mixing Facility — A facility utilizing equipment that
combines materials including but not limited to sand, water,
aggregate, ash, and cement to form concrete, including ready
mix and central mix plants.

Certified Local Government (CLG) Program - Certified Local
Government (CLG) Programs arc approved by the US

Department of the Interior in cooperation with the North




(69)

(70)

(71)

(72)

(73)

(74)

(75)

(76)

Carolina Department of Cultural Resources through the State
Historic Preservation Officer as having met the requirements of
the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended in
1980.

Certify - Whenever this chapter requires that some agency certify
the existence of some fact or circumstance to the county, the
county may require that such certification be made in any manner
that provides reasonable assurance of the accuracy of the
certification. By way of illustration, and without Ilimiting the
foregoing, the county may accept certification by telephone from
some agency when the circumstances warrant it, or the county may
require that the certification be in the form of a letter or other
document.

Chemical — An element, chemical compound, a mixture of elements

or compounds or both.

Chemical Manufacturing — A facility involved in the production,

synthesis, formation, processing, refining, manufacturing, and/or

distribution of chemical products in bulk.

Chemical Storage Facilities — A facility used for the storage of

chemical compounds in bulk.

Child Care Facility — Includes child care centers, family child care

homes, and any other child care arrangement not excluded by

NCGS 8110-86(2), that provides child care, regardless of the time

of day, wherever operated, and whether or not operated for profit.

(a) A child care center is an arrangement where, at any one time,
there are three or more preschool-age children or nine or
more school-age children receiving child care.

(b) A family child care home is a child care arrangement located
in a residence where, at any one time, more than two
children, but less than nine children, receive child care.

Chip Mill — A mechanized facility that grinds whole logs into wood

chips for paper, particle board and other products and is capable of

producing at least 250,000 tons annually.

Cluster Development - The grouping of buildings in order to

conserve land resources and provide for innovation in the design of

the project. This term includes non-residential development as well
as single-family residential subdivisions and multi- family
developments that do not involve the subdivision of land.

Coastal Counties - means the following counties: Beaufort, Bertie,
Brunswick, Camden, Carteret, Chowan, Craven, Currituck, Dare,




77

(78)

(79)

(80)

(81)

(82)

(83)

(84)

(85)

(86)
(87)

(88)

Gates, Hertford, Hyde, New Hanover, Onslow, Pamlico, Pasquotank,
Pender, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington.

Collocation - The placement or installation of wireless facilities on
existing structures, including electrical transmission towers, water
towers, buildings and other structures capable of structurally
supporting the attachment of wireless facilities in compliance with
applicable codes.

Combination Use - A use consisting of a combination on one lot of
two or more principal uses. When two or more separately owned or
separately operated enterprises occupy the same lot, and all such
enterprises fall within the same principal use classification, this shall
not constitute a combination use.

Commercial — Used for an occupation, employment, or enterprise

that is carried on for profit by the owner, lessee, or licensee.
Commercial or Industrial Area (re: wireless telecommunications
regulations) — A parcel of land on which commercial or industry
activity is actually conducted and the area along the highway
extending outward 800 feet from and beyond such activity.

Commission - means the North Carolina Sedimentation Control
Commission.

Common Plan of Development — site where multiple separate and
distinct development activities may be taking place at different
times or different schedules but governed by a single development
plan regardless of ownership of parcels.

Completion of Construction or Development - means that no further
land-disturbing activity is required on a phase of a project except
that which is necessary for establishing a permanent ground cover.
Composting Facility - A facility in which only stumps, limbs, leaves,
grass and untreated wood collected from Iland clearing or
landscaping operations is deposited.

Concealed Wireless Facility - Any wireless facility that is integrated
as an architectural feature of an existing structure or any new
wireless support structure designed to camouflage or conceal the
presence of antennas or towers so that the purpose of the facility or
wireless support structure is not readily apparent to a casual
observer.

Conditional Zoning — A legislative zoning map amendment with site-
specific conditions incorporated into the zoning map amendment.
Construction Sign - A temporary sign identifying the persons, firms
or business directly connected with a construction project.
Convenience Store - A one-story, retail store containing less than
2,000 square feet of gross floor area that is designed and stocked
to sell primarily food, beverages, and other household supplies to




(89)

(90)

(°1)
(92)

(93)

(94)

customers who purchase only a relatively few items (in contrast to
a “supermarket”). It is designed to attract and depends upon a
large volume of stop-and-go traffic. lllustrative examples of
convenience stores are those operated by the “Fast Fare”, “7-11"
and “Pantry” chains.
Critical Area - The area adjacent to a water supply intake or
reservoir where risk associated with pollution is greater than from
the remaining portions of the watershed. The critical area is defined
as extending either one-half mile from the normal pool elevation of
the reservoir in which the intake is located or to the ridge line of the
watershed (whichever comes first); or one- half mile upstream from
the intake located directly in the stream or river (run-of-the-river),
or the ridge line of the watershed (whichever comes first). Since
WS-1 watersheds are essentially undeveloped, establishment of a
critical area is not required. Local governments may extend the
critical area as needed. Major landmarks such as highways or
property lines may be used to delineate the outer boundary of the
critical area if these landmarks are immediately adjacent to the
appropriate outer boundary of one-half mile.

Cul-de-sac - A short subdivision street having but one end open to

traffic and the other end being permanently terminated and a

vehicular turn-around provided.

Department — when used alone means the North Carolina

Department of Environmental Quality.

Determination — A written, final, and binding order, requirement, or

determination regarding an administrative decision.

Developer - A person, including a governmental agency or

redevelopment authority, who undertakes any development and

who is the landowner of the property to be developed or who has
been authorized by the landowner to undertake development on
that property.

Development — Unless the context clearly indicated otherwise,

the term means any ef—the—foHewing man-made change to

improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to
the following:

(a) The -construction, erection, alteration, enlargement,
renovation, substantial repair, movement to another site,
or demolition of any building or structure.

(b) The excavation, grading, filing, clearing, paving, mining,
dredging, drilling operation, storage of equipment or
materials, or alteration of land.

(c) The subdivision of land as defined in G.S. 160D-802.

(d) The initiation or substantial change in the use of land or
the intensity of us of land.




(95)

(96)

o7)

(98)

(99)

The definition does not alter the scope of regulatory authority
granted by this Chapter.

Development Activity - means any activity defined as Development
which will necessitate a Floodplain Development Permit. This
includes buildings, structures, and non-structural items, including
(but not limited to) fill, bulkheads, piers, pools, docks, landings,
ramps, and erosion control/stabilization measures.

Development Approval — An administrative or quasi-judicial
approval made pursuant to this Chapter that is written and that is
required prior to commencing development or undertaking a
specific activity, project, or development proposal. Development
approvals include, but are not limited to, zoning permits, site plan
approvals, special use permits, variances, and certificates of
appropriateness. The term also includes all other regulatory
approvals required by regulations adopted pursuant to this Chapter,
including plat approvals, permits issued, development agreements
entered into, and building permits issued.

Development regulation — A unified development ordinance, zoning
regulation, subdivision regulation, erosion and sedimentation
control regulation, floodplain or flood damage prevention
regulation, mountain ridge protection regulation, stormwater
control regulation, wireless telecommunication facility regulation,
historic preservation or landmark regulation, housing code, State
Building Code enforcement, or any other regulation adopted
pursuant to NCGS160D, or a local act or charter that regulates land
use or development.

Digital Billboard - A highway sign utilizing electronic image displays
that present multiple static advertisements on a rotating basis.
Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM) - means the digital
official map of a community, issued by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA), on which both the Special Flood
Hazard Areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the
community are delineated.

(100) Dimensional Nonconformity - A nonconforming situation that

occurs when the height, size, or minimum floor space of a structure
or the relationship between an existing building or buildings and
other buildings or lot lines does not conform to the regulations
applicable to the district in which the property is located.

(101) Directional Sign - A temporary sign, not exceeding 4 square feet,

used as a navigational aid to direct motorists to specific
destination(s) for a single purpose or event open to the public.

(102) Director - means the Director of the Division of Energy Mineral

and Land Resources of the Department of Environment and Natural
Resources.



(103) Discharge Point or Point of Discharge - means that point where
runoff leaves a tract of land where a land-disturbing activity has
occurred or enters a lake or natural watercourse.

(104) Discharging Landfill - A facility with liners, monitoring equipment
and other measures to detect and/or prevent leachate from
entering the environment and in which the leachate is treated on
site and discharged to a receiving stream.

(105) Disposal - means, as defined in NCGS 130A-290(a)(6), the
discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking, or
placing of any solid waste into or on any land or water so that
the solid waste or any constituent part of the solid waste may
enter the environment or be emitted into the air or discharged
into any waters, including groundwater.

(106) District - means the Watauga County Soil and Water
Conservation District created pursuant to Chapter 139, North
Carolina General Statutes.

(107) Double Frontage Lot - A continuous (through) lot which borders
two or more streets.

(108) Dwelling— Any building, structure, manufactured home, or

mobile home, or part thereof, used and occupied for human
habitation or intended to be so used and includes any outhouses
and appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith.
For the purposes of Article 12 of NCGS 106D, the term does not
include any manufactured home, mobile home, or recreational
vehicle, if used solely for a seasonal vacation purpose.

(109) EASEMENT - A strip of land designated by the property owner for
a specified purpose and use by the public, a corporation, or
persons.

(110) Educational Facility — Elementary schools, secondary schools,
community colleges, colleges, and universities, including support
facilities such as administration for all of the preceding. Also
includes any property owned or operated by those facilities used for
educational, vocational or athletic purposes.

(111) Electrical Transmission Tower - An electrical transmission
structure used to support high voltage overhead power lines. The
term shall not include any utility pole.

(112) Electricity Generating Facility - A stand-alone plant, not ancillary
to another land use which generates electricity to be distributed to
consumers including but not limited to fossil fuel burning facilities
and solar power farms. This definition shall not include electricity
produced on an agricultural farm or residence whose use is limited




to on-site consumption which only sells electricity to a public utility
incidental to the on-site use.

(113) Electronic Message Center/Changeable Copy Sign - A
permanent sign or portion thereof on which the copy or symbols
change either automatically through electrical or electronic
means (for example, time and temperature units), or manually
through placement of letters or symbols on a panel mounted in
or on a track system.

(114) Elevated Building - means a non-basement building which has
its lowest elevated floor raised above ground level by foundation
walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.

(115) Eligible Facilities Request — A request for modification of an
existing wireless tower or base station that involves collocation
of new transmission equipment or replacement of transmission
equipment but does not include a substantial modification.

(116) Employee - means a person who performs any service on the
premises of a sexually oriented business on a full-time, part-time or
contract basis, whether or not the person is denominated an
employee, independent contractor, agent or otherwise and whether
or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation by
the operator of said business. Also included are all persons who
participate for consideration or possibility of a prize in any contests,
performances, or exhibitions sponsored by or allowed at a sexually
oriented business or occurring upon the premises of the sexual
oriented business. Employee does not include a person exclusively
on the premises for repair or maintenance of the premises or
equipment on the premises, or for the delivery of goods to the
premises.

(117) Encroachment - means the advance or infringement of uses,
fill, excavation, buildings, structures or development into a
floodplain, which may impede or alter the flow capacity of a
floodplain.

(118) Energy Dissipator - means a structure or a shaped channel
section with mechanical armoring placed at the outlet of pipes or
conduits to receive and break down the energy from high velocity
flow.

(119) Equipment Compound - An area surrounding or near the base of
a wireless support structure within which are located wireless
facilities.

(120) Erosion - means the wearing away of land surfaces by the action
of wind, water, gravity, or any combination thereof.

(121) Escort - means a person who, for consideration, agrees or offers
to act as a companion, guide, or date for another person, or who
agrees or offers to privately model lingerie or to privately perform a




striptease for another person.

(122) Escort Agency means a person or business association who
furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises to furnish escorts as one of
its primary business purposes for a fee, tip, or other consideration.

(123) Establishment - means and includes any of the following:

(a) the opening or commencement of any sexually oriented
business as a new business;

(b) the conversion of an existing business, whether or not a
sexually oriented business, to any sexually oriented business;

(c) the additions of any sexually oriented business to any other
existing sexually oriented business; or

(d) the relocation of any sexually oriented business.

(124) Evidentiary Hearing — A hearing to gather competent,
material, and substantial evidence in order to make findings for
a quasi-judicial decision required by a development regulation
adopted under this Chapter.

(125) Existing Development - Those projects that are built or those
projects that at a minimum have established a vested right
under North Carolina zoning law as of the effective date of this
ordinance based on at least one of the following criteria:
substantial expenditures of resources (time, labor, money)
based on a good faith reliance upon having received a valid local
government approval to proceed with the project, or having an
outstanding valid building permit as authorized by the General
Statutes (G.S. 160D-108, 108.1), or (3) having an approved
site specific or phased development plan as authorized by the
General Statutes (G.S. 160D-108,108.1).

(126) Existing Lot (Lot of Record) - A lot which is part of a
subdivision, a plat of which has been recorded in the Office of
the Register of Deeds prior to the adoption of this ordinance, or
a lot described by metes and bounds, the description of which
has been so recorded prior to the adoption of this ordinance.

(127) Existing Manufactured Home Park or Manufactured Home
Subdivision -means a manufactured home park or subdivision
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on
which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a
minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets,
and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) was
completed before the initial effective date of the floodplain
management regulations adopted by the community.

(128) Existing Structure - A wireless support structure, erected
prior to the application for an eligible facilities request,
collocation or substantial modification under this ordinance that
is capable of supporting the attachment of wireless facilities. The




term includes but is not limited to, electrical transmission
towers, buildings and water towers. The term shall not include
any utility pole.

(129) Explosives Manufacturing — Manufacturing of a chemical
compound, mixture, or device the primary or common purpose of
which is to function by explosion. This term includes but is not
limited to dynamite, black powder, pellet powder, initiating
explosives, detonators, safety fuses, squibs, detonating cord,
igniting cord, igniters, and display fireworks, but does not include
hand-loaded small arms ammunition.

(130) Fall Zone - The area in which a wireless support structure may
be expected to fall in the event of a structural failure as measured
by engineering standards.

(131) Family - One or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit,
provided that unless all members are related by blood or marriage
or adoption, no such family shall contain over five persons, but
further provided that domestic servants employed or living on the
premises may be housed on the premises without being counted as
a family or families.

(132) Farmer’'s Market - A retail establishment primarily engaged in
the sale of fresh fruits, vegetables and similar perishable goods.

(133) Flea Market - Buildings or open areas in which booths or sales
areas are provided for rent by various unrelated individuals to sell a
variety of merchandise. This does not include yards sales,
rummage sales, or farmer’s markets.

(134) Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBEM)” - means an official
map of a community, issued by the FEMA, on which the Special
Flood Hazard Areas and the floodways are delineated. This official
map is a supplement to and shall be used in conjunction with the
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).

(135) Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM)” - means an official map of
a community, issued by the FEMA, where the boundaries of the
Special Flood Hazard Areas have been defined as Zone A.

(136) Flood Insurance - means the insurance coverage provided
under the National Flood Insurance Program.

(137) FElood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) - means an official map of a
community, issued by the Federal Emergency Management
Agency, on which both the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the
risk premium zones applicable to the community arc delineated.

(138) Flood Insurance Study (FIS) - means an examination,
evaluation, and determination of flood hazards, corresponding
water surface elevations (if appropriate), flood hazard risk




zones, and other flood data in a community issued by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency. The Flood Insurance
Study report includes Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and
Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps (FBFMs), if published.

(139) Flood Prone Area - see “Floodplain”

(140) Flood Zone - means a geographical area shown on a Flood
Hazard Boundary Map or Flood Insurance Rate Map that reflects
the severity or type of flooding in the area.

(141) Flood or Flooding - means a general and temporary condition

of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas
from: (1) the overflow of inland or tidal waters: and/or (2) the
unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from
any source.

(142) Floodplain - Any land area susceptible to be inundated by water
from any source. the—base—Hood—As—usedin—this—ordinance;—the

v v TV v

(143) Floodplain Administrator - is the individual appointed to
administer and enforce the floodplain management regulations.

(144) Floodplain Development Permit - means any type of permit
that is required in conformance with the provisions of this
ordinance, prior to the commencement of any development
activity.

(145) Floodplain Management - means the operation of an overall
program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing
flood damage and preserving and enhancing, where possible,
natural resources in the floodplain, including, but not limited to,
emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodplain
management regulations, and open space plans.

(146) Floodplain Management Requlations - means this ordinance
and other zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building
codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances, and other
applications of police power. This term describes Federal, State
or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide
standards for preventing and reducing flood loss and damage.

(147) Floodproofing - means any combination of structural and
nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures
which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or
improved real property, water and sanitation facilities,
structures, and their contents.

(148) Flood-resistant material - means any building product
[material, component or system] capable of withstanding direct




and prolonged contact (minimum 72 hours) with floodwaters
without sustaining damage that requires more than low-cost
cosmetic repair. Any material that is water-soluble or is not
resistant to alkali or acid in water, including normal adhesives
for above-grade use, is not flood-resistant. Pressure-treated
lumber or naturally decay-resistant lumbers are acceptable
flooring materials. Sheet-type flooring coverings that restrict
evaporation from below and materials that are impervious, but
dimensionally unstable are not acceptable. Materials that absorb
or retain water excessively after submergence are not flood-
resistant. Please refer to Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-
Resistant Materials Requirements, and available from the FEMA.
Class 4 and 5 materials, referenced therein, are acceptable
flood-resistant materials.

(149) Floodway - The channel of a river or other watercourse and the

adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the
base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface
elevation more than one foot. As used in this chapter, the term
refers to that area designated as a floodway on the *“Flood
Boundary and Floodway Map” prepared by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, a copy of which is on file in the
planning department.

(150) Floodway encroachment analysis - means an engineering

analysis of the impact that a proposed encroachment into a
floodway or non-encroachment area is expected to have on the
floodway boundaries and flood levels during the occurrence of the
base flood discharge. The evaluation shall be prepared by a
qualified North Carolina licensed engineer using standard
engineering methods and hydraulic models meeting the minimum
requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program.

(151) Footcandle - A measure of illumination on a surface that is one

foot from a uniform source of light of one candle and equal to one
lumen per square foot.

(152) Freeboard - means the height added to the Base Flood

Elevation (BFE) to account for the many unknown factors that
could contribute to flood heights greater than the height
calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions, such
as wave action, blockage of bridge openings, and the
hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed. The Base
Flood Elevation (BFE) plus the freeboard establishes the
“Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.

(153) Freestanding Sign - Any permanent sign which is affixed in or

upon the ground, supported by one or more structural members,
with air space between the ground and the sign face.



(154) Functionality Dependent Facility - means a facility which
cannot be used for its intended purpose unless it is located in
close proximity to water, limited to a docking or port facility
necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers,
shipbuilding, or ship repair. The term does not include long-term
storage, manufacture, sales, or service facilities.

(155) Gated Community - A development that is enclosed within a
geographical area by restrictive gates.

(156) Gate - A crossbar, door, or other obstructive device which is
utilized for the purpose of restricting, controlling, or obstructing
entry or exit by motor vehicles or pedestrians to or from a private
roadway.

(157) Governmental Sign - A sign erected and maintained pursuant to
and in discharge of any governmental functions, or required by law,
ordinance or other governmental regulation.

(158) Grade - The level of the site at the property line located at the
closest distance to the sign.

(159) Ground Cover - means any natural vegetative growth or other
material which renders the soil surface stable against accelerated
erosion.

(160) Halfway House - A home for not more than nine person who
have demonstrated a tendency toward alcoholism, drug abuse,
mental illness, or antisocial or criminal conduct, together with not
more than two person providing supervision and other services to
such persons, the eleven of whom live together as a single
housekeeping unit.

(161) Handicapped or Inform Home - A residence within a single
dwelling unit for at least six but not more than nine persons who
are physically or mentally handicapped or inform, together with not
more than two persons providing care or assistance to such person,
all living together as a single housekeeping unit. Person residing in
such homes, including the aged and disabled, principally need
residential care rather than medical treatment.

(162) Hazardous Material - Any substance listed as such in: SARA
Section 302, Extremely Hazardous Substances, CERCLA Hazardous
Substances, or Section 311 of CWA (oil and hazardous substances).

(163) Hazardous Waste Management Facility - means, as defined in
NCGS 130A, Article 9, a facility for the collection, storage,
processing, treatment, recycling, recovery, or disposal of
hazardous waste.

(164) Height of Sign - Refer to measurement standards in Chapter 16
Article 11 Section 2.




(165) High Impact Land Use — For the purposes of this ordinance,
means any and all of the Category 1, Category 2, and Category 3
uses listed in Chapter 13.

(166) High Quality Water (HQW) Zones —means, for the Coastal
Counties, areas within 575 feet of High Quality Waters; and for the
remainder of the state, areas within one mile and draining to
HQW'’s.

(167) High Quality Waters - means those classified as such in 15A
NCAC 02B .0224, which is herein incorporated by reference
including subsequent amendments and additions.

(168) Highest Adjacent Grade (HAG) - means the highest natural
elevation of the ground surface, prior to construction,
immediately next to the proposed walls of the structure.

(169) Highway Sign - A sign directing attention to a business,
commodity, service or entertainment which is conducted, sold or
offered on premises other than the premises upon which the sign is
located.

(170) Historic Structure - means any structure that is:

(a) listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places
(a listing maintained by the US Department of Interior) or
preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the
National Register;

(b) certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of
Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a
registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered
historic district;

(c) individually listed on a local inventory of historic landmarks
in communities with a “Certified Local Government (CLG)
Program”; or

(d) certified as contributing to the historical significance of a
historic district designated by the County.

(171) Holiday Decorations - Signs or displays including lighting which
are a nonpermanent installation celebrating national, state, and
local holidays or holiday seasons.

(172) Home Occupation - An accessory use of a dwelling unit for
gainful employment which: is clearly incidental and subordinate to
the use of the dwelling unit; is carried on within or from accessory
buildings from the main dwelling unit and does not alter or change
the exterior character or appearances of the dwelling; is located in
a residential district; is created and operated as a sole
proprietorship.




(173) lllegal Sign - Any sign placed without proper approval or permits
as required by this Ordinance at the time of sign placement. lllegal
sign shall also mean any sign placed contrary to the terms or time
limits of any permit and any nonconforming sign which has not
been brought into compliance with any applicable provisions of this
Ordinance.

(174) llluminated Sign - A permanent sign for which an artificial source
of light is used in order to make readable the sign’s message,
including internally and externally lighted signs and reflectorized,
glowing or radiating signs.

(175) Immediate Family — A person’s parents, spouse, children, and
siblings, including the parent’s spouse. Includes step children and
adopted children and their spouses.

(176) Impervious Surface - Any material that substantially reduces or
prevents the infiltration of stormwater into previously undeveloped
land.

(177) Industrial — Use engaged in the manufacturing, and basic
processing of materials or products predominantly from extracted
or raw materials, or previously prepared materials, including
processing, fabrication, assembly, treatment, packaging, storage,
sales, and distribution of such products.

(178) Industrial Development (Re: watershed requlations only) - Any
non-residential development that requires an NPDES permit for an
industrial discharge and/or requires the use or storage of any
hazardous material for the purpose of manufacturing, assembling,
finishing, cleaning or developing any product or commodity.

(179) Ingress/Egress - The point where vehicles or pedestrians enter
and exit a development.

(180) Instructional Signs - A permanent sign clearly intended for
instructional purposes, as determined by the Administrator, shall
not be included in the permitted sum of the sign area of
identification wall signs, provided such sign is not larger than
necessary to serve the intended instructional purpose, and such
sign is not in a location, nor includes design characteristics, that
constitute or serve the purposes of an identification sign.

(181) Junk/Scrap Yards — An outdoor establishment primarily engaged

in the collection, sorting, outdoor storage and/or distribution of
recyclable scrap and waste materials including automobiles, cans,
steel containers, cast iron, appliances, construction materials, and
other ferrous metals.

(182) Kennel - A commercial operation that: (i) provides food and
shelter and care of animals for purposes not primarily related to




medical care (a kennel may or may not be run by or associated with
a veterinarian), or (ii) engages in the breeding of animals for sale.
(183) Key Box - A secure, tamperproof device with a lock operable only
by a fire department, police department, or emergency services
department master key, and containing building entry keys and
other such devices that may be required for access in an emergency.
(184) Lake or Natural Watercourse — means any stream, river, brook,

swamp, sound, bay, creek, run, branch, canal, waterway, estuary,

and any reservoir, Iake or pond ﬁatuFaI—eFH%peuﬁded—m—wmeh

(185) Land-disturbing Activity - means any use of the land by any
person in residential, industrial, educational, institutional, or
commercial development, highway and road construction and
maintenance that results in a change in the natural cover or
topography and that may cause or contribute to sedimentation.

(186) Landfill - A facility for the disposal of solid waste on land in a
sanitary manner in accordance with Chapter 130A Article 9 of the
N.C. General Statutes. For the purpose of this ordinance this term
does not include composting facilities.

(187) Landowner or Owner — The holder of the title in fee simple.
Absent evidence to the contrary, the County may rely on the county
tax records to determine who is a landowner. The landowner may
authorize a person holding a valid option, lease, or contract to
purchase to act as his or her agent or representative for the
purpose of making applications for development approvals.

(188) Large Wind Energy System - A wind energy conversion system

consisting of one or more wind turbine(s), a tower(s), and
associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated
capacity of more than 20 kW.

(189) Legislative Decision — The adoption, amendment, or repeal of a
regulation under this Title or applicable local act. The term also
includes the decision to approve, amend, or rescind a development
agreement consistent with the provisions of Article 1- of NCGS
160D.

(190) Leqislative Hearing — A Hearing to solicit public comment on a
proposed legislative decision.

(191) Length of Frontage - The measurement purposes, the length of
any primary or secondary frontage as defined in Chapter 16 Article
Il Section 3, shall be the sum of all wall lengths parallel, or nearly
parallel, to such frontage, excluding any such wall Ilength
determined by the Administrator or Planning Commission as clearly




unrelated to the frontage criteria. For buildings with two or more
frontages, the length and allowable sign area shall be calculated
separately for each such frontage. The building frontage for a
building unit shall be measured from the centerline of the party
walls defining the building unit.

(192) Letter of Map Change (LOMC) - means an official determination

issued by FEMA that amends or revises an effective Flood Insurance
Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study. Letters of Map Change
include:

@

(b)

©

(d)

Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An official amendment,
by letter, to an effective National Flood Insurance Program
map. A LOMA is based on technical data showing that a
property had been inadvertently mapped as being in the
floodplain, but is actually on natural high ground above the
base flood elevation. A LOMA amends the current effective
Flood Insurance Rate Map and establishes that a specific
property, portion of a property, or structure is not located in a
special flood hazard area.

Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): A revision based on technical
data that may show changes to flood zones, flood elevations,
special flood hazard area boundaries and floodway
delineations, and other planimetric features.

Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F): A
determination that a structure or parcel of land has been
elevated by fill above the BFE and is, therefore, no longer
located within the special flood hazard area. In order to
qualify for this determination, the fill must have been
permitted and placed in accordance with the community’s
floodplain management regulations.

Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR): A formal review
and comment as to whether a proposed project complies with
the minimum NFIP requirements for such projects with
respect to delineation of special flood hazard areas. A CLOMR
does not revise the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or
Flood Insurance Study; upon submission and approval of
certified as-built documentation, a Letter of Map Revision may
be issued by FEMA to revise the effective FIRM.

(193) Licensee - means a person in whose name a license to operate a
sexually oriented business has been issued, as well as the individual
listed as an applicant on the application for a license; and in the case
of an employee, a person in whose name a license has been issued
authorizing employment in a sexually oriented business.

(194) Light Duty Truck - means any motor vehicle rated at 8,500
pounds Gross Vehicular Weight Rating or less which has a vehicular



curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less and which has a basic vehicle

frontal area of 45 square feet or less as defined in 40 CFR 86.082-2

and is:

(a) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or
is a derivation of such a vehicle, or

(b) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a
capacity of more than 12 persons; or

(c) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-
highway operation and use.

(195) Local Government - means any county, incorporated village,
town or city, or any combination of counties, incorporated villages,
towns, and cities, acting through a joint program pursuant to the
provisions of the Act.

(196) Logo, Logogram, or Logotype - An emblem, letter, character,
pictograph, trademark, or symbol used to represent any firm,
organization, entity, or product.

(197) Lot - A parcel of land occupied or capable of being occupied by a
building or group of buildings devoted to a common use, together
with the customary accessories and open spaces belonging to the
same.

(198) Lot Area - The total area circumscribed by the boundaries of a
lot, except that: (i) when the legal instrument creating a lot
shows the boundary of the lot extending into public street right-
of-way, then the lot boundary for purposes of computing the lot
area shall be street right-of-way line, or if the right-of-way line
cannot be determined, a line running parallel to and 30 feet from
the center of the traveled portion of the street, and (ii) in a
residential district, when a private road that served more than
three dwelling units is located along any lot boundary, then the
lot boundary for purposes of computing the lot area shall be
inside boundary of the traveled portion of that road.

(199) Lowest Adjacent Grade (LAG) - means the elevation of the
ground, sidewalk or patio slab immediately next to the building,
or deck support, after completion of the building.

(200) Lowest Floor - means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed
area (including basement). An unfinished or flood resistant
enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access.
or limited storage in an area other than a basement area is not
considered a building’s lowest floor, provided that such an
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of
the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this
ordinance.

(201) Major Mountain Ridge — A ridge with an elevation higher than
3000 feet above mean sea level and an elevation 500 feet or




more above the elevation of an adjacent valley floor including all
land within 100 feet below the elevation of any portion of such
line or surface along the crest.

(202) Major Variance (re: watershed regulations) - A variance that
results in any one or more of the following:

(a) the complete waiver of a management requirement; or

(b) the relaxation, by a factor of more than ten (10) percent,
of any management requirement that takes the form of a
numerical standard.

(203) Manufactured Home or Mobile Home — A-structure—as—defined
HNESGS3143-345(CH—A structure, transportable in one or more
sections, which in the traveling mode is eight body feet or more
in width, or 40 body feet or more in length, or, when erected on
site, is 320 or more square feet; and which is built on a
permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling, with
or without permanent foundation when connected to the
required utilities, including the plumbing, heating, air
conditioning and electrical systems contained therein.
"Manufactured home" includes any structure that meets all of
the requirements of this subsection except the size requirements
and with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a
certification required by the Secretary of HUD and complies with
the standards established under the Act. For manufactured
homes built before June 15, 1976, "manufactured home" means
a portable manufactured housing unit designed for
transportation on its own chassis and placement on a temporary
or semi-permanent foundation having a measurement of over 32
feet in length and over eight feet in width. "Manufactured home"
also means a double-wide manufactured home, which is two or
more portable manufactured housing units designed for
transportation on their own chassis that connect on site for
placement on a temporary or semi-permanent foundation having
a measurement of over 32 feet in length and over eight feet in
width. The term “manufactured home” does not include a
“recreational vehicle”.

(204) Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision — means a parcel or
contiguous parcels of land divided into two or more
manufactured home lots for rent or sale (applicable to Chapter 9
only); for land outside of flood hazard areas (all other chapters)
- the rental of any site or tract of land upon which three (3) or
more manufactured homes occupied for dwelling or sleeping
purposes are located. Leases of a term longer than ten (10)
years shall be constructed as a sale of property. In determining
the term of proposed lease, periods that may add to the original




term by options to renew or extend shall be included. Any sale
of land within the manufactured home park shall comply with the
Watauga County Ordinance to Govern Subdivision and Multi-
unit Structures. For purposes of this ordinance, the term
"mobile home" may be substituted for "manufactured home."

(205) Map Repository - means the location of the official flood
hazard data to be applied for floodplain management. It is a
central location in which flood data is stored and managed; in
North Carolina, FEMA has recognized that the application of
digital flood hazard data products have the same authority as
hard copy products. Therefore, the NCEM’s Floodplain Mapping
Program websites house current and historical flood hazard data.
For effective flood hazard data the NC FRIS website
(http://FRIS.NC.GOV/FRIS) is the map repository, and for
historical  flood hazard data the FloodNC  website
(http://FLOODNC.GOV/NCFLOOD) is the map repository.

(206) Market Value” means the building value, not including the
land value and that of any accessory structures or other
improvements on the lot. Market value may be established by
independent certified appraisal; replacement cost depreciated for
age of building and quality of construction (Actual Cash Value);
or adjusted tax assessed values.

(207) Marquee - A permanent roof-like shelter extending from part or
all of a building face and constructed of some durable material
which may or may not project over a public right-of-way.

(208) Margquee Sign - A permanent sign painted on or attached to or
supported by a marquee.

(209) Massage - means the manipulation of body muscular tissue by
rubbing, stroking, kneading, or tapping, by hand or mechanical
device.

(210) Massage Business - means any establishment or business wherein
massage is practiced, including establishments commonly known as
health clubs, physical culture studios, massage studios, or massage
parlors.

(211) Mean Sea Level - means, for purposes of this ordinance, the
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) as corrected in 1929,
the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) as corrected in 1988,
or other vertical control datum used as a reference for
establishing varying elevations within the floodplain, to which
Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) shown on a FIRM are referenced.
Refer to each FIRM panel to determine datum used.

(212) Minor Variance (re: watershed reqgulations) - A variance that
does not qualify as a major variance.

(213) Madifications - Any structural changes from the original




configuration (new or existing), change from manual to electric,
change of electronic control operation or alterations requiring a
permit.

(214) Modular Home - A dwelling unit constructed to accordance with
the standards as set forth in the state building code applicable to
site-built homes and composed of components substantially
assembled in a manufacturing plant and transported to the building
site for final assembly on permanent foundation. Among other
possibilities, a modular home may consist of two sections
transported to the site in a manner similar to a mobile home
(except that the modular home meets the county building code
applicable to site built homes), or a series of panels or room
sections transported on a truck or erected or joined together on the
site.

(215) Monopole — A single, freestanding pole-type structure supporting
one or more antennas. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a
monopole is not a tower or a utility pole.

(216) Motor Sports Facility — A facility, track or course open to the

general public or accessed by more than five (5) simultaneous
riders outside of the owner’s immediate family upon which motor
sports racing, racing practice or motor sports related activity is
conducted and may include paved or dirt tracks, spectator
seating/standing areas, concession areas, restrooms, parking
facilities, and broadcast platforms or booths.

(217) Multi-Family Development - Three or more dwelling units
intended for residential occupancy contained within one building or
a Planned Unit Development.

(218) Mural - A picture on an exterior surface of a structure. A mural is
a sign only if it is related by language, logo, or pictorial depiction to
the advertisement of any product or service or the identification of
any business.

(219) Natural Erosion - means the wearing away of the earth’s surface
by water, wind, or other natural agents under natural
environmental conditions undisturbed by man.

(220) Neon Sign - A sign with tubing that is internally illuminated by
neon or other electrically charged gas.

(221) New Construction - means structures for which the “start of
construction” commenced on or after the effective date of the
initial floodplain management regulations and includes any
subsequent improvements to such structures.

(222) Nonconforming lot of record - A lot described by a plat or a deed
that was recorded prior to the effective date of local regulations (or




their amendments) that does not meet the minimum lot-size or
other development requirements of these rules.

(223) Nonconforming Sign - A sign which was validly installed under
laws or ordinances in effect at the time of its installation, but which
is in conflict with the current provisions of this Ordinance.

(224) Nonconforming Situation - A situation that occurs when, on the
effective date of this chapter, any existing lot or structure or use of
an existing lot or structure does not conform to one or more of the
regulations applicable to the district in which the lot or structure is
located. Among other possibilities, a non-conforming situation may
arise because a lot does not meet minimum acreage requirements,
because structures exceed maximum height limitations, because
the relationship between existing buildings and the land (in such
matters as density and setback requirements) is not in conformity
with this chapter, or because land or buildings are used for
purposes made unlawful by this chapter.

(225) Nonconforming Use - A nonconforming situation that occurs
when property is used for a purpose or in a manner unlawful by the
use regulations applicable to the district in which the property is
located. (For example, a commercial office building in a residential
district may be a nonconforming use). The term also refers to the
activity that constitutes the use made of the property. (For
example, all activity associated with operating a retail clothing store
in a residentially zoned area constitutes a nonconforming use).

(226) Non-Encroachment Area - means the channel of a river or
other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be
reserved in order to discharge the base flood without
cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than
one (1) foot as designated in the Flood Insurance Study report.

(227) Non-residential Development - All development other than
residential development, agriculture and silviculture.

(228) Nude Model Studio - means any place where a person who
appears semi-nude, in a state of nudity, or who displays "specified
anatomical areas” and is provided to be observed, sketched, drawn,
painted, sculptured, photographed, or similarly depicted by other
persons who pay money or any form of consideration. Nude Model
Studio shall not include a proprietary school licensed by the State of
North Carolina or a college, junior college or university supported
entirely or in part by public taxation; a private college or university
which maintains and operates educational programs in which credits
are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported
entirely or partly by taxation; or in a structure: (a) that has no sign
visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that
indicates a nude or semi-nude person is available for viewing; and




(b)where in order to participate in a class a student must enroll at
least three days in advance of the class; and (c)where no more than
one nude or semi-nude model is on the premises at any one time.

(229) Nudity or a State of Nudity - means the showing of the human
male or female genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus, anal cleft or
cleavage with less than a fully opaque covering, the showing of the
female breast with less than a fully opaque covering of any part of
the nipple, or the showing of the covered male genitals in a
discernibly turgid state.

(230) Nursing Home — A facility, however named, which is advertised,

announced, or maintained for the express or implied purpose of
providing nursing or convalescent care for three or more persons
unrelated to the operator.

(231) Official Maps or Plans - Any maps or plans officially adopted by
the County Commissioners as a guide to the development of the
County.

(232) Off-Premises Sign - Any sign normally used for promoting an
interest other than that of a business, individual, products, or
service available on the premises where the sign is located.

(233) On-Premises Sign - Any sign used for promoting a business,
individual, product or service available on the premises where the
sign is located.

(234) Ordinance Administrator — The Watauga County Department of

Planning and Inspections.

(235) Ordinary Maintenance - Ensuring that wireless facilities and
wireless support structures are kept in good operating condition.
Ordinary maintenance includes inspections, testing and
modifications that maintain functional capacity and structural
integrity; for example, the strengthening of a wireless support
structure's foundation or of the wireless support structure itself.
Ordinary maintenance includes replacing antennas of a similar size,
weight, shape and color and accessory equipment within an existing
equipment compound and relocating the antennas to different
height levels on an existing monopole or tower upon which they are
currently located. Ordinary maintenance does not include
substantial modifications.

(236) Parent — means an affiliate that directly, or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, controls another person.

(237) Parking Space - A portion of the vehicle accommodation area set
aside for the parking of one vehicle.

(238) Person - means any individual, partnership, firm, association,




joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate,
commission, board, public or private institution, utility, cooperative,
interstate body, or other legal entity.

(239) Person Conducting land-Disturbing Activity - means any person
who may be held responsible for violation unless expressly provided
otherwise by this Ordinance, the Act, or any order adopted
pursuant to this Ordinance or the Act.

(240) Person who Violates or Violator - Person Who Violates or
Violator, as used in G.S. 113A-64, means: any landowner or other
person who has financial or operational control over the land-
disturbing activity; or who has directly or indirectly allowed the
activity, and who has failed to comply with any provision of the Act,
the rules of this Chapter or any order or local ordinance adopted

pursuant to the Act as it imposes a duty upon that person.

(241) of Grading—means—one—o o-types-of grading:
fine-
(242) Planned Unit Development (PUD) - The planned unit

development is a permitted use designed to provide for
developments incorporating a single type or a variety of related
uses which are planned and developed as a unit. Such development
may consist of individual lots or common building sites. Common
land must be an element of the plan related to affecting the long-
term value of the entire development.

(243) Planning Board — Any board or commission established pursuant
to NCGS 160D-301.

(244) Plat - A map or plan of a parcel of land which is to be, or has
been, subdivided.

(245) Post-FIRM - means construction or other development for
which the “start of construction” occurred on or after the
effective date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.

(246) Pre-FIRM - means construction or other development for
which the “start of construction” occurred before the effective
date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.

(247) Primary and Secondary Frontage - The frontage of any building
or site shall include the elevation(s) facing a public street, facing a
primary parking area for the building or tenants, or containing the
public entrance(s) to the building or building units. For multi-
tenant buildings, the portion of such building that is owned, or
leased by a single tenant, shall be considered a building unit. The
primary frontage shall be considered the portion of any frontage
containing the primary public entrance(s) to the building or building
units. The secondary frontage shall include frontages containing
secondary public entrances to the building or building units, and all




walls facing a public street or primary parking area not designated
as the primary frontage.

(248) Principally Above Ground - means that at least 51% of the
actual cash value of the structure is above ground.

(249) Private Driveway - A roadway serving three (3) or fewer lots,
building sites or other divisions of land and not intended to be
public ingress or egress.

(250) Private Streets - Internal streets that are not owned or
maintained by North Carolina Department of Transportation and that
are owned and maintained by an entity responsible for upkeep and
maintenance, such as a homeowners association, community group,
property management company, or similar organization.

(251) Processing — Any technique designed to change the physical,

chemical, or biological character or composition of any material so
as to render it safe for transport; amenable to recovery, storage or
recycling; safe for disposal; or reduced in volume or concentration.

(252) Projecting Sign - A permanent sign which projects from and is
supported by a wall or parapet of a building with the display surface
of the sign in a plane perpendicular to or approximately
perpendicular to the wall. See also Canopy sign.

(253) Propane — A heavy flammable gaseous alkane C3H8, found in

crude petroleum and natural gas, also known as LP Gas.

(254) Propane, Gasoline or Fuel Oil Bulk Storage Facilities — A facility
whose primary purpose is the storage, distribution, mixing or
transfer of flammable or combustible liquids or gases received by or
transferred by tank vessel, pipelines, tank car, piping, or portable
tank or container. This definition shall not include filling stations
used solely for distribution to individual consumers.

(255) Protected Area - The area adjoining and upstream of the critical
area of WS-IV watersheds. The boundaries of the protected area
are defined as within five miles of and draining to the normal pool
elevation of the reservoir or to the ridgeline of the watershed; or
within 10 miles upstream and draining to the intake located directly
in the stream or river or to the ridgeline of the watershed.

(256) Public Outdoor Recreation Area — A tract of land owned by a
government agency or a non-profit community group intended
for use for active or passive recreation. This does not include
similarly owned land intended for conservation.

(257) Public Safety and/or Nuisance - means anything which is
injurious to the safety or health of an entire community or




neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, or
unlawfully obstructs the free passage or use, in the customary
manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay, stream, canal, or
basin.

(258) Qualified Individual. A person certified to perform stream
determinations by completing and passing the Surface Water
Identification Training and Certification (SWITC) course offered
by the N.C. Div. of Water Resources at N.C. State University.

(259) Quarry/Stone Crusher — A place from which dimension stone,
rock, construction aggregate, riprap, sand, gravel, or slate is
excavated from the ground and/or processed for use.

(260) Quasi-judicial Decision — A decision involving the finding of facts
regarding a specific application of a development regulation and
that requires the exercise of discretion when applying the standards
of the regulation. The term includes, but is not limited to, decisions
involving  variances, special use permits, certificate of
appropriateness, and appeals of administrative determinations.
Decisions on the approval of subdivision plats and site plans are
quasi-judicial in nature if the regulation authorizes a decision-
making board to approve or deny the application based not only
upon whether the application complies with the specific
requirements set forth in the regulation, but also on whether the
application complies with one or more generally stated standards
requiring a discretionary decision on the findings to be made by the
decision-making board.

(261) Recovered Material — A material that has known recycling
potential, can be feasibly recycled, and has been diverted or
removed from the solid waste stream for sale, use, or reuse.

(262) Recreational Vehicle (RV) - means a vehicle, which is:

(a) Dbuilt on a single chassis;

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest
horizontal projection;

(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a
light duty truck; and

(d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling,
but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping,
travel, or seasonal use.

(e) Is fully licensed and ready for highway use.



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dimension_stone
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rock_(geology)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Construction_aggregate
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Riprap
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sand
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gravel
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Slate

For the purpose of this ordinance, “Tiny Homes/Houses” and
Park Models that do not meet the items listed above are not
considered Recreational Vehicles and should meet the standards
of and be permitted as Residential Structures.

(263) Recycling Facility — A building or structure used for the indoor
collection, separation, storage and/or processing of recovered
materials including non-ferrous metals and may include a time-
limited outdoor material collection area. It does not include a
thrift store, antique or secondhand store.

(264) Reference Level - is the top of the lowest floor for structures
within Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Zone AI-A30,
AE, A, A99 or AO.

(265) Requlatory Flood Protection Elevation - means the “Base
Flood Elevation” plus the “Freeboard”. In “Special Flood Hazard
Areas” where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been
determined, this elevation shall be the BFE plus two (2) feet of
freeboard. In “Special Flood Hazard Areas” where no BFE has
been established, this elevation shall be at least two (2) feet
above the highest adjacent grade.

(266) Religious Facility — A facility operated by religious
organizations for worship, religious activity or instruction, and
related accessory uses on the same site including living quarters
and/or child care operations. Solo cemeteries are excluded.

(267) Remedy a Violation - means to bring the structure or other
development into compliance with State and community
floodplain management regulations, or, if this is not possible, to
reduce the impacts of its noncompliance. Ways that impacts may
be reduced include protecting the structure or other affected
development from flood damages, implementing the
enforcement provisions of the ordinance or otherwise deterring
future similar violations, or reducing Federal financial exposure
with regard to the structure or other development.

(268) Replacement Pole — Pole of equal proportions and of equal
height or such other height that would not constitute a
substantial modification to an existing structure in order to
support wireless facilities or to accommodate collocation.
Requires removal of the wireless support structure it replaces.




(269) Replacement Value — The cost to restore a structure to its
previously existing condition as computed by an appraisal which has
been conducted by an appraiser holding a North Carolina State
Certified General Real Estate Appraisal License and conducted in
compliance with generally accepted practices within the appraisal
community.

(270) Residence, Duplex - A two-family residential use in which the
dwelling units share a common wall (including without limitation the
wall of an attached garage or porch) and in which each dwelling
unit has living space on the ground floor and a separate, ground
floor entrance.

(271) Residence, Multi-Family - A residential use consisting of a
building containing three or more dwelling units. For purposes of
this definition, a building includes all dwelling units that are
enclosed within that building or attached to it by a common floor or
wall (even the wall of an attached garage or porch).

(272) Residence, Single-Family Detached - A residential use consisting
of a single detached building containing one dwelling unit and
located on a lot or tract.

(273) Residence, Two-Family - A residential use consisting of a building
containing two dwelling units. If two dwellings units share a
common wall, even the wall of an attached garage or porch, the
dwelling units shall be considered to be located in one building.

(274) Residential Development - Buildings for residence such as
attached and detached single-family dwellings, apartment
complexes, condominiums, townhouses, cottages, etc., and their
associated outbuildings such as garages, storage buildings,
gazebos, etc., and customary home occupations.

(275) Residential Subdivisions - A collection of land parcels designated
and platted (mapped) exclusively for residential development.

(276) Residuals. Any solid or semi-solid waste generated from a
wastewater treatment plant, water treatment plant or air pollution
control facility permitted under the authority of the Environmental
Management Commission.

(277) Revolving or Rotating Sign - An Animated Sign.

(278) Right of Way - A strip of land designated by the owner or other
authority or acquired by other over which other person may legally
pass, and on which may be constructed a road or utilities.

(279) Riverine - means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river
(including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.

(280) Road, County Standard, Private - A road constructed and
dedicated in accordance with provisions as set forth in Chapter 18
Article VI, Section 2, with provisions for private maintenance.




(281) Road, State Standard, Public - A dedicated and accepted public
right-of-way for vehicular traffic on which is constructed a road
which meets the specifications of North Carolina Department of
Transportation, (See Chapter 18 Article VI, Section 2).

(282) Road - All private ways used to provide motor vehicle access to
(i) two or more lots or (ii) two or more distinct areas or buildings in
unsubdivided developments.

(283) Roof Sign - Any sign erected upon a roof, parapet, or roof-
mounted equipment structure and extending above a roof, parapet,
or roof-mounted equipment structure of a building or structure.

(284) Rummage Sales - A sale by a non-profit organization where
individual members bring personal property to be sold in order to
raise funds for the organization.

(285) Salvage Yard - means any non-residential property used for
the storage, collection, and/or recycling of any type of
equipment, and including but not limited to vehicles, appliances
and related machinery.

(286) Sediment - means solid particulate matter, both mineral and
organic, that has been or is being transported by water, air,
gravity, or ice from its site of origin.

(287) Sedimentation - means the process by which sediment resulting
from accelerated erosion has been or is being transported off the
site of the land-disturbing activity or into a lake or natural
watercourse.

(288) Semi-Nude or in a Semi-Nude Condition - means the showing of
the female breast below a horizontal line across the top of the areola
at its highest point or the showing of the male or female buttocks.
This definition shall include the entire lower portion of the human
female breast, but shall not include any portion of the cleavage of the
human female breast, exhibited by a dress, blouse, skirt, leotard,
bathing suit, or other wearing apparel provided the areola is not
exposed in whole or in part.

(289) Sewage Treatment Systems —

(a) Individual Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal systems
designed to serve a single connection utilizing the soil for the
subsurface disposal of partially treated or treated sewage
effluent. Individual systems with a design capacity of less
than 3,000 gallons per day will be designed and approved by
the Appalachian District Health Department. Individual
systems with a design capacity of 3,000 gallons per day or
more will be designed by a professional engineer and
approved by the designated state agency or the Appalachian
District Health Department, whichever is applicable.




Individual systems may be shared upon approval of the
appropriate agency.

(b) Non-Discharge Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal
systems designed to serve multiple connections utilizing the
soil for the subsurface disposal of partially treated or treated
sewage effluent. Non-Discharge systems will be approved by
the designated state agency.

(c) NPDES Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal systems
designed to serve multiple connections discharging into
surface waters of the state and subject to the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit
program. NPDES systems include those that are owned and
operated by the County, a municipality, a sanitary district, a
property owners association, utility company and any
connections thereto. NPDES Systems will be approved by the
designated state agency.

(290) Sexual Encounter Center - means a business or commercial
enterprise that, as one of its principal business purposes, offers for
any form of consideration:

(a) physical contact in the form of wrestling or tumbling between
persons of the opposite sex; or

(b) activities between male and female persons and/or persons of
the same sex when one or more of the persons is in a state of
nudity or semi-nude.

(291) Sexually Oriented Business - means an adult arcade, adult
bookstore, adult novelty store, adult video store, adult cabaret, adult
motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, escort agency,
nude model studio, or sexual encounter center.

(292) Sexually Oriented Devices - means without limitation any artificial
or simulated specified anatomical area or other device or
paraphernalia that is designed principally for specified sexual
activities but shall not mean any contraceptive device.

(293) Sign - Any name, figure, character, outline, display,
announcement, or device, or structure supporting the same, or any
other device of similar nature designed to attract attention
outdoors, and shall include all parts, portions, units, and materials
composing the same, together with the frame, background, and
supports or anchoring thereof. A sign shall not include any
architectural or landscape features that may also attract attention.

(294) Sign Face - An exterior display surface of a sign including
nonstructural trim exclusive of the supporting structure.

(295) Sign Permit - A permit issued by the land-use administrator that
authorizes the recipient to erect, move, enlarge, or substantially
alter a sign.




(296) Siltation - means sediment resulting from accelerated erosion
which is settleable or removable by properly designed, constructed,
and maintained control measures; and which has been transported
from its point of origin within the site of a land-disturbing activity;
and which has been deposited, or is in suspension in water.

(297) Site - All the contiguous ground area legally assembled into one
development location or individual lot defined as a permanent
parcel (lot of record), multiple lots of record, or a portion of a lot of
record.

(298) Site Plan - A scaled drawing and supporting text showing the
relationship between lot lines and the existing or proposed uses,
buildings, or structures on the lot. The site plan may include site-
specific details such as building areas, building height and floor
area, setbacks from lot lines and street rights-of-way, intensities,
densities, utility lines and locations, parking, access points, roads,
and stormwater control facilities that are depicted to show
compliance with all legally required development regulations that
are applicable to the project and the site plan review. A site plan
approval based solely upon application of objective standards is an
administrative decision and a site plan approval based in whole or
in part upon the application of standards involving judgment and
discretion is a quasi-judicial decision. A site plan may also be
approved as part of a conditional zoning decision.

(299) Small Wind Energy System - A wind energy conversion

system consisting of a single wind turbine, a tower, and
associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated
capacity of not more than 20 kW. Multiple systems located on
agricultural farms as defined in the Watauga County High Impact
Land Use Ordinance are also considered small wind energy
systems even if the aggregate kW exceeds 20, provided the
primary intent is to generate power to reduce on-site
consumption.

(300) Solid Waste Disposal Facility - means any facility involved in
the disposal of solid waste, as defined in NCGS 130A-
290(a)(35).

(301) Solid Waste Disposal Site - means, as defined in NCGS 130A-
290(a)(36), any place at which solid wastes are disposed of by
incineration, sanitary landfill, or any other method.

(302) Special Event Sign - A temporary sign advertising or pertaining
to any annual or seasonal event of interest to, open to, or available
to, the general public.




(303) Special Events - Circuses, fairs, carnivals, festivals, or other

types of special events that (i) run for longer than one day but not
longer than two weeks, (ii)are intended to or likely to attract
substantial crowds, and (iii) are unlike the customary or usual
activities generally associated with the property where the special
event is to be located.

(304) Special Flood Hazard Area (SEHA) - means the land in the

floodplain subject to a one percent (1%) or greater chance of
being flooded in any given year. as determined in Article 3,
Section B of this ordinance.

(305) Special Use Permit - A permit issued to authorize

development or land uses in a particular zoning district upon
presentation of competent, material, and substantial evidence
establishing compliance with one or more general standards
requiring that judgment and discretion be exercised as well as
compliance with specific standards. The term includes permits
previously referred to as conditional use permits or special
exceptions.
(306) Specified Anatomical Areas - means less than completely and

opaquely covered: human genitals, pubic region, buttock, or female
breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola; or
human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely
and opaquely covered.

(307) Specified Criminal Activity - means any of the following offenses:

@

()

prostitution or promotion of prostitution; dissemination of
obscenity; sale, distribution or display of harmful material to a
minor; sexual performance by a child; possession or
distribution of child pornography; public lewdness; indecent
exposure; indecency with a child; engaging in organized
criminal activity; sexual assault; molestation of a child;
gambling; or distribution of a controlled substance; or any
similar offenses to those described above under the criminal or
penal code of other states or countries;

for which:

(1) less than two years have elapsed since the date of
conviction or the date of release from confinement
imposed for the conviction, whichever is the later date, if
the conviction is of a misdemeanor offense;

(2) less than five years have elapsed since the date of
conviction or the date of release from confinement for
the conviction, whichever is the Ilater date, if the
conviction is of a felony offense; or

(3) less than five years have elapsed since the date of the
last conviction or the date of release from confinement



for the last conviction, whichever is the later date, if the
convictions are of two or more misdemeanor offenses or
combination of misdemeanor offenses occurring within
any 24-month period.

(c) The fact that a conviction is being appealed shall have no effect
on the disqualification of the applicant or a person residing with
the applicant.

(308) Specified Sexual Activities - means human genitals in a state of
sexual stimulation or arousal; acts of human masturbation, sexual
intercourse or sodomy; or fondling or other erotic touching of human
genitals, pubic regions, buttocks, or female breasts.

(309) Stable - A building in which horses or other livestock are kept for
commercial use including boarding, hire, and sell.

(310) Start of Construction - includes substantial improvement, and
means the date the building permit was issued provided the
actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation,
addition placement, or other improvement was within 180 days
of the permit date. The actual start means either the first
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site,
such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles,
the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of
excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a
foundation. Permanent construction does not include land
preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it
include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it
include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or
foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it
include the installation on the property of accessory buildings,
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not
part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the
actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall,
ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or
not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the
building.

(311) Stormwater Control Measure (SCM). means a permanent
structural device that is designed, constructed, and maintained
to remove pollutants from stormwater runoff by promoting
settling or filtration; or to mimic the natural hydrologic cycle by
promoting infiltration, evapo-transpiration, post-filtration
discharge, reuse of stormwater or a combination thereof.

(312) Stormwater Runoff - means the surface—How runoff of water
resulting from precipitation in any form and occurring immediately
after rainfall or melting.

(313) Storm Drainage Facilities - means the system of inlets, conduits,




channels, ditches and appurtenances which serve to collect and

convey storm water through and from a given drainage area.

(314) Storm water collection system - Any conduit, pipe, channel, curb
or gutter for the primary purpose of transporting (not treating)
runoff. A storm water collection system does not include vegetated
swales, swales stabilized with armoring and/or alternative methods
where natural topography prevents the use of vegetated swales
(subject to case-by-case review, curb outlet systems or pipes used
to carry drainage underneath built-upon surfaces that are
associated with development controlled by the provisions of 15A
NCAC 2H. 1003 (c)(1).

(315) Structure - means a walled and roofed building, a
manufactured home, or a gas, liquid or liquefied gas storage
tank that is principally above ground.

(316) Subdivider - Any person, firm, or corporation who subdivides or
develops any land deemed to be a subdivision.

(317) Subdivision - A "subdivision” shall include all divisions of a tract
of land into two or more lots, building sites, (including buildings
constructed for rental purposes) or other divisions when any one or
more of those divisions are created for the purpose whether
immediate or future, of sale or building development, and shall
include all divisions of land involving the dedication of a new street
or a change in existing streets; provided, however, that the
following shall not be included within this definition nor be subject
to the regulations prescribed by this ordinance:

(a) The combination or recombination of portions of previously
platted lots where the total number of lots is not increased
and the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards of
the county as shown in this ordinance, and documented with
a recorded plat or a map attached to recorded deed(s).

(b) The division of land into parcels greater than (10) acres
where no street right-of-way dedication is involved.

(c) The public acquisition by purchase of strips of land for the
widening or opening of streets.

(d) The division of a tract in single ownership whose entire area is
no greater than two (2) acres into not more than three (3)
lots, where no street right-of-way dedication is involved, and
where the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards
of the county as shown in this ordinance.

(e) The division of land solely among members of the same
family, which shall include all lineal descendants or ancestors
plus brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, fathers-in-law, mothers-
in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, nieces, nephews and
stepchildren by any method of transfer except where the




parties contemplate development for resale, and where the
resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards of the
county as shown in this ordinance.

(f) The division of land by court ordered/approved division
except where the parties contemplate development for resale.

(318) Subsidiary — means an affiliate that is directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, controlled by another person.

(319) Substantial Damage - means damage of any origin sustained
by a structure during any five-year period whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would
equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure
before the damage occurred, See definition of “substantial
improvement”.

(320) Substantial Enlargement of a Sexually Oriented Business - means
the increase in floor areas occupied by the business by more than
twenty-five percent (25%), as the floor areas exist on the date this
ordinance takes effect.

(321) Substantial Improvement - means any combination of
repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
improvement of a structure, taking place during any five-year
period for which the cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the “start of construction”
of the improvement. This term includes structures which have
incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the actual repair
work performed. The term does not, however, include either:

(a) any correction of existing violations of State or community
health, sanitary. or safety code specifications which have
been identified by the community code enforcement official
and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living
conditions; or

(b) any alteration of a historic structure, provided that the
alteration will not preclude the structure’s continued
designation as a historic structure.

(322) Substantial Modification - The mounting of a proposed wireless
facility or wireless facilities on a wireless support structure that
substantially changes the physical dimensions of the support
structure. A mounting is presumed to be a substantial modification
if it meets any one or more of the following criteria:

(a) increases the existing vertical height of the wireless support
structure by
(1) more than ten percent (10%), or
(2) the height of one additional antenna array with

separation from the nearest existing antenna not to
exceed twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater;




(b) adds an appurtenance to the body of a wireless support
structure that protrudes horizontally from the edge of the
wireless support structure more than twenty (20) feet, or
more than the width of the wireless support structure at the
level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater (except where
necessary to shelter the antenna from inclement weather or
to connect the antenna to the tower via cable);

(c) increases the square footage of the existing equipment
compound by more than 2,500 square feet.

(323) Surface Waters - All waters of the State as defined in NCGS 143-
212 except underground waters.

(324) Technical Bulletin and Technical Fact Sheet - means a FEMA

publication that provides guidance concerning the building
performance standards of the NFIP, which are contained in Title 44
of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations at Section 60.3. The
bulletins and fact sheets are intended for use primarily by State and
local officials responsible for interpreting and enforcing NFIP
regulations and by members of the development community, such
as design professionals and builders. New bulletins, as well as
updates of existing bulletins, are issued periodically as needed. The
bulletins do not create regulations; rather they provide specific
guidance for complying with the minimum requirements of existing
NFIP regulations.
It should be noted that Technical Bulletins and Technical Fact
Sheets provide guidance on the minimum requirements of the NFIP
regulations. State or community requirements that exceed those of
the NFIP take precedence. Design professionals should contact the
community officials to determine whether more restrictive State or
local regulations apply to the building or site in question. All
applicable standards of the State or local building code must also be
met for any building in a flood hazard area.

(325) Temperature Controlled - means having the temperature
regulated by a heating and/or cooling system, built-in or appliance.

(326) Temporary Emergency, Construction, or Repair Residence - A
residence (which may be a mobile home) that is:

(a) located on the same lot as a residence made uninhabitable by
fire, flood, or other natural disaster and occupied by the
person displaced by such disaster, or

(b) located on the same lot as a residence that is under
construction or undergoing substantial repairs or
reconstruction and occupied by the person intending to live in
such permanent residence when the work is completed, or




(c) located on a nonresidential construction site and occupied by
persons having construction or security responsibilities over
such construction site.

(327) Temporary Sign - A sign utilized for a limited time which is not
permanently anchored or secured to a building or the ground and
may be easily moved from one location to another. Examples
include air-activated motion signs, balloon signs, banner signs, yard
signs, feather flag signs, portable message center signs, snipe
signs, and sidewalk signs.

(328) Ten-Year Storm - means the—storm—water—+runoffresultingfrom
preeipitation a rainfall of an intensity that, based on historical data,
is predicted by a method acceptable to the Approving Authority
expeeted-to be equaled or exceeded, on the average, once in ten
years, and of a duration whieh that will produce the maximum peak
rate of runoff for the watershed of interest under average
antecedent wetness conditions.

(329) Tower - A lattice-type structure, guyed or freestanding, that
supports one or more antennas.

(330) Toxic Substance - Any substance or combination of substances
(including disease causing agents), which after discharge and upon
exposure, ingestion, inhalation, or assimilation into any organism,
either directly from the environment or indirectly by ingestion
through food chains, has the potential to cause death, disease,
behavioral abnormalities, cancer, genetic mutations, physiological
malfunctions (including malfunctions or suppression in reproduction
or growth) or physical deformities in such organisms or their off
spring or other adverse health effects.

(331) Tract, erosion control reqgulations - means all contiguous land
and bodies of water being disturbed or to be disturbed as a unit,
regardless of ownership.

(332) Tract - A lot. The term tract is used interchangeably with the
term lot, particularly in the context of subdivisions, where one
“tract” is subdivided into several “lots.”

(333) Transfer of Ownership or Control of a Sexually Oriented Business -
means and includes any of the following:

(a) the sale, lease, or sublease of the business;

(b) the transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest
in the business, whether by sale, exchange, or similar means;
or

(c) the establishment of a trust, gift, or other similar legal device
which transfers the ownership or control of the business,
except for transfer by bequest or other operation of law upon
the death of the person possessing the ownership or control.




(334) Travel Trailer - A structure that (i) is intended to be transported
over the streets and highways (either as a motor vehicle or
attached to or hauled by a motor vehicle) and (ii) is designed for
temporary use as sleeping quarters but that does not satisfy one or
more of the definitional criteria of a mobile home.

(335) Twenty-five Year Storm - means-the-sterm-waterrunoffresulting
from—preeipitation a rainfall of an intensity that, based on historical
data, is predicted by a method acceptable to the Approving
Authority expeeted—to be equaled or exceeded, on the average,
once in 25 years, and of a duration whieh that will produce the
maximum peak rate of runoff for the watershed of interest under
average antecedent wetness conditions.

(336) Uncovered - means the removal of ground cover from, on, or
above the soil surface.

(337) Undertaken - means the initiating of any activity, or phase of
activity, which results or will result in a change in the ground cover
or topography of a tract of land.

(338) Unit - A structure or portion of a structure which is a single,
habitable dwelling or single place of business.

(339) Unzoned Commercial Area - A site outside of municipal and
county zoning jurisdiction which is within 660 feet of the nearest
edge of the primary highway right of way and is actually used for
commercial or industrial purposes.

(340) Use - The activity or function that actually takes place or is
intended to take place on a lot.

(341) Utility Facilities - Any above-ground structures or facilities (other
than buildings, unless such buildings are used as storage incidental
to operation of such structures or facilities) owned by a
governmental entity, a nonprofit organization, a corporation, or any
entity defined as a public utility for any purpose by the appropriate
provision of state law and used in connection with the production,
generation, transmission, delivery, collection, or storage of water,
sewage, solid waste, electricity, gas, oil or electronic signals.
Excepted from this definition are utility lines and supporting
structures.

(342) Utility Pole - A structure owned and/or operated by a public
utility, municipality, electric membership corporation or rural
electric cooperative that is designed specifically for and used to
carry lines, cables, or wires for telephone, cable television, or
electricity, or to provide lighting.

(343) \Variance - is a grant of relief from the requirements of this
ordinance.

(344) Vehicle Sign - A sign permanently or temporarily attached to or
placed on a vehicle or trailer.




(345) \Velocity - means—the—average—velocity—of flow—threugh-the—eross
. e 4 i I : I e e 4 :

perpendicular to the direction of the main channel at the peak flow
of the storm of interest but not exceeding bank full flows.

(346) Vested Right - The right to undertake and complete the
development and use of property under the terms and conditions of
an approval secured as specified in G.S. 160D-108 or under
common law.

(347) Visible - Capable of being seen without visual aid by a person of

normal acuity.

(348) Violation - means the failure of a structure or other development
to be fully compliant with the community's floodplain management
regulations. A structure or other development without the elevation
certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance
required in Articles 3 and 4 is presumed to be in violation until such
time as that documentation is provided.

(349) Wall Sign - A sign permanently attached to or painted on the
wall of a building or structure in a plane parallel or approximately
parallel to the plane of said wall.

(350) Waste - means surplus materials resulting from on-site land-
disturbing activities and being disposed of at other locations.

(351) Water Dependent Structure - Any structure for which the use
requires access to or proximity to or citing within surface waters to
fulfill its basic purpose, such as boat ramps, boat houses, docks and
bulkheads. Ancillary facilities such as restaurants, outlets for boat
supplies, parking lots and commercial boat storage areas are not
water dependent structures.

(352) Water Supply Systems —

(a) Individual Systems. A well, spring, stream or other source
used to supply a single connection.

(b) Community Systems. A water system serving two (2) or
more connections and not qualifying as a public water
supply (PWS) under North Carolina regulations.

(c) Public Systems. A water system owned and/or operated by
the county, any municipality, water district, property
owner's association, or utility company that qualifies as a
public water supply (PWS) under North Carolina regulations.




(353) Water Surface Elevation (WSE) - means the height, in relation
to mean—sealtevel NAVD 1988, of floods of various magnitudes
and frequencies in the floodplains of riverine areas.

(354) Water Tower - A water storage tank, or a standpipe or an
elevated tank situated on a support structure, originally
constructed for use as a reservoir or facility to store or deliver
water.

(355) Watercourse - means a lake, river, creek, stream, wash,
channel or other topographic feature on or over which waters
flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes specifically
designated areas in which substantial flood damage may occur.

(356) Watershed - The entire land area contributing surface
drainage to a specific point (e.g. the water supply intake.) or
alternatively, the geographic region within which water drains to
a particular river, stream or body of water.

(357) Wholesale Sales - On-premises sales of goods primarily to
customers engaged in the business of reselling the goods.

(358) Wind Turbine Height - The height above grade to the tip of the

turbine blade when it reaches its highest elevation.

(359) Window Sign - A sign viewable through and/or affixed in any
manner to a window or exterior glass door such that it is intended
to be viewable from the exterior (beyond the sidewalk immediately
adjacent to the window), including signs located inside a building
but visible primarily from the outside of the building.

(360) Window, Area of - The area of a single window includes all of the
window panes in an area that is separated by mullions, muntins, or
other dividers which are less than 3 inches wide.

(361) \Wireless Facility or Wireless Facilities - The set of equipment and
network components, exclusive of the underlying wireless support
structure, including, but not Ilimited to, antennas, accessory
equipment, transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies,
cabling and associated equipment necessary to provide wireless
telecommunications services.

(362) Wireless Support Structure - A freestanding structure, such as a
monopole or tower, designed to support wireless facilities. This
definition does not include utility poles.

(363) Wooded Area - An area if contiguous wooded vegetation where
trees are at a density of at least one six-inch or greater caliper tree
per 325 square feet of land and where the branches and leaves
form a contiguous canopy.

(364) i I iR . i
are-epenfor-business:




(365) Yard Sales - An occasional sale (no more than two (2) in a
twelve (12) month period) held for the purpose of disposing of
personal property. The term yard sale shall include attic sales,
garage sales and patio sales.

(366) Yard Setback - A required open space on a lot adjoining a lot
line, containing only landscaping or other uses. (front) A yard
extending along the full width of a front line between side lot lines
and from the front line to the front building line in depth, and the
face of the building which is paralleled to a public road. (rear) A
yard extending across the full width of the lot and lying between
the rear lot line and the nearest line of the building. (side) A yard
lying between the side line of the lot and nearest line of the building
and extending from the front yard to the rear yard, or in the
absence of either of such front or rear yards, to the front or rear lot
lines.

(367) Zoning Map Amendment or Rezoning - An amendment to a
zoning regulation for the purpose of changing the zoning district
that is applied to a specified property or properties. The term also
includes (i) the initial application of zoning when land is added to
the territorial jurisdiction of a local government that has previously
adopted zoning regulations and (ii) the application of an overlay
zoning district or a conditional zoning district. The term does not
include (i) the initial adoption of a zoning map by a local
government, (ii) the repeal of a zoning map and readoption of a
new zoning map for the entire planning and development regulation
jurisdiction, or (iii) updating the zoning map to incorporate
amendments to the names of zoning districts made by zoning text
amendments where there are no changes in the boundaries of the
zoning district or land uses permitted in the district.

(368) Zoning Permit - A permit issued by the zoning officer that
authorizes the recipient to make use of property in accordance with
the requirements of this ordinance.







CHAPTER 8 CONTROL OF SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION

These regulations are enacted under the delegation of authority by the NC
Sedimentation Control Commission, and pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article
4, and consist of the model ordinance developed by the Commission,
including local additions.

Article 1 Title

This chapter may be cited as the Watauga County Soil Erosion and
Sedimentation Control Ordinance.

Article 11 Purpose

This chapter is adopted for the purposes of:

(A) regulating certain land-disturbing activity to control accelerated
erosion and sedimentation in order to prevent the pollution of water
and other damage to lakes, watercourses, and other public and
private property by sedimentation; and

(B) establishing procedures through which these purposes can be
fulfilled.

Article 111 Scope and Exclusions

Section 1. Geographical Scope of Requlated Land-Disturbing
Activity.

This chapter shall apply to land-disturbing activity within the territorial
jurisdiction of the County and as allowed by agreement between local
governments, the extent of annexation or other appropriate legal instrument
or law.

Section 2. Exclusions from Reqgulated Land-Disturbing Activity.

Notwithstanding the general applicability of this chapter to all land-disturbing
activity, this chapter shall not apply to the following types of land-disturbing
activity:

(A) Activities, including the production and activities relating or
incidental to the production of crops, grains, fruits, vegetables,
ornamental and flowering plants, dairy, livestock, poultry, and all
other forms of agriculture undertaken on agricultural land for the
production of plants and animals useful to man, including, but not


https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter_113a.html
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter_113a.html

(B)

©
(D)

B
Q)

©)

limited to:

(1) forage and sod crops, grain and feed crops, tobacco, cotton,
and peanuts.

(2) dairy animals and dairy products.

(3) poultry and poultry products.

(4) livestock, including beef cattle, llamas, sheep, swine, horses,
ponies, mules, and goats.

(5) bees and apiary products.

(6) fur producing animals.

(7) mulch, ornamental plants, and other horticultural products.
For purposes of this section, "mulch™ means substances
composed primarily of plant remains or mixtures of such
substances.

An Activity undertaken on forestland for the production and

harvesting of timber and timber products and conducted in

accordance with standards defined by the Forest Practice Guidelines

Related to Water Quality (Best Management Practices), as adopted

by the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer

Services. If land-disturbing activity undertaken on forestland for

the production and harvesting of timber and timber products is not

conducted in accordance with standards defined by the Forest

Practice Guidelines Related to Water Quality, the provisions of this

ordinance shall apply to such activity and any related land-

disturbing activity on the tract.

An activity for which a permit is required under the Mining Act of

1971, Article 7 of Chapter 74 of the N.C. General Statutes.

A land-disturbing activity over which the State has exclusive

regulatory jurisdiction as provided in N.C.G.S. 113A-56(a).

An activity which is essential to protect human life during an
emergency.

Activities undertaken to restore the wetland functions of converted
wetlands to provide compensatory mitigation to offset impacts
permitted under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.

Activities undertaken pursuant to Natural Resources Conservation
Service standards to restore the wetlands functions of converted
wetlands as defined in Title 7 Code of Federal Regulations § 12.2

Section 3. Plan Approval Reguirement for Land-Disturbing Activity.

No person shall undertake any land-disturbing activity subject to this



ordinance without first obtaining an erosion and sedimentation control
plan (hereinafter “Plan”) approval therefor from the County.

Section 4. Protection of Property.

Persons conducting land-disturbing activity shall take all reasonable
measures to protect all public and private property from damage caused by
such activity.

Section 5. Plan Approval Exceptions.

Notwithstanding the general requirement to obtain a Plan approval prior to
undertaking land-disturbing activity, a Plan approval shall not be required for
land-disturbing activity that does not exceed 21,780 square feet in surface
area. In determining the area, lands under one or diverse ownership being
developed as a unit will be aggregated.

Article 1V _Mandatory Standards for Land-Disturbing Activity

No land-disturbing activity subject to the control of this chapter shall be
undertaken except in accordance with the following mandatory standards:

Section 1. Buffer Zone

(A) Standard Buffer. No land-disturbing activity during periods of
construction or improvement to land shall be permitted in proximity
to a lake or natural watercourse unless a buffer zone is provided
along the margin of the watercourse of sufficient width to confine
visible siltation within the twenty-five percent (25%) of the buffer
zone nearest the land-disturbing activity.

(1) Projects On, Over or Under Water. This subdivision shall not
apply to a land-disturbing activity in connection with the
construction of facilities to be located on, over, or under a
lake or natural watercourse.

(2) Buffer Measurement. Unless otherwise provided, the width of
a buffer zone is measured horizontally from the edge of the
water to the nearest edge of the disturbed area, with the 25
percent of the strip nearer the land-disturbing activity
containing natural or artificial means of confining visible
siltation.

(B) Trout Buffer. Waters that have been classified as trout waters by
the Environmental Management Commission shall have an
undisturbed buffer zone 25 feet wide or of sufficient width to
confine visible siltation within the twenty-five percent (25%) of the
buffer zone nearest the land-disturbing activity, whichever is




greater. Provided, however, that the Commission may approve

plans which include land-disturbing activity along trout waters when

the duration of said disturbance would be temporary and the extent
of said disturbance would be minimal.

(1) Projects On, Over or Under Water. This subdivision shall not
apply to a land-disturbing activity in connection with the
construction of facilities to be located on, over, or under a
lake or natural watercourse.

(2) Trout Buffer Measurement. The 25-foot minimum width for
an undisturbed buffer zone adjacent to designated trout
waters shall be measured horizontally from the top of the
bank to the nearest edge of the disturbed area.

(3) Limit on Land Disturbance. Where a temporary and minimal
disturbance has been permitted as an exception to the trout
buffer, land-disturbing activities in the buffer zone adjacent to
designated trout waters shall be limited to a maximum of ten
percent (10%) of the total length of the buffer zone within the
tract to be disturbed such that there is not more than 100
linear feet of disturbance in each 1000 linear feet of buffer
zone. Larger areas may be disturbed with the written
approval of the Director.

(4) Limit on Temperature Fluctuations. No land-disturbing
activity shall be undertaken within a buffer zone adjacent to
designated trout waters that will cause adverse temperature
fluctuations in the trout waters, as set forth in 15 NCAC
2B.0211 “Fresh surface Water Classification and Standards.”

Section 2. Graded Slopes and Fills.

The angle for graded slopes and fills shall be no greater than the angle that
can be retained by vegetative cover or other adequate erosion control
devices or structures. In any event, slopes left exposed will, within 21
calendar days of completion of any phase of grading, be planted or
otherwise provided with temporary or permanent ground cover, devices, or
structures sufficient to restrain erosion. The angle for graded slopes and fills
must be demonstrated to be stable. Stable is the condition where the soil
remains in its original configuration, with or without mechanical constraints.

Section 3. Fill Material.




Materials being used as fill shall be consistent with those described in 15A
NCAC 13B .0562 unless the site is permitted by the Department’s Division of
Waste Management to operate as a landfill. Not all materials described in
Section .0562 may be suitable to meet geotechnical considerations of the fill
activity and should be evaluated accordingly.

Section 4. Ground Cover.

Whenever land-disturbing activity that will disturb more than one acre is
undertaken on a tract, the person conducting the land-disturbing activity
shall install erosion and sedimentation control devices and practices that are
sufficient to retain the sediment generated by the land disturbing activity
within the boundaries of the tract during construction upon and development
of said tract, and shall plant or otherwise provide a permanent ground cover
sufficient to restrain erosion after completion of construction or
development. Except as provided in Article VII Section 2 (E) of this chapter,
provisions for a permanent ground cover sufficient to restrain erosion must

be accomplished within i5—werking—days—er 90 calendar days following
completion of construction or development, whicheverperiodis—shorter.

Section 5. Prior Plan Approval.

No person shall initiate any land-disturbing activity that will disturb more
than one acre on a tract unless, thirty (30) or more days prior to initiating
the activity, a Plan for the activity is filed with and approved by the County
or unless for land-disturbing activity of more than a half acre but less than
an acre the requirement for such plan had been waived as specified in Article
V. The County will attempt to review plans as quickly as possible. The
initiation of land-disturbing activities shall not be restricted when the plan is
approved and permit issued in less than 30 days.

The County shall forward to the Director of the Division of Water Resources a
copy of each Plan for a land-disturbing activity that involves the utilization of
ditches for the purpose of de-watering or lowering the water table of the
tract.

The land-disturbing activity shall be conducted in accordance with the
approved erosion and sedimentation control plan.

Article V_Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans

Section 1. Plan Submission.

A Plan shall be prepared for all land-disturbing activities subject to this
chapter whenever the proposed activity will disturb more than one-half acre



on a tract. For land-disturbing activity of a half-acre or more but less than
one acre, the Watauga County Department of Planning and Inspection may
waive the submission of an erosion control plan if, upon site inspection a
determination is made that the site does not have the potential to cause
erosion or off-site damage. A plan is required for all land-disturbing activity
of one acre or more. Three (3) copies of the Plan shall be filed with the
County; a copy shall be simultaneously submitted to the Watauga County
Soil and Water Conservation District at least 30 days prior to the
commencement of the proposed activity.

Section 2. Financial Responsibility and Ownership.

Plans may be disapproved unless accompanied by an authorized statement
of financial responsibility and ownership. This statement shall be signed by
the person financially responsible for the land-disturbing activity or his
attorney in fact. The statement shall include the mailing and street
addresses of the principal place of business of (1) the person financially
responsible, (2) the owner of the land, and (3) any registered agents. If the
person financially responsible is not a resident of North Carolina, a North
Carolina agent must be designated in the statement for the purpose of
receiving notice of compliance or non-compliance with the Plan, the Act, this
ordinance, or rules or orders adopted or issued pursuant to this ordinance.
Except as provided in sections (2) or (10) of this article, if the applicant is
not the owner of the land to be disturbed, the draft erosion and
sedimentation control plan must include the owner's written consent for the
applicant to submit a draft erosion and sedimentation control plan and to
conduct the anticipated land-disturbing activity.

If the applicant is not the owner of the land to be disturbed and the

anticipated land-disturbing activity involves the construction of utility lines
for the provision of water, sewer, gas, telecommunications, or electrical
service, the draft erosion and sedimentation control plan may be submitted
without the written consent of the owner of the land, so long as the owner of
the land has been provided prior notice of the project.

Section 3. Environmental Policy Act Document.

Any Plan submitted for a land-disturbing activity for which an environmental
document is required by the North Carolina Environment Policy Act (G.S.
113A-1, et seq.) shall be deemed incomplete until a complete environmental
document is available for review. The County shall promptly notify the
person submitting the Plan that the 30-day time limit for review of the Plan
pursuant to this ordinance shall not begin until a complete environmental
document is available for review.



Section 4. Content.

The Plan required by this section shall contain architectural or engineering
drawings, maps, assumptions, calculations, and narrative statements as
needed to adequately describe the proposed development of the tract and
the measures planned to comply with the requirements of this ordinance.
Plan content may vary to meet the needs of specific site requirements.
Detailed guidelines for Plan preparation may be obtained from the County on
request.

Section 5. Soil and Water Conservation District Comments.

The District shall review the Plan and submit any comments and
recommendations to the County within 20 days after the District received
the Plan, or within any shorter period of time as may be agreed upon by the
District and the County. Failure of the District to submit its comments and
recommendations within 20 days or within any agreed-upon shorter period
of time shall not delay final action on the Plan.

Section 6. Timeline for Decisions on Plans.

The County will review each complete Plan submitted to them and within 30
days of receipt thereof will notify the person submitting the Plan that it has
been approved, approved with modifications, appreved—with—performance
reservations; or disapproved. Failure to approve, approve with
modifications, or disapprove a complete Plan within 30 days of receipt shall
be deemed approval. The County will review each revised Plan submitted to
them and within 15 days of receipt thereof will notify the person submitting
the Plan that it has been approved, approved with modifications,—appreved
with-perfermanee—reservations; or disapproved. Failure to approve, approve
with modifications, or disapprove a revised Plan within 15 days of receipt
shall be deemed approval.

Section 7. Approval.

The County shall only approve a Plan upon determining that it complies with
all applicable State and local regulations for erosion and sedimentation
control. Approval assumes the applicant’s compliance with the federal and
state water quality laws, regulations and rules. The County shall condition
approval of Plans upon the applicant’s compliance with federal and state
water quality laws, regulations and rules. The County may establish an
expiration date, not to exceed three (3) years, for Plans approved under this
chapter whereby no land-disturbing activity has been undertaken.



Section 8. Disapproval for Content.

The County may disapprove a Plan or draft Plan based on its content. A
disapproval based upon a Plan’s content must specifically state in writing the
reasons for disapproval.

Section 9. Other Disapprovals.

The County shall disapprove an erosion and sedimentation control plan if
implementation of the plan would result in a violation of rules adopted by
the Environmental Management Commission to protect riparian buffers
along surface waters. The County may disapprove an erosion and
sedimentation control plan or disapprove a transfer of a plan under
section (10) of this article upon finding that an applicant or a parent,
subsidiary, or other affiliate of the applicant:

(A) Is conducting or has conducted land-disturbing activity without an
approved plan, or has received notice of violation of a plan
previously approved by the Commission or a local government
pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article 4 and has not complied with
the notice within the time specified in the notice.

(B) Has failed to pay a civil penalty assessed pursuant to said Article
4 or a local ordinance adopted pursuant to said Article by the time
the payment is due.

(C) Has been convicted of a misdemeanor pursuant to N.C.G.S.
113A-64(b) or any criminal provision of a local ordinance adopted
pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article 4.

(D) Has failed to substantially comply with State rules or local
ordinances and regulations adopted pursuant to said Article V.

In the event that an erosion and sedimentation control plan or a transfer of
a plan is disapproved by the County pursuant to section (9) of this article,
the local government shall so notify the Director of the Division of Energy,
Mineral, and Land Resources within 10 days of the disapproval. The
County shall advise the applicant or the proposed transferee and the
Director in writing as to the specific reasons that the plan was
disapproved. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article XVI, the applicant
may appeal the local government's disapproval of the plan directly to
the Commission.



For purposes of this subsection, an applicant's record or the proposed
transferee’'s record may be considered for only the two years prior to the
application date.

Section 10. Transfer of Plans.

The County administering an erosion and sedimentation control program
may transfer an erosion and sedimentation control plan approved
pursuant to this section without the consent of the plan holder to a
successor-owner of the property on which the permitted activity is
occurring or will occur as provided in this subsection.

(A) The County may transfer a plan if all of the following conditions
are met:

(1) The successor-owner of the property submits to the local
government a written request for the transfer of the plan
and an authorized statement of financial responsibility and
ownership.

(2) The County finds all of the following:

(a) The plan holder is one of the following:

() A natural person who is deceased.

(ii.) A partnership, limited liability corporation,
corporation, or any other business
association that has been dissolved.

(iii.) A person who has been Ilawfully and
finally divested of title to the property on
which the permitted activity is occurring or

will occur.

(iv.) A person who has sold the property on
which the permitted activity is occurring or
will occur.

(b) The successor-owner holds title to the property on
which the permitted activity is occurring or will occur.
(c) The successor-owner is the sole claimant of the right to
engage in the permitted activity.
(d) There will be no substantial change in the permitted
activity.
(B) The plan holder shall comply with all terms and conditions of the
plan until such time as the plan is transferred.
(C) The successor-owner shall comply with all terms and conditions of
the plan once the plan has been transferred.
(D) Notwithstanding changes to law made after the original issuance of
the plan, the County may not impose new or different terms and
conditions in the plan without the prior express consent of the



successor-owner. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the
County from requiring a revised plan pursuant to G.S. 113A-
54.1(b).

Section 11. Notice of Activity Initiation.

No person may initiate a land-disturbing activity before notifying the
agency that issued the Plan approval of the date that land-disturbing
activity will begin.

Section 12. Preconstruction Conference.

When deemed necessary by the approving authority a preconstruction
conference may be required and noted on the approved plan.

Section 13. Display of Plan Approval.

A Plan approval issued under this article shall be prominently displayed until
all construction is complete, all temporary measures have been removed, all
permanent sedimentation and erosion control measures are installed, and
the site has been stabilized. A copy of the approved plan shall be kept on
file at the job site.

Section 14. Required Revisions.

After approving a Plan, if the County either upon review of such Plan or on
inspection of the job site, determines that a significant risk of accelerated
erosion or off-site sedimentation exists, the County shall require a revised
Plan. Pending the preparation of the revised Plan, work shall cease or shall
continue under conditions outlined by the appropriate authority. If following
commencement of a land-disturbing activity pursuant to an approved Plan,
the County determines that the Plan is inadequate to meet the requirements
of this ordinance, the County may require any revision of the Plan that is
necessary to comply with this ordinance.

Section 15. Amendment to a Plan.

Applications for amendment of a Plan in written and/or graphic form may be
made at any time under the same conditions as the original application.
Until such time as said amendment is approved by the County, the land-
disturbing activity shall not proceed except in accordance with the Plan as
originally approved.



Section 16. Failure to File a Plan.

Any person engaged in land-disturbing activity who fails to file a Plan in
accordance with this chapter, or who conducts a land-disturbing activity
except in accordance with provisions of an approved Plan shall be deemed in
violation of this chapter.

Section 17. Self-lInspections.

The landowner, the financially responsible party, or the landowner's or the
financially responsible party's agent shall perform an inspection of the area
covered by the plan after each phase of the plan has been completed and
after establishment of temporary ground cover in accordance with G.S.
113A-57(2). In addition, weekly and rain-event self-inspections are required
by federal regulations, that are implemented through the NPDES
Construction General Permit No. NCG010000. The person who performs the
inspection shall maintain and make available a record of the inspection at
the site of the land-disturbing activity. The record shall set out any
significant deviation from the approved erosion control plan, identify any
measures that may be required to correct the deviation, and document the
completion of those measures. The record shall be maintained until
permanent ground cover has been established as required by the approved
erosion and sedimentation control plan. The inspections required by this
subsection shall be in addition to inspections required by G.S. 113A-61.1.

Where inspections are required by this section and or G.S. 113A-54.1(e), the
following apply:







A)

The inspection shall be performed during or after each of the
following phases of the plan;

1)
)
3)
C)

)

initial installation of erosion and sediment control measures;
clearing and grubbing of existing ground cover;

completion of any grading that requires ground cover;
completion of all land-disturbing activity, construction, or
development, including permanent ground cover
establishment and removal of all temporary measures; and
transfer of ownership or control of the tract of land where the
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been approved
and work has begun. The new owner or person in control shall
conduct and document inspections until the project is



permanently stabilized as set forth in Sub-Item (iii) of this
Iltem.
(B) Documentation of self-inspections performed under Item (1) of this

Rule shall include:

(1) Visual verification of ground stabilization and other erosion
control measures and practices as called for in the approved
plan;

(2) \Verification by measurement of settling basins, temporary
construction entrances, energy dissipators, and traps.

(3) The name, address, organization affiliation, telephone
number, and signature of the person conducting the
inspection and the date of the inspection shall be included,
whether on a copy of the approved erosion and sedimentation
control plan or an inspection report. A template for an
example of an inspection and monitoring report is provided on

the DEMLR website at:
https://deqg.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-land-
resources/erosion-sediment-control/forms. Any relevant

licenses and certifications may also be included. Any
documentation of inspections that occur on a copy of the
approved erosion and sedimentation control plan shall occur
on a single copy of the plan and that plan shall be made
available on the site.

(4) A record of any significant deviation from any erosion or
sedimentation control measure from that on the approved
plan. For the purpose of this Rule, a "significant deviation™
means an omission, alternation, or relocation of an erosion or
sedimentation control measure that prevents it from
performing as intended. The record shall include measures
required to correct the significant deviation, along with
documentation of when those measures were taken.
Deviations from the approved plan may also be recommended
to enhance the intended performance of the sedimentation
and erosion control measures.

Article VI Basic Control Objectives

An erosion and sedimentation control Plan may be disapproved if the Plan
fails to address the following control objectives:

Section 1. ldentify Critical Areas.

On-site areas which are subject to severe erosion, and off-site areas which
are especially vulnerable to damage from erosion and/or sedimentation, are



to be identified and receive special attention.
Section 2. Limit Time of Exposure.

All land-disturbing activities are to be planned and conducted to Ilimit
exposure to the shortest time specified in G.S. 113A-57, the rules of this
Chapter, or as directed by the Approving Authority.

Section 3. Limit Exposed Areas.
All land-disturbing activity is to be planned and conducted to minimize the

size of the area to be exposed at any one time.
Section 4. Control Surface Water.

Surface water runoff originating upgrade of exposed areas should be
controlled to reduce erosion and sediment loss during the period of
exposure.

Section 5. Control Sedimentation.

All land-disturbing activity is to be planned and conducted so as to prevent
off-site sedimentation damage.

Section 6. Manage Storm Water Runoff.

Plans shall be designed so that any increase in velocity of stormwater runoff
resulting from a land-disturbing activity will not result in accelerated erosion
of the receiving stormwater conveyance or at the point of discharge. Plans
shall include measures to prevent accelerated erosion within the project
boundary and at the point of discharge.

Article VIlI Design and Performance Standards
Section 1. Non-High Quality Water Zones.

Except as provided in Section 2(B) of this Article, erosion and sedimentation
control measures, structures, and devices shall be planned, designed, and
constructed to provide protection from the calculated maximum peak rate of
runoff from the ten-year storm. Runoff rates shall be calculated using the
procedures in the latest edition of the USDA, Se# Natural Resources




Conservation Service’s “National Engineering Field Manualfor—Coenservation
Practices Handbook”, or other acceptable calculation procedures.

Section 2. HOW Zones.

In High Quality Water (HQW) zones the following design standards shall

apply:
A)

(B)

©

Limit on Uncovered Area. Uncovered areas in HQW zones shall be
limited at any time to a maximum total area of twenty acres within
the boundaries of the tract. Only the portion of the land-disturbing
activity within a HQW zone shall be governed by this section.
Larger areas may be uncovered within the boundaries of the tract
with the written approval of the Director upon providing engineering
justification with a construction sequence that considers phasing,
limiting exposure, weekly submitted self-inspection reports, and a
more conservative design than the Twenty-five Year Storm.
Maximum Peak Rate of Runoff Protection. Erosion and
sedimentation control measures, structures, and devices within
HQW zones shall be planned, designed and constructed to provide
protection from the runoff of the twenty-five year storm which
produces the maximum peak rate of runoff as calculated according
to procedures in the latest edition of the United States Department
of Sei#l Natural Resources Conservation Service’s “National
Engineering Field Manualfer—Coenservation—Practices Handbook” or
according to procedures adopted by any other agency of this state
or the United States or any generally recognized organization or
association.

Setthng-Efficieney Sediment Basin Design. Sediment basins within

HQW zones shall be designed and constructed such—that-thebasin
o i e : I : I .

asseetatton—according to the following criteria:

(1) use a surface withdrawal mechanism, except when the basin
drainage area is less than 1.0 acre;

(2) have a minimum of 1800 cubic feet of storage area per acre
of disturbed area;

(3) have a minimum surface area of 325 square feet per cfs of



the Twenty-five Year Storm (Q25) peak flow;

(4) have a minimum dewatering time of 48 hours;

(5) incorporate 3 baffles, unless the basin is less than 20 feet in
length, in which case 2 baffles shall be sufficient.

Upon a written request of the applicant, the Director may allow
alternative design and control measures in lieu of meeting the
conditions required in Section 2(C)(1) through Section 2(C)(5) if
the applicant demonstrates that meeting all of those conditions will
result in design or operational hardships and that the alternative
measures will provide an equal or more effective level of erosion
and sediment control on the site. Alternative measures may
include quicker application of ground cover, use of sediment
flocculants, and use of enhanced ground cover practices.

(D) Grade. Newly constructed open channels in HQW zones shall be
designed and constructed with side slopes no steeper than two
horizontal to one vertical if a vegetative cover is used for
stabilization unless soil conditions permit a steeper slope or where
the slopes are stabilized by using mechanical devices, structural
devices or other aeeeptable forms of ditch liners proven as being
effective in restraining accelerated erosion. In any event, the angle
for side slopes shall be sufficient to restrain accelerated erosion.

Article V111 Storm Water Outlet Protection

Section 1. Intent.

Stream banks and channels downstream from any land disturbing activity
shall be protected from increased degradation by accelerated erosion caused
by increased velocity of runoff from the land disturbing activity.

Section 2. Performance standard.

Persons shall conduct land-disturbing activity so that the post construction
velocity of the 10-year storm runoff in the receiving watercourse to the
discharge point does not exceed the greater of:

(A) the velocity established by the Maximum Permissible Velocities
Table set out within this subsection; or
(B) the velocity of the ten-year storm runoff in the receiving



watercourse prior to development.
If condition (A) or (B) of this Paragraph cannot be met, then the

receiving watercourse to and including the discharge point shall be
designed and constructed to withstand the expected velocity
anywhere the velocity exceeds the “prior to development” velocity
by 10%.

Maximum Permissible Velocities Table

The following is a table for maximum permissible velocity for storm
water discharges in feet per second (F.P.S.) and meters per second

(M.P.S.):

Material F.P.S. M.P.S.
Fine sand (noncolloidal) 2.5 .8
Sandy loam (noncolloidal) 2.5 .8
Silt loam (noncolloidal) 3.0 .9
Ordinary firm loam 3.5 1.1
Fine gravel 5.0 1.5
Stiff clay (very colloidal) 5.0 1.5
Graded, loam to cobbles 5.0 1.5
(noncolloidal)

Graded, silt to cobbles (Colloidal) 5.5 1.7
Alluvial silts (noncolloidal) 3.5 1.1
Alluvial silts (colloidal) 5.0 1.5
Coarse gravel (noncolloidal) 6.0 1.8
Cobbles and shingles 5.5 1.7
Shales and hard pans 6.0 1.8

Source - Adapted from recommendations by Special Committee on Irrigation
Research, American Society of Civil Engineers, 1926, for channels with
straight alignment. For sinuous channels, multiply allowable velocity by 0.95
for slightly sinuous, by 0.9 for moderately sinuous channels, and by 0.8 for
highly sinuous channels.

Section 3. Acceptable Management Measures.

Measures applied alone or in combination to satisfy the intent of this section
are acceptable if there are no objectionable secondary consequences. The
County recognizes that the management of storm water runoff to minimize
or control downstream channel and bank erosion is a developing technology.
Innovative techniques and ideas will be considered and may be used when
shown to have the potential to produce successful results. Some



alternatives, while not exhaustive, are to:

A)

(B)

©
(D)
B

Avoid increases in surface runoff volume and velocity by including
measures to promote infiltration to compensate for increased runoff
from areas rendered impervious;

Avoid increases in storm water discharge velocities by using
vegetated or roughened swales and waterways in place of closed
drains and high velocity paved sections:

Provide energy dissipators at outlets of storm drainage facilities to
reduce flow velocities to the point of discharge;

Protect watercourses subject to accelerated erosion by improving
cross sections and/or providing erosion-resistant lining; and
Upgrade or replace the receiving device structure, or watercourse
such that it will receive and conduct the flow to a point where it is
no longer subject to degradation from the increased rate of flow or
increased velocity.

Section 4. Exceptions.

This rule shall not apply where it can be demonstrated to the County that
storm water discharge velocities will not create an erosion problem in the
receiving watercourse.

Article 1 X Borrow and Waste Areas

If the same person conducts the land-disturbing activity and any related
borrow or waste activity, the related borrow or waste activity shall constitute
part of the land-disturbing activity, unless the borrow or waste activity is
regulated under the Mining Act of 1971, G.S. 74, Article 7, or is a landfill
regulated by the Division of Waste Management. If the land-disturbing
activity and any related borrow or waste activity are not conducted by the



same person, they shall be considered by the Approving Authority as
separate land-disturbing activities.

Article X Access and Haul Roads

Temporary access and haul roads, other than public roads, constructed or
used in connection with any land-disturbing activity shall be considered a
part of such activity.

Article X1 Operations in Lakes or Natural Watercourses

Land disturbing activity in connection with construction in, on, over, or under
a lake or natural watercourse shall minimize the extent and duration of
disruption of the stream channel. Where relocation of a stream forms an
essential part of the proposed activity, the relocation shall minimize
grreeessary changes in the stream flow characteristics.

Article X111 Responsibility for Maintenance

During the development of a site, the person conducting the land-disturbing
activity shall install and maintain all temporary and permanent erosion and
sedimentation control measures as required by the approved plan or any
provision of this Chapter, the Act, or any order adopted pursuant to this
Chapter or the Act. After site development, the landowner or person in
possession or control of the land shall install and/or maintain all necessary
permanent erosion and sediment control measures, except those measures
installed within a road or street right-of-way or easement accepted for
maintenance by a governmental agency.

Article X111 Additional Measures

i : Lo :

Whenever

the County determines that

action- accelerated erosion and sedimentation continues despite the
installation of protective practices, they shall direct the person conducting
the land-disturbing activity to take additional protective action necessary to
achieve compliance with the conditions specified in the Act or its rules.



Fhis—+rule—shall-netrequire—greund cover on cleared land forming the future

basin of a planned reservoir.

Article X X1V_Fees

The County may establish a fee schedule for the review and approval of

plans. inr—establishing—the—fee—schedule,—the—County—shal—econsider—the




Article X XV_Plan Appeals

Section 1. Disapprovals

Except as provided in Section 2 of this Article, the appeal of a disapproval or
approval with modifications of a plan shall be governed by the following
provisions:

(A) The disapproval or modification of any proposed plan by the County
shall entitle the person submitting the plan to a public hearing if
such person submits written demand for a hearing within 15 days
after receipt of written notice of disapproval or modifications.

(B) A hearing held pursuant to this section shall be conducted by the
Watauga County Planning Board within thirty (30) days after the
date of the written appeal or request for a hearing.

(C) The Planning Board shall make recommendations to the Board of
Commissioners within seven (7) days after the date of the hearing
on any plan.

(D) The Board of Commissioners will render its final decision on any
plan within five (5) days of receipt of the recommendations from
the agency conducting the hearing.

(E) |If the Board of Commissioners upholds the disapproval or
modification of a proposed plan following the hearing, the person
submitting the plan shall then be entitled to appeal the County’s
decision to the Commission as provided in G.S. 113A-61(c) and 15A
NCAC 4B .0118(d)

Section 2. Other Disapprovals

In the event that a plan is disapproved pursuant to Article V Section 9 of this
Chapter, the applicant may appeal the County’s disapproval of the plan
directly to the Commission.

Article XH XVI_Inspections and Investigations

Section 1. Inspection.

Agents, officials, or other qualified persons authorized by the County will
periodically inspect land-disturbing activities to ensure compliance with the
Act, this chapter, or rules or orders adopted or issued pursuant to this
chapter, and to determine whether the measures required in the Plan are
effective in controlling erosion and sedimentation resulting from land-
disturbing activity. Notice of the right to inspect shall be included in the
certificate of approval of each Plan.



Section 2. Willful Resistance, Delay or Obstruction.

No person shall willfully resist, delay, or obstruct an authorized
representative, employee, or agent of the County while that person is
inspecting or attempting to inspect a land-disturbing activity under this
section.

Section 3. Notice of Violation.

If the County determines that a person engaged in land-disturbing activity
has failed to comply with the Act, this chapter, or rules, or orders adopted or
issued pursuant to this chapter, a notice of violation shall be served upon
that person. The notice may be served by any means authorized under GS
1A-1, Rule 4. The notice shall specify a date by which the person must
comply with the Act, or this ordinance, or rules, or orders adopted pursuant
to this chapter, and inform the person of the actions that need to be taken
to comply with the Act, this chapter, or rules or orders adopted pursuant to
this chapter. Any person who fails to comply within the time specified is
subject to additional civil and criminal penalties for a continuing violation as
provided in G.S. 113A-64 and this chapter. If the person engaged in the
land-disturbing activity has not received a previous notice of violation under
this section, the county shall deliver the notice of violation in person and
shall offer assistance in developing corrective measures. Assistance may be
provided by referral to a technical assistance program on behalf of the
Approving Authority, referral to a cooperative extension program, or by the
provision of written materials such as Department guidance documents. If
the county is unable to deliver the notice of violation in person within 15
days following discovery of the violation, the notice of violation may be
served in the manner prescribed for service of process by G.S. 1A-1, Rule 4,
and shall include information on how to obtain assistance in developing
corrective measures

Section 4. Investigation.

The County shall have the power to conduct such investigation as it may
reasonably deem necessary to carry out its duties as prescribed in this
chapter, and who presents appropriate credentials for this purpose to enter
at reasonable times upon any property, public or private, for the purpose of
investigating and inspecting the sites of any land-disturbing activity.



Section 5. Statements and Reports.

The County shall also have the power to require written statements, or filing
of reports under oath, with respect to pertinent questions relating to land-
disturbing activity.

Article X4 XVI1I1 Stop Orders

Wherever land-disturbing activity is being undertaken in a manner which is
in violation of this chapter, the Watauga County Department of Planning and
Inspection may order the work that is in violation to be immediately
stopped. The stop order shall be in writing and directed to the person
responsible for the violation, and shall state the specific work to be stopped,
the specific reasons for the stoppage, and the conditions under which the
work may be resumed. Appeals from a stop order shall be made as
prescribed in Article XVI of this chapter. Pending the ruling on the appeal,
no further work may take place in violation of a stop order. Violation of a
stop order constitutes a misdemeanor.

In addition, in accordance with N.C.G.S. 160D-404(b), the Watauga County
Building Inspectors are authorized to issue stop orders for building permits
where violations of this ordinance are taking place in connection with
construction authorized by the building permit.

Article XX XVI1I11 Revocation of Grading Permits

The Watauga County Department of Planning and Inspections may revoke
and require the return of any permit by giving written notice to the permit
holder, stating the reason for the revocation. Permits shall be revoked for
any substantial departure from the approved application or plans and
specifications, for refusal or failure to comply with the requirements of any
applicable State or local laws or local ordinances or regulations, or for false
statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit. A permit
mistakenly issued in violation of an applicable State or local law or local
ordinance or regulation also may be revoked.

Article ¢ X1 X Building Permits

No permits for any building or structure shall be issued upon any land
requiring submission of a soil erosion control plan and issuance of a grading
permit until such plan is submitted and permit issued.

Article & XX _Security Reqguired

The applicant for a permit may, prior to commencing any land-disturbing
activity, be required to file with Watauga County an improvement security in



the form of an escrow account, surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or
other undertaking satisfactory to the County Attorney, in an amount
deemed sufficient by the Watauga County Department of Planning and
Inspections, to cover all costs of protection or other improvements required
to establish protective cover on the site in conformity with this chapter.
Such security shall remain in force until the improvements are completed in
accordance with the approved plan and said improvements are finally
inspected and approved as set out in paragraph below.

Upon completion of the improvements as required by this chapter, written
notice thereof shall be given by the applicant to the Department of Planning
and Inspections and the Department shall cause an inspection of the
improvements to be made and, if approved, shall within 30 days of the date
of notice authorize in writing the release of the security given provided that
the improvements have been made in accordance with the approved plan
and this chapter.

The security shall be forfeited upon violation of this chapter and shall be
used to establish protective cover on the site. Any monies in excess of the
cost of establishing protective cover shall be refunded.

Article X%H-XXI1 _Penalties

Section 1. Civil Penalties.

(A) Civil Penalty for a Violation. Any person who violates any of the
provisions of this chapter, or rule or order adopted or issued
pursuant to this chapter, or who initiates or continues a land-
disturbing activity for which a Plan is required except in accordance
with the terms, conditions, and provisions of an approved Plan, is
subject to a civil penalty. The maximum civil penalty amount that
the County may assess per violation is five thousand dollars
($5,000.00). A civil penalty may be assessed from the date of the
violation. Each day of a continuing violation shall constitute a
separate violation. When the person has not been assessed any
civil penalty under this subsection for any previous violation, and
that person abated continuing environmental damage resulting
from the violation within 180 days from the date of the notice of
violation, the maximum cumulative total civil penalty assessed
under this subsection for all violations associated with the land-
disturbing activity for which the erosion and sedimentation control
plan is required is twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000).]

(B) Civil Penalty Assessment Factors. The governing body of the
County shall determine the amount of the civil penalty based upon




©

(D)

B

Q)

the following factors:
(1) the degree and extent of harm caused by the violation,
(2) the cost of rectifying the damage,
(3) the amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance,
(4) whether the violation was committed willfully, and
(5) the prior record of the violator in complying of failing to
comply with this chapter.
Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment. The governing body of the
County shall provide notice of the civil penalty amount and basis for
assessment to the person assessed. The notice of assessment shall
be served by any means authorized under G.S. 1A-1, Rule 4. A
notice of assessment by the County shall direct the violator to
either pay the assessment, contest the assessment within 30
days by filing a petition for hearing with the County (as directed
by procedures within the local ordinances or regulations adopted to
establish and enforce the erosion and sedimentation control
program), or file a request with the Sedimentation Control
Commission for remission of the assessment within 60 days of
receipt of the notice of assessment. A remission request must be
accompanied by a waiver of the right to a contested case hearing
pursuant to Chapter 150B of the North Carolina General Statutes
and a stipulation of the facts on which the assessment was based.
Final Decision: The final decision on contested assessments shall be
made by the Board of Commissioners in accordance with this
ordinance.
Appeal of Final Decision. Appeal frem of the final decision of the
Board of Commissioners shall be to the Superior Court of the
county where the violation occurred. Such appeals must be made
within 30 days of the final decision of the Board of Commissioners.
Remission of Civil Penalties. A request for remission of a civil
penalty imposed under G.S. 113A-64 may be filed with the Board of
Commissioners within 60 days of receipt of the notice of
assessment. A remission request must be accompanied by a waiver
of the right to a contested case hearing pursuant to Chapter 150B
of the General Statutes and a stipulation of the facts on which the
assessment was based. The following factors shall be considered in
determining whether a civil penalty remission request will be
approved:

(1) Whether one or more of the civil penalty assessment
factors in G.S.113A-64(a)(3) were wrongly applied to the
detriment of the petitioner.

(2) Whether the petitioner promptly abated continuing
environmental damage resulting from the violation.

(3) Whether the violation was inadvertent or a result of an




accident.

(4) Whether the petitioner had been assessed civil penalties
for any previous violations.

(5) Whether payment of the civil penalty will prevent payment
for necessary remedial actions or would otherwise create a
significant financial hardship.

(6) The assessed property tax valuation of the petitioner's
property upon which the violation occurred, excluding the
value of any structures located on the property.

(G) Collection. If payment is not received within 60 days after it is due,
the County may institute a civil action to recover the amount of the
assessment. The civil action may be brought in the Superior Court
of the county where the violation occurred, or the violator’'s
residence or principal place of business is located. Such civil
actions must be filed within three (3) years of the date the
assessment was due. An assessment that is not contested and a
remission that is not required is due when the violator is served
with a notice of assessment. An assessment that is contested or a
remission that is not requested is due at the conclusion of the
administrative and judicial review of the assessment.

(H) Credit of Civil Penalties. The clear proceeds of civil penalties
collected by the County under this subsection shall be remitted to
the Civil Penalty and Forfeiture Fund in accordance with G.S. 115C-
457.2. Penalties collected by the County may be diminished only
by the actual costs of collection. The collection cost percentage to
be used shall be established and approved by the North Carolina
Office of State Budget and Management on an annual basis, based
upon the computation of actual collection costs by each the County
for the prior fiscal year.

[In any event, the cost percentage shall not exceed twenty percent

(20%) of penalties collected.]

Section 2. Criminal Penalties.

Any person who knowingly or willfully violates any provision of this chapter,
or rule or order adopted or issued pursHant—to—this—chapter by the
Commission or a local government, pursuant to this chapter, or who
knowingly or willfully initiates or continues a land-disturbing activity for
which a Plan is required except in accordance with the terms, conditions,
and provisions of an approved Plan, shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor
which may include a fine not to exceed $5,000 as provided in G.S. § 113A-
64.



Article YXodHH XXI11 Injunctive Relief

Section 1. Violation of Local Program.

Whenever the Board of Commissioners has reasonable cause to believe that
any person is violating or threatening to violate any ordinance, rule,
regulation or order adopted or issued by the County or any term, condition,
or provision of an approved Plan, it may, either before or after the institution
of any other action or proceeding authorized by this chapter, institute a civil
action in the name of the County for injunctive relief to restrain the violation
or threatened violation. The action shall be brought in the superior court of
the county in which the violation is occurring or is threatened.

Section 2. Abatement of Violation.

Upon determination by a court that an alleged violation is occurring or is
threatened, the court shall enter any order or judgment that is necessary to
abate the violation, to ensure that restoration is performed, or to prevent
the threatened violation. The institution of an action for injunctive relief
under this section shall not relieve any party to the proceedings from any
civil or criminal penalty prescribed for violations of this chapter.

Article %P+ XX1 11 Restoration After Non-Compliance

The County may require a person who engaged in a land-disturbing activity
and failed to retain sediment generated by the activity, as required by G.S.
113A-57 (3), to restore the waters and land affected by the failure so as to
minimize the detrimental effects of the resulting pollution by sedimentation.
This authority is in addition to any other civil or criminal penalty or injunctive
relief authorized under this chapter.

Article & XXI1V _Effective Date

February 20, 2019



CHAPTER 9 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION

Article 1 Statutory Authorizations, Findings of Fact, Purpose. &
Objectives

Section 1. Statutory Authorization.

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of
Chapter 143; Part 2, Articles 1,7,9, and 11 of Chapter 160D; and Part
121, Article 6 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes,
delegated to local governmental units the responsibility to adopt
regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general
welfare. Therefore, the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County,
North Carolina, enacts the following:

Section 2. Findings of Fact.

(A) The flood prone areas within the jurisdiction of Watauga County
are subject to periodic inundation which results in loss of life,
property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and
governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures of
flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of
which adversely affect the public health, safety, and general
welfare.

(B) These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of
obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and
velocities and by the occupancy in flood prone areas of uses
vulnerable to floods or other hazards.

Section 3. Statement of Purpose.

(A) It is the purpose of this chapter to promote public health, safety,
and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses
due to flood conditions within flood prone areas by provisions
designed to:

(B) restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and
property due to water or erosion hazards or that result in
damaging increases in erosion, flood heights or velocities;

(C) require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities that
serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time
of initial construction;

(D) control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels,
and natural protective barriers, which are involved in the
accommodation of floodwaters;



B
G

Section

control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that
may increase erosion or flood damage; and

prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will
unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood
hazards to other lands.

4. Objectives.

(A)
(B)
©
(D)
(B)
Q)
(&)
(H)

)]
Q)

K

The objectives of this chapter are to:

protect human life, safety, and health;

minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control
project;

minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with
flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general
public;

minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;

minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and
gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets,
and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;

help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use
and development of flood prone areas; and

ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a
Special Flood Hazard Area;

Minimize damage to private and public property due to flooding;
Make flood insurance available to the community through the
National Flood Insurance Program;

Maintain the natural and beneficial functions of floodplains.

Article 11 General Provisions

Section 1. Lands To Which This Ordinance Applies.

This chapter shall apply to all Special Flood Hazard Areas within the
jurisdiction of Watauga County and within the jurisdiction of any other
community whose governing body agrees, by resolution, to such
applicability.

Section 2. Basis For Establishing The Special Flood Hazard Areas.




The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the Cooperating
Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of North Carolina and
FEMA in its FIS dated December 3, 2009 for Watauga County and associated
DFIRM panels, including any digital data developed as part of the FIS, which
are adopted by reference and declared a part of this ordinance, and all
revisions thereto.

Section 3. Establishment Of Floodplain Development Permit.

A Floodplain Development Permit shall be required in conformance with
the provisions of this chapter prior to the commencement of any
development activities within Special Flood Hazard Areas determined in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2 of this Article.

Section 4. Compliance.

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted,
altered, or developed in any way without full compliance with the terms
of this chapter and other applicable regulations.

Section 5. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.

This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing
easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this chapter
and another conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent
restrictions shall prevail.

Section 6. Interpretation.

In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall
be:
(A) considered as minimum requirements;
(B) liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
(C) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted
under State statutes.

Section 7. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and
engineering consideration. Larger floods can and will occur. Actual flood



heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance
does not imply that land outside the Special Flood Hazard Areas or uses
permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages.
This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Watauga County or
by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from
reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made
hereunder.

Section 8. Penalties for Violation.

See Chapter 5, Article IV and V.

Article 111 _Administration

Section 1. Designation of Floodplain Administrator.

The Director or other authorized staff of the Watauga County Department
of Planning and Inspections, hereinafter referred to as the “Floodplain
Administrator”, is hereby appointed to administer and implement the
provisions of this chapter. In instances where the Floodplain
Administrator receives assistance from others to complete tasks to
administer and implement this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator
shall be responsible for the coordination and community’s overall
compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program and the provisions
of this ordinance.

Section 2. Floodplain __Development _Application, Permit and
Certification Reguirements.

(A) Application Requirements. Application for a Floodplain
Development Permit shall be made to the Floodplain
Administrator prior to any development activities located within
Special Flood Hazard Areas. The following items shall be
presented to the Floodplain Administrator to apply for a
floodplain development permit:

(1) A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not
be limited to, the following specific details of the proposed
floodplain development:

(a) the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of
the area of development/disturbance; existing and
proposed structures, utility systems,
grading/pavement areas, fill materials, storage
areas, drainage facilities, and other development;




@)

)

4)

(b) the boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as
delineated on the FIRM or other flood map as

determined in Article Il, Section 2, or a statement
that the entire lot is within the Special Flood Hazard
Area;

(c) flood zone(s) designation of the proposed
development area as determined on the FIRM or
other flood map as determined in Article 11, Section
2;

(d) the boundary of the floodway(s) or non-
encroachment area(s) as determined in Article 11

Section 2;
(e) the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as
set forth in Article 1l, Section 2; Article I1l, Section

3; or Article 1V, Section 4;

(f) the old and new location of any watercourse that will
be altered or relocated as a result of proposed
development; and

(g) the certification of the plot plan by a registered land
surveyor or professional engineer as determined to
be necessary by the Floodplain Administrator.

Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all

development within a Special Flood Hazard Area including

but not limited to:

(a) Elevation in relation to mean-seatevel NAVD 1988 of
the proposed reference level (including basement) of
all structures;

(b) Elevation in relation to mean-seatevel NAVD 1988 to
which any non-residential structure in Zone AE or A
will be floodproofed; and

(c) Elevation in relation to mean—seatevel NAVD 1988 to
which any proposed utility systems will be elevated
or floodproofed.

If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form

81-65 086-0-34) with supporting data, an operational

plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan that include,

but are not Ilimited to, installation, exercise, and
maintenance of floodproofing measures,

A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale, which shall include

details of the proposed foundation system to ensure all

provisions of this ordinance are met. These details include
but are not limited to:

(a) The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e.,
fill, solid foundation perimeter wall, solid backfilled




(B)

3)
(®)

)

3

€))

foundation, open foundation on columns/posts/piers/
piles/shear walls); and
(b) Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of
hydrostatic flood forces on walls in accordance with
Article 1V, Section 2(D)(3) when solid foundation
perimeter walls are used in Zones A, AE, and A |-30.
Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.
Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and
facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems
to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
Certification that all other Local, State and Federal permits
required prior to floodplain development permit issuance
have been received.
Documentation for placement of Recreational Vehicles
and/or Temporary Structures, when applicable, to ensure
that the provisions of Article 1V, Section 2, (F) and (G) of
this chapter are met.
A description of proposed watercourse alteration or
relocation, when applicable, including an engineering
report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-
carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to
properties located both upstream and downstream; and a
map (if not shown on plot plan) showing the location of the
proposed watercourse alteration or relocation.

Permit Requirements. The Floodplain Development Permit shall

include, but not be limited to:

€Y

@)

)
4)

3)
®)

A—deseription—of—the—development—to—bepermitted—under
the-floodplain-developmentpermit—A complete description
of all the development to be permitted under the floodplain
development permit (e.g. house, garage, pool, septic,
bulkhead, cabana, pier, bridge, mining, dredging, filling,
grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, or
storage of equipment or materials, etc.).

The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the
proposed development in accordance with available data
specified in Article 11, Section 2.

The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the
reference level and all attendant utilities.

The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the
protection of all public utilities.

All certification submittal requirements with timelines.

A statement that no fill material or other development
shall encroach into the floodway or non-encroachment
area of any watercourse, as applicable.




©

(7) The flood openings requirements—+H-inZenes-A—AEorAl—

36+

(8) Limitations of below BFE enclosure uses (if applicable).
(i.e., parking, building access and limited storage only).

(9) A statement, that all materials below BFE/RFPE must be
flood resistant materials.

Certification Requirements.

(1) Elevation Certificates

@

(©)

©

An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-3% 086-0-
33) is required prior to the actual start of any new
construction. It shall be the duty of the permit holder
to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a
certification of the elevation of the reference level, in
relation to mean—sea—level NAVD 1988, The
Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate
data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review
shall be corrected by the permit holder prior to the
beginning of construction. Failure to submit the
certification or failure to make required corrections
shall be cause to deny a floodplain development
permit.

An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-3% 086-0-
33) is required after the reference level is
established. Within seven (7) calendar days of
establishment of the reference level elevation, it
shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to
the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the
elevation of the reference level, in relation to mean
sea level. Any work done within the seven (7) day
calendar period and prior to submission of the
certification shall be at the permit holder’s risk. The
Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate
data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review
shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately
and prior to further work being permitted to proceed.
Failure to submit the certification or failure to make
required corrections shall be cause to issue a stop-
work order for the project.

A final as-built Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 83-
33+ 086-0-33) is required after construction is
completed and prior to Certificate of
Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It shall be the duty
of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain
Administrator a certification of final as-built



construction of the elevation of the reference level
and all attendant utilities. The Floodplain
Administrator shall review the certificate data
submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall
be corrected by the permit holder immediately and
prior to Certificate of compliance/Occupancy
issuance. In some instances, another certification
may be required to certify corrected as-built
construction. Failure to submit the certification or
failure to make required corrections shall be cause to
withhold the issuance of a Certificate of
Compliance/Occupancy.

(2) Floodproofing Certificates. If non-residential floodproofing is
used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation
requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 8%-
65-086-0-34), with supporting data, an operational plan,
and an inspection and maintenance plan are required prior
to the actual start of any new construction. It shall be the
duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain
Administrator a certification of the floodproofed design
elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities,
in relation to mean—sealevel NAVD 1988. Floodproofing
certification shall be prepared by or under the direct
supervision of a professional engineer or architect and
certified by same. The Floodplain Administrator shall
review the certificate data, the operational plan, and the
inspection and maintenance plan. Deficiencies detected by
such review shall be corrected by the applicant prior to
permit approval. Failure to submit the certification or
failure to make required corrections shall be cause to deny
a Floodplain Development Permit. Failure to construct in
accordance with the certified design shall be cause to
withhold the issuance of a Certificate of
Compliance/Occupancy.

A final Finished Construction Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA
Form 086-0-34), with supporting data, an operational plan, and
an inspection and maintenance plan are required prior to the
issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. It shall be
the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain
Administrator a certification of the floodproofed design
elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities, in
relation to NAVD 1988. Floodproofing certificate shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional



)

engineer or architect and certified by same. The Floodplain
Administrator shall review the certificate data, the operational
plan, and the inspection and maintenance plan. Deficiencies
detected by such review shall be corrected by the applicant
prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Failure to submit the
certification or failure to make required corrections shall be
cause to deny a Floodplain Development Permit. Failure to
construct in accordance with the certified design shall be cause

to deny a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy.

(3) If a manufactured home is placed within Zone A, AE, or Al-
3D and the elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches
in height above grade, an engineered foundation
certification is required in accordance with the provisions
of Article 1V, Section 2(C)(2).

(4) If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, a description
of the extent of watercourse alteration or  relocation; a
professional engineer’s certified report on the effects of the
proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the
watercourse and the effects to properties located both
upstream and downstream; and a map showing the
location of the proposed watercourse alteration or
relocation shall all be submitted by the permit applicant
prior to issuance of a floodplain development permit.

(5) Certification Exemptions. The following structures, if located
within Zone A, AE or Al -30, are exempt from the
elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified
in items (a) and (b) of this subsection:

a) Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of
Article 1V, Section 2(F)(1);

b) Temporary Structures meeting requirements of
Article 1V, Section 2(G); and

c) Accessory Structures 150 square feet or less
and meeting requirements of Article 1V
Section 2(H).

Determinations for existing buildings and structures.
For applications for building permits to improve buildings and
structures, including alterations, movement, enlargement,
replacement, repair, change of occupancy, additions,
rehabilitations, renovations, substantial improvements, repairs
of substantial damage, and any other improvement of or work
on such buildings and structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in
coordination with the Building Official, shall:




(1) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to
obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a
qualified independent appraiser, of the building or
structure before the start of construction of the proposed
work; in the case of repair, the market value of the
building or structure shall be the market value before the
damage occurred and before any repairs are made;

(2) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to
repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or
the combined costs of improvements and repairs, Iif
applicable, to the market value of the building or
structure;

(3) Determine and document whether the proposed work
constitutes substantial improvement or repair of
substantial damage; and

(4) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work
constitutes substantial improvement or repair of
substantial damage and that compliance with the flood
resistant construction requirements of the NC Building
Code and this ordinance is required.

Section 3. Duties and Responsibilities _of the Floodplain
Administrator.

The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, the
following duties:

(A) Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits
for all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas
to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been
satisfied.

(B) Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas

to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been
satisfied including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334.

(C) Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina Department
of Crime Control and Public Safety, Division of Emergency
Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance
Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse,
and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

(D) Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or
relocated portion of said watercourse so that the flood-carrying
capacity is maintained.



B

Q)

(&)

(H)

)

Q)

(K

)

M)

Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-encroachment
areas unless the certification and flood hazard reduction
provisions of Article 1V, Section 6 are met.

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean—sea—ewvel NAVD
1988) of the reference level (including basement) and all
attendant utilities of all new and substantially improved
structures, in accordance with the provisions of Article 11l
Section 2(C).

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean—sea—ewvel NAVD
1988) to which all new and substantially improved structures
and utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance with the
provisions of Article 111, Section 2(C).

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean—sea—ewvel NAVD
1988) of all public utilities in accordance with the provisions of
Article 111, Section 2(C).

When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain
certifications from a registered professional engineer or architect
in accordance with the provisions of Article 111, Section 2(C) and
Article 1V, Section 2(B).

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of
boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas, floodways, or
non-encroachment areas (for example, where there appears to
be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field
conditions), make the necessary interpretation. The person
contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a
reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided
in this article.

When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has not been provided in
accordance with the provisions of Article 1l, Section 2, obtain,
review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway
data or non-encroachment area data available from a Federal,
State, or other source, including data developed pursuant to
Article 1V, Section 4(B)(2), in order to administer the provisions
of this ordinance.

When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided but no
floodway or non-encroachment area data has been provided in
accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 2, obtain,
review, and reasonably utilize any floodway data or non-
encroachment area data available from a Federal, State, or other
source in order to administer the provisions of this ordinance.
When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a
structure or the lowest ground elevation of a parcel in a Special
Flood Hazard Area is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE),
advise the property owner of the option to apply for a Letter of




(ND

©)

™)

Q)

R)

©))

Map Amendment (LOMA) from FEMA. Maintain a copy of the
LOMA issued by FEMA in the floodplain development permit file,
Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the
administration of this ordinance and make these records
available for public inspection, recognizing that such information
may be subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.

Make on-site inspections of work in progress. As the work
pursuant to a floodplain development permit progresses, the
Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the
work as may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done
according to the provisions of the local ordinance and the terms
of the permit. In exercising this power, the Floodplain
Administrator has a right, upon presentation of proper
credentials, to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of
the community at any reasonable hour for the purposes of
inspection or other enforcement action.

Issue stop-work orders as required. Whenever a building or part
thereof is being constructed, reconstructed, altered, or repaired
in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may
order the work to be immediately stopped. The stop-work order
shall be in writing and directed to the person doing or in charge
of the work. The stop-work order shall state the specific work to
be stopped, the specific reason(s) for the stoppage, and the
condition(s) under which the work may be resumed. Violation of
a stop-work order constitutes a misdemeanor

Revoke floodplain development permits as required. The
Floodplain Administrator may revoke and require the return of
the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder
in writing stating the reason(s) for the revocation. Permits shall
be revoked for any substantial departure from the approved
application, plans, and specifications; for refusal or failure to
comply with the requirements of State or local laws; or for false
statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit.
Any floodplain development permit mistakenly issued in violation
of an applicable State or local law may also be revoked.

Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard
Areas within the jurisdiction of the community. The Floodplain
Administrator and each member of his or her inspections
department shall have a right, upon presentation of proper
credentials, to enter on any premises within the territorial
jurisdiction of the department at any reasonable hour for the
purposes of inspection or other enforcement action.

Follow through with corrective procedures of Article 111, Section
4.




M
C))

49

Section

Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance
requests.

Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to,
the FIS Report, FIRM and other official flood maps and studies
adopted in accordance with the provisions of Article Il, Section 2
of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto including
Letters of Map Change, issued by FEMA. Notify State and FEMA
of mapping needs.

Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters
of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map
Revision (LOMRS).

4. Corrective Procedures.

A

(B)

©

Violations to be Corrected: When the Floodplain Administrator
finds violations of applicable State and local laws, it shall be his
or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the
violation. The owner or occupant shall immediately remedy each
of the violations of law cited in such notification.

Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action: If the

owner of a building or property shall fail to take prompt

corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the
owner written notice, by certified or registered mail to the
owner’s last known address or by personal service, stating:

(1) that the building or property is in violation of the floodplain
management regulations;

(2) that a hearing will be held before the Floodplain
Administrator at a designated place and time, not later
than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which
time the owner shall be entitled to be heard in person or
by counsel and to present arguments and evidence
pertaining to the matter; and

(3) that following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator
may issue an order to alter, vacate, or demolish the
building; or to remove fill as applicable.

Order to Take Corrective Action: If, upon a hearing held

pursuant to the notice prescribed above, the Floodplain

Administrator shall find that the building or development is in

violation of this chapter, he or she shall issue an order in writing

to the owner, requiring the owner to remedy the violation within

a specified time period, not less than sixty (60) calendar days,

nor more than one hundred-eighty (180) calendar days. Where

the Floodplain Administrator finds that there is imminent danger



(D)

B

Section

to life or other property, he or she may order that corrective
action be taken in such lesser period as may be feasible.

Appeal: Any owner who has received an order to take corrective
action may appeal the order to the Board of Adjustment by
giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator
and the Clerk to the Board of Adjustment within thirty (30) days
following issuance of the final binding order. In the absence of
an appeal, the order of the Floodplain Administrator shall be
final. The Board of Adjustment shall hear an appeal within a
reasonable time and may affirm, modify and affirm, or revoke
the order.

Failure to Comply with Order: If the owner of a building or
property fails to comply with an order to take corrective action
for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an
order of the Board of Adjustment following an appeal, the owner
shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor pursuant to NCGS 143-
215.58 and shall be punished at the discretion of the court.

5. Variance Procedures.

A)

(B)

©

The Board of Adjustment as established by Watauga County,
hereinafter referred to as the “appeal board”, shall hear and
decide requests for variances from the requirements of this
chapter.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may

appeal such decision to the Court, as provided in Chapter 7A of

the North Carolina General Statutes.

Variances may be issued for:

1) the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation
will not preclude the structure’s continued designation as a
historic structure and that the variance is the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of
the structure;

2) functionally dependent facilities if determined to meet the
definition as stated in Chapter 7, provided provisions of
Article 111, Section 5(D(2), (3), and (5) have been
satisfied, and such facilities are protected by methods that
minimize flood damages during the base flood and create
no additional threats to public safety; or

3) any other type of development, provided it meets the
requirements of this Section.




(D)

B
Q)

©)

In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all
technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified
in other sections of this chapter, and:

1) the danger that materials may be swept onto other lands
to the injury of others;

2) the danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion
damage;

3) the susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents
to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the
individual owner;

4) the importance of the services provided by the proposed
facility to the community;

5) the necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as
defined in Chapter 7 as a functionally dependent facility,
where applicable;

6) the availability of alternative locations, not subject to
flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;

7) the compatibility of the proposed use with existing and
anticipated development;

8) the relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive
plan and floodplain management program for that area;

9) the safety of access to the property in times of flood for
ordinary and emergency vehicles;

10) the expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and
sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of
wave action, if applicable, expected. at the site; and

11) the costs of providing governmental services during and
after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of
public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical
and water systems, and streets and bridges.

A written report addressing each of the above factors shall be

submitted with the application for a variance.

Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes

of this chapter, the appeal board may attach such conditions to

the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the
purposes and objectives of this chapter.

Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given

written notice specifying the difference between the Base Flood

Elevation (BFE) and the elevation to which the structure is to be

built and that such construction below the BFE increases risks to

life and property, and that the issuance of a variance to
construct a structure below the BFE will result in increased
premium rates for flood insurance up to $25 per $100 of

insurance coverage. Such notification shall be maintained with a



(H)

)

Q)

record of all variance actions, including justification for their

issuance.

The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all

appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal

Emergency Management Agency and the State of North Carolina

upon request.

Conditions for Variances:

(1) \Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make
the structure in violation of other Federal, State, or local
laws, regulations, or ordinances.

(2) \Vvariances shall not be issued within any designated
floodway or non-encroachment area if the variance would
result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood
discharge.

(3) \Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that
the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the
flood hazard, to afford relief

(4) Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit
approval.

(5) \Variances shall only be issued upon:

(a) a showing of good and sufficient cause;

(b) a determination that failure to grant the variance
would result in exceptional hardship; and

(c) a determination that the granting of a variance will
not result in increased flood heights, additional
threats to public safety, or extraordinary public
expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing
local laws or ordinances.

A variance may be issued for solid waste disposal facilities or

sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards,

and chemical storage facilities that are located in Special Flood

Hazard Areas provided that all of the following conditions are

met.

(1) The use serves a critical need in the community.

(2) No feasible location exists for the use outside the Special
Flood Hazard Area.

(3) The reference level of any structure is elevated or
floodproofed to at least the Regulatory Flood Protection
Elevation.

(4) The use complies with all other applicable federal, state
and local laws.

(5) Watauga County has notified the Secretary of the North
Carolina Department of Public Safety of its intention to



grant a variance at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to
granting the variance.

Article 1V _Provisions For Flood Hazard Reduction

Section 1. General Standards.

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas the following provisions are required:

A)

(B)

©

(D)

All new construction and substantial improvements shall be
designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure.

All new construction and substantial improvements shall be
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to
flood damage in accordance with the FEMA Technical Bulletin 2,
Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements.

All new construction and substantial improvements shall be
constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood
damages.

: I l eloctriol /] Y

; ; t t —All new
electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning
equipment, and other service equipment shall be located at or
above the RFPE or designed and installed to prevent water from
entering or accumulating within the components during the
occurrence of the base flood. These include, but are not limited
to, HVAC equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen fixtures,
ductwork, electric/gas meter panels/boxes, utility/cable boxes,
hot water heaters, and electric outlets/switches.

(1) Replacements part of a substantial improvement,
electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning
equipment, and other service equipment shall also meet
the above provisions.

(2) Replacements that are for maintenance and not part of a
substantial improvement, may be installed at the original
location provided the addition and/or improvements only
comply with the standards for new construction consistent
with the code and requirements for the original structure.



B

Q)

©)

)

Q)

(K
)

M)

Q)

All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed
to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the
system.
New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be
designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into
the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.
On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed
to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during
flooding.

_which—is—i P 4 . C i

Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the repair, reconstruction,
or replacement of a building or structure existing on the effective
date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the
floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream setback, provided
there is no additional encroachment below the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation in the floodway, non-encroachment area, or
stream setback, and provided that such repair, reconstruction,
or replacement meets all of the other requirements of this
chapter.

New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste
management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage
facilities shall not be permitted. A structure or tank for chemical
or fuel storage incidental to an allowed use or to the operation of
a water treatment plant or wastewater treatment facility may be
located in a Special Flood Hazard Area only if the structure or
tank is either elevated or flood proofed to at least the Regulatory
Flood Protection Elevation and certified in accordance with the
provisions of Article 111, Section 2(C).

All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall
be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall
have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical,
and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood
damage.

All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall
have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood
hazards.

All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall
have received all necessary permits from those governmental
agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State law,




©)

)

Q)

including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
Amendments of 1972, 33 IJ-S~C. 1334.

When a structure is partially located in a Special Flood Hazard
Area, the entire structure shall meet the requirements for new
construction and substantial improvements.

When a structure is located in multiple flood hazard zones or in a
flood hazard risk zone with multiple base flood elevations, the
provisions for the more restrictive flood hazard risk zone and the
highest Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall apply.

Buildings and structures that are located in more than one flood
hazard area shall comply with the provisions associated with the
most restrictive flood hazard area.

Section 2. Specific Standards.

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data
has been provided, as set forth in Article Il, Section 2, or Article IV
Section 5, the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of Article
IV, Section 1, are required:

A)

(B)

©

Residential Construction. New construction and substantial
improvement of any residential structure (including
manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including
basement, elevated no Ilower than the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7 of this Title.
Non-Residential Construction. New construction and substantial
improvement of any commercial, industrial, or other non-
residential structure shall have the reference level, including
basement, elevated no Ilower than the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7. Structures located
in A, AE, and Al -30 Zones may be floodproofed to the
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in lieu of elevation
provided that all areas of the structure, together with attendant
utility and sanitary facilities, below the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation are watertight with walls substantially
impermeable to the passage of water, using structural
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and the effect of buoyancy. A registered
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the
floodproofing standards of this subsection are satisfied. Such
certification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator as
set forth in Article 111, Section 2(C), along with the operational
plan and the inspection and maintenance plan.

Manufactured Homes.




(D)

€Y)

@)

)
4)

New and replacement manufactured homes shall be
elevated so that the reference level of the manufactured
home is no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection
Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7.

Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an
adequately anchored foundation to resist flotation,
collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified
engineered foundation system, or in accordance with the
most current edition of the State of North Carolina
Regulations for Manufactured Homes adopted by the
Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to NCGS 143—~143.15.
Additionally, when the elevation would be met by an
elevation of the chassis thirty-six (36) inches or less above
the grade at the site, the chassis shall he supported by
reinforced piers or engineered foundation. When the
elevation of the chassis is above thirty-six (36) inches in
height, an engineering certification is required.

All enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet
the requirements of Article 1V, Section 2(D).

An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all
residents of all new, substantially improved or
substantially damaged manufactured home parks or
subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan
shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain
Administrator and the local Emergency Management
Coordinator.

Elevated Buildings. Fully enclosed area of new construction and

substantially improved structures below the lowest floor:

€Y

@)

)

shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but
shall only be used for parking of vehicles, building access,
or limited storage of maintenance equipment used in
connection with the premises. Access to the enclosed area
shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking of
vehicles (garage door) or limited storage of maintenance
equipment (standard exterior door), or entry to the living
area (stairway or elevator). The interior portion of such
enclosed area shall not be finished or partitioned into
separate rooms, except to enclose storage areas;

shall not be temperature-controlled or conditioned;
Watauga County has the right to inspect the enclosed
area;

shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at
least to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation; and



4)

shall include, in Zones A, AE, and Al-30, flood openings to

automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by

allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. To meet this

requirement, the openings must either be certified by a

professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the

following minimum design criteria:

(a) A minimum of two flood openings on different sides
of each enclosed area subject to flooding;

(b) The total net area of all flood openings must be at
least one (1) square inch for each square foot of
enclosed area subject to flooding;

(c) If a building has more than one enclosed area, each
enclosed area must have flood openings to allow
floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;

(d) The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no
higher than one (1) foot above the adjacent grade;

(e) Flood openings may be equipped with screens,
louvers, or other coverings or devices. provided they
permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both
directions; and

() Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not
considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and,
therefore, do not require flood openings. Masonry or
wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, is
considered an enclosure and requires flood openings
as outlined above.

(E) Additions/Improvements.

€Y)

@)

Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures

when the addition and/or improvements in combination

with any interior modifications to the existing structure
are:

(a) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or
improvements must be designed to minimize flood
damages and must not be any more non-conforming
than the existing structure.

(b) a substantial improvement, both the existing
structure and the addition and/or improvements
must comply with the standards for new
construction.

Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to

the existing structure other than a standard door in the

common wall shall require only the addition to comply with
the standards for new construction.



(3) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures
when the addition and/or improvements in combination
with any interior modifications to the existing structure
are:

(a) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or
improvements only must comply with the standards
for new construction consistent with the code and
requirements for the original structure.

(b) a substantial improvement, both the existing
structure and the addition and/or improvements
must comply with the standards for new
construction.

(4) Any combination of repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation,
addition or improvement of a building or structure taking
place during a five (5) year period, the cumulative cost of
which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of
the structure before the improvement or repair is started
must comply with the standards for new construction. For
each building or structure, the five (5) year period begins
on the date of the first improvement or repair of that
building or structure subsequent to the effective date of
this ordinance. Substantial damage also means flood-
related damage sustained by a structure on two separate
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of
repairs at the time of each such flood event, on the
average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value
of the structure before the damage occurred. If the
structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs
are considered substantial improvement regardless of the
actual repair work performed. The requirement does not,
however, include either:

(a) Any project for improvement of a building required
to correct existing health, sanitary or safety code
violations identified by the building official and that
are the minimum necessary to assume safe living
conditions.

(b) Any alteration of a historic structure provided that
the alteration will not preclude the structure’s
continued designation as a historic structure.

(F) Recreational Vehicles. Recreational vehicles shall either:
a- be-on—site—forfewer—than—180—consecutive—days—and-be—fully
“EE';EE;l EtI".Elll Sady ot .IFn.gI_mas HSE EIEt IEI $ EEt.E'E'I'E.tI FeRicle 'E’




N EtIEIEEtEI'EEl to-the S'EEIE“b Iasl E‘T"slf IE.“.SEE'E";'EEE type-titilities
b meetal-therequirementsfornew-construction:
(1) Temporary Placement
(a) Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or
(b) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use.(a
recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is
on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the
site only by quick disconnect type utilities, and has
no permanently attached additions.)
(2) Permanent Placement. Recreational vehicles that do not meet

the limitations of Temporary Placement shall meet all the
requirements for new construction.

(G) Temporary Non-Residential Structures. Prior to the issuance of a
floodplain development permit for a temporary structure, the
applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for
the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane,
flash flood or other type of flood warning notification. The
following information shall be submitted in writing to the
Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval:

(1) a specified time period for which the temporary use will be
permitted. Time specified may not exceed three (3)
months, renewable up to one (1) year;

(2) the name, address, and phone number of the individual
responsible for the removal of the temporary structure;

(3) the time frame prior to the event at which a structure will
be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a
hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification);

(4) a copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with
the entity responsible for physical removal of the
structure; and

(5) designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location
outside the Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the
temporary structure will be moved.

(H) Accessory Structures. When accessory structures (sheds,
detached garages, etc.) are to be placed within a Special Flood
Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:

(1) Accessory structures shall not be used for human
habitation (including working, sleeping, living, cooking or
restroom areas);

(2) Accessory structures shall not he temperature-controlled;

(3) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood
damage potential;




4)

)
(®)

)

Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on
the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to
the flow of floodwaters;

Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in
accordance with the provisions of Article 1V, Section 1(A);
All service facilities such as electrical shall be installed in
accordance with the provisions of Article 1V, Section 1(D);
and

Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of
hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below Regulatory
Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the
provisions of Article 1V, Section 2(D)(3),

An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 square feet satisfies
the criteria outlined above deesnoetrequire—an—elevatien—orfloodproofing
certificate is not required to meet the elevation or floodproofing certificate
standards of Article IV Section 2 (b). Elevation or floodproofing
certifications are required for all other accessory structures in accordance

with Article 111,

Section 2(C).

(1) Tanks.

When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed

within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be

met:

€Y)

@)

3

Underground tanks. Underground tanks in flood hazard
areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or
lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and
hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood,
including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is
empty;

Above-ground tanks, elevated. Above-ground tanks in
flood hazard areas shall be elevated to or above the
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting
structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or
lateral movement during conditions of the design flood.
Tank-supporting structures shall meet the foundation
requirements of the applicable flood hazard area;
Above-ground tanks, not elevated. Above-ground tanks
that do not meet the elevation requirements of Section B
(2) of this ordinance shall be permitted in flood hazard
areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed,
installed, and anchored to resist all flood-related and other
loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions
of the design flood and without release of contents in the
floodwaters or infiltration by floodwaters into the tanks.



Tanks shall be designed, constructed, installed, and

anchored to resist the potential buoyant and other flood

forces acting on an empty tank during design flood
conditions.

(4) Tank inlets and vents. Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets
and vents shall be:

(a) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection
Elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent
the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of
the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and

(b) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting
from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including
the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the
design flood.

(J) Other Development.

(1) Fences in regulated floodways and NEAs that have the
potential to block the passage of floodwaters, such as
stockade fences and wire mesh fences, shall meet the
limitations of Article IV, Section 6 of this ordinance.

(2) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated
floodways and NEAs. Retaining walls and sidewalks and
driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated
floodways shall meet the limitations of Article IV, Section 6
of this ordinance.

(3) Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways
and NEAs. Roads and watercourse crossings, including
roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and similar
means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side
of a watercourse to the other side, that encroach into
regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 1V,
Section 6 of this ordinance.

(4) Commercial storage facilities are not considered “limited
storage” as noted in this ordinance, and shall be protected
to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation as required for
commercial structures.

Section 3. Reserved.

Section 4. Standards For Floodplains Without Established Base Flood
Elevations.

Within the Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Approximate Zone A
and established in Article 1l, Section 2, where no Base Flood Elevation




(BFE) data has been provided by FEMA, the following provisions, in
addition to the provisions of Article 1V, Section 1, shall apply:

(A) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial
improvements or new development shall be permitted within a
distance of twenty (20) feet each side from top of bank or five
times the width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless
certification with supporting technical data by a registered
professional engineer is provided demonstrating that such
encroachments shall not result in any increase in flood levels
during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.

(B) The BFE used in determining the Regulatory Flood Protection
Elevation shall be determined based on the following criteria:

(1) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available from
other sources, all new construction and substantial
improvements within such areas shall also comply with all
applicable provisions of this ordinance and shall be
elevated or floodproofed in accordance with standards in
Article 1V, Sections 1 and 2.

(2) When floodway or non-encroachment data is available
from a Federal, State, or other source, all new construction
and substantial improvements within floodway and non-
encroachment areas shall also comply with the
requirements of Article 1V, Sections 2 and 6.

(3) All subdivision, manufactured home park and other
development proposals shall provide Base Flood Elevation
(BFE) data if development is greater than five (5) acres or
has more than fifty (50) lots/manufactured home sites.
Such Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data shall be adopted by
reference in accordance with Article I1l, Section 2 and
utilized in implementing this chapter.

(4) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is not available from
a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the
reference level shall be elevated or floodproofed
(nonresidential) to or above the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7. All other
applicable provisions of Article 1V, Section 2 shall also

apply.

Section 5. Standards For Riverine Floodplains With Base Flood
Elevations But Without Established Floodways or Non-Encroachment
Areas.

Along rivers and streams where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is
provided by FEMA or is available from another source but neither



floodway nor non-encroachment areas are identified for a Special Flood
Hazard Area on the FIRM or in the FIS report, the following requirements
shall apply to all development within such areas:

A)
(B)

Standards of Article 1V, Sections 1 and 2; and

Until a regulatory floodway or non-encroachment area is
designated, no encroachments, including fill, new construction,
substantial improvements, or other development, shall be
permitted unless certification with supporting technical data by a
registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that
the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when
combined with all other existing and anticipated development,
will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood
more than one (1) foot at any point within the community.

Section 6. Floodways and Non-Encroachment Areas.

Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment areas are located
within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 11, Section 2.
The floodways and non-encroachment areas are extremely hazardous
areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that have erosion potential and
carry debris and potential projectiles. The following provisions, in addition
to standards outlined in Article 1V, Sections 1 and 2, shall apply to all
development within such areas:

A)

(B)

No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial
improvements and other developments shall be permitted
unless:

(1) it is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would
not result in any increase in the flood levels during the
occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard
engineering practice and presented to the Floodplain
Administrator prior to issuance of floodplain development
permit, or

(2) a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been
approved by FEMA. A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must
also be obtained upon completion of the proposed
encroachment

If Article 1V, Section 6(A) is satisfied, all development shall

comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of

this chapter.




Article V_Leqgal Status Provisions

Section 1. Effect on Rights and Liabilities Under the Existing Flood
Damage Prevention Ordinance.

This ordinance in part comes forward by re-enactment of some of the
provisions of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance enacted April 1, 1987
as amended, and it is not the intention to repeal but rather to re-enact and
continue to enforce without interruption of such existing provisions, so that
all rights and liabilities that have accrued there under are reserved and may
be enforced. The enactment of this ordinance shall not affect any action, suit
or proceeding instituted or pending. All provisions of the Flood Damage
Prevention Ordinance of Watauga County enacted on April 1, 1987, as
amended, which are not reenacted herein are repealed.

The date of the initial Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance for Watauga
County is June 10, 1980; said ordinance repealed and replaced April 1,
1987. Amended December 3, 2009 and February 18, 2014.

Section 2. Effect Upon Outstanding Floodplain Development
Permits.

Nothing herein contained shall require any change in the plans,
construction, size, or designated use of any development or any part
thereof for which a floodplain development permit has been granted by
the Floodplain Administrator or his or her authorized agents before the
time of passage of this ordinance; provided, however, that when
construction is not begun under such outstanding permit within a period
of six (6) months subsequent to the date of issuance of the outstanding
permit, construction or use shall be in conformity with the provisions of
this ordinance.

Section 3. Severability

See Chapter 5, Article VII.

Section 4. Adoption Certification.

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of the Flood Damage
Prevention Ordinance as adopted by the governing body of Community
Name, North Carolina, on the Day (number or text) day of Month, Year.



WITNESS my hand and the official seal of insert Name, Title, this the Day
(number or text) day of Month, Year.

(signature)

(Seal)






Chapter 21 Watershed Protection (Winkler’s Creek,
Howards Creek. Norris Branch, Flat Top Branch, South Fork
New River, and Pond Creek)

Article 1 Authority and General Requlations

Section 1. Authority and Enactment.

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has, in Chapter 160D, Zoning
Authority; and in Chapter 143, Article 21, Watershed Protection Rules,
delegated the responsibility or directed local governmental units to adopt
regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general
welfare of its citizenry. The Watauga County Board of Commissioners enacts
into law the following chapter as the Watershed Protection Zoning
Regulations of Watauga County.

Section 2. Jurisdiction.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply within the area designated as a
Public Water Supply Watershed by the N.C. Environmental Management
Commission and shall be defined and established on the most recent
officially adopted by the NC Environmental Commission version of the map
entitled, "Watershed Protection Map of Watauga County North Carolina”
("the Watershed Map"), which is adopted simultaneously herewith. The
Watershed Map and all explanatory matter contained thereon accompanies
and is hereby made a part of this chapter.

Section 3. Exceptions to Applicability.

(A) Nothing contained herein shall repeal, modify, or amend any
Federal or State law or regulation, or any ordinance or regulation
pertaining thereto except any ordinance which these regulations
specifically replace; nor shall any provision of this chapter amend,
modify, or restrict any provisions of the Code of Ordinances of
Watauga County however, the adoption of this chapter shall and
does amend any and all ordinances, resolutions, and regulations in
effect in the county at the time of the adoption of this chapter that
may be construed to impair or reduce the effectiveness of this
chapter or to conflict with any of its provisions.

(B) It is not intended that these regulations interfere with any
easement, covenants or other agreements between parties.
However, if the provisions of these regulations impose greater
restrictions or higher standards for the use of a building or land,
then the provision of these regulations shall control.



(C) Existing development, as defined in this ordinance, is not subject to
the requirements of this ordinance. Expansions to structures
classified as existing development must meet the requirements of
this ordinance. However, the built-upon area of the existing
development is not required to be included in the density
calculations.

(D) A pre-existing lot owned by an individual prior to the effective date
of this ordinance, regardless of whether or not a vested right has
been established, may be developed for single family residential
purposes without being subject to the restrictions of this ordinance.

(E) If a Non-Conforming Lot of Record is not contiguous to any other lot
owned by the same party, then that lot of record shall not be
subject to the development restrictions of this ordinance if it is
developed for single-family residential purposes. Local
governments may require the combination of contiguous
nonconforming lots of record owned by same party to establish a lot
or lots that meet requirements in Article Il of this ordinance.

(F) Any lot or parcel created as part of a family subdivision after the
effective date of these rules shall be exempt from these rules if it is
developed for one single-family detached residence and if it is
exempt from local subdivision regulation. If a local government
does not enforce subdivision regulations, then that Ilocal
government may or may not allow the exemption for family
subdivisions.

(G) Any lot or parcel created as part of any other type of subdivision
that is exempt from a local subdivision ordinance shall be subject to
the Iland use requirements (including Iimpervious surface
requirements) of these rules, except that such a lot or parcel must
meet the minimum buffer requirements to the maximum extent
practicable.

Section 4. Applicability to Agricultural Uses.

This chapter shall not affect bona fide farms, as cited in Chapter 6 of this
Title and N.C.G.S. 160D-903.

The following paragraph is provided for information only. Agricultural
activities are regulated by the Watershed Protection Act (NCGS 143, Chapter
21) as follows:

“Agriculture is subject to the provisions of the Food Security Act of 1985 and
the Food, Agriculture, Conservation and Trade Act of 1990. Agricultural
activities conducted after January 1, 1993 shall maintain a minimum ten
(10) foot vegetative buffer, or equivalent control as determined by the Soil



and Water Conservation Commission, along all perennial waters indicated on
the most recent versions of U.S.G.S. 1:24,000 (7.5 minute) scale
topographic maps or as determined by local government studies.”

Article 11 _Subdivision Requlations

Section 1. General Provisions.

A)

(B)

©

No subdivision plat of land within the Public Water Supply
Watershed shall be filed or recorded by the Register of Deeds until
it has been approved in accordance with the provisions of this
Article. Likewise, the Clerk of Superior Court shall not order or
direct the recording of a plat if the recording of such plat would be
in conflict with this Article.

All subdivisions of land within Watauga County are subject to the
provisions of the Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit
Structures regulation and shall be reviewed pursuant to that
chapter. Subdivisions within Public Water Supply Watersheds shall
comply with the provisions of both chapters except where the two
(2) conflict. In that case, the more restrictive provisions shall
apply.

Compliance with this chapter shall be indicated on both copies of
the plat by the following certificate and signed by the authorized
representative:

Certificate of Approval for Recording
I certify that the plat shown here on complies with the Watershed

Protection Regulations and is approved by the Watauga County
Planning Board for recording in the Register of Deeds office.

Date Watauga County Authorized Representative

NOTICE: This property is located within a Public Water Supply
Watershed — development restrictions may apply.

Or, for minor subdivisions as defined by the Watauga County
Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures regulations, the following
certificate shall be used:



(D)

B

Q)

(&)

(H)

Certificate of Approval for Recording

I certify that the plat shown here on complies with the Watershed
Protection Regulations and is approved for recording in the Register
of Deeds office.

Date Watauga County Authorized Representative

NOTICE: This property is located within a Public Water Supply
Watershed — development restrictions may apply.

*NOTE: Those certificates may be combined with similar
certificates required by the subdivision regulations.

Roads constructed in critical areas and watershed buffer areas.
Where possible, roads should be located outside of critical areas
and watershed buffer areas. Roads constructed within these areas
shall be designed and constructed so to minimize their impact on
water quality.

All lots shall provide adequate building space in accordance with the
development standards contained in Article Ill. Lots which are
smaller than the minimum required for residential lots may be
developed using built-upon area criteria in accordance with Article
11 or cluster development criteria in accordance with Section 3.

For the purpose of calculating built-upon area, total project area
shall include total acreage in the tract on which the project is to be
developed.

Storm Water Drainage Facilities. The application shall be
accompanied by a description of the proposed method of providing
storm water drainage. The subdivider shall provide a drainage
system that diverts stormwater runoff away from surface waters
and incorporates best management practices to minimize water
quality impacts.

Erosion and Sedimentation Control. The application shall, where
required, be accompanied by a written statement that a
sedimentation and erosion control plan will be submitted to and
approved by Watauga County.

Article 111 Development Requlations

Section 1. Establishment of Watershed Areas.

For purposes of this chapter, the following watershed areas are established:



WS-I11-CA (Critical Area)
WS-11-BW (Balance of Watershed)
WS-Il11-(Balance of Watershed)
WS-1V-CA (Critical Area)
WS-1V-PA (Protected Area)










B AlewedUses:

3¢ 3%







Section 2. Watershed Areas — Allowed and Not Allowed Uses

Activity/Use Water Supply Watershed Classification

WS-Il CA WS-Il BW WS-IIl BW WS-IV CA WS-IV PA
New landfills No Yes Yes No Yes
New permitted residual land application No Yes Yes No Yes
New permitted petroleum contaminated soils No Yes Yes No Yes
sites
NPDES General or Individual Stormwater Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
discharges
NPDES General Permit Wastewater Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Discharges pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H .0127
NPDES Individual Permit trout farm Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
discharges
New NPDES Individual Permit domestic No No Yes Yes Yes
treated wastewater discharge
New NPDES Individual Permit industrial No No No? Yes Yes
treated wastewater discharge
Non-process industrial waste No No Yes Yes Yes
New industrial connections and expansionsto | No No No Yes Yes

existing municipal discharge with pretreatment
program pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H .0904

Sewage NoP NoP NoP NoP NoP
Industrial Waste NoP NoP NoP NoP NoP
Other wastes NoP NoP NoP NoP NoP
Groundwater remediation project discharges® Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Agriculture? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Silviculture® Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Residential Developmentf Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-residential Development™ Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Nonpoint Source Pollution” Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Animal Operations! Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Notes:

@ Except non-process industrial discharges are allowed

b Only allowed if specified in 15A NCAC 02B .0104

¢ Where no other practical alternative exists

4 1In WS-I watersheds and Critical Areas of WS-II, WS-Ill, and WS-V watersheds, agricultural activities conducted after 1/1/1993
shall maintain a minimum 10 foot vegetated setback or equivalent control as determined by SWCC along all perennial waters
indicated on most recent version of USGS 1:24000 scale (7.5 minute) topographic mpas or as determined by local government
studies

¢ Subject to Forest Practice Guidelines Related to Water Quality (02 NCAC 60C .0100 to .0209) Effective 4/1/2018

f See density requirements in 15A NCAC 02B .0624

9 See different allowed and not allowed in this table

"' NPS pollution shall not have adverse impact, as defined in 15A NCAC 02H .1002, on use as water supply or any other designated
use

' Deemed permitted, as defined in 15A NCAC 02T .0103 and permitted under 15A NCAC 2H .0217

NOTE: Source of table is Model Water Supple Watershed Protection Ordinance published by NCDEMLR,
Stormwater program.

Section 3. Cluster Development

(A) PROJECT DENSITY. The following maximum allowable project
densities and minimum lot sizes shall apply to a project according
to the classification of the water supply watershed where it is




located, its relative location in the watershed, its project density,
and the type of development:

Maximum Allowable Project Density or Minimum Lot Size

upon area without curb
and gutter street system

street system

ion i . High Density
Water Supply LOC?:}'S” n Low Density Development Development
Classification Watershed _ _ ~ Non-
Single-family detached | residential and All tvpes
residential all other yp
residential
1 dwelling unit (du) per 2
5 acres or 1 du per 80,000 | 6o, i ynon | 6 to 24% built-
Critical Area | square foot lot excluding area ubon area
roadway right-of-way or P
6% built-upon area
WS-l 1 du per 1 acre or 1 du
Balance of | Per40.000squarefoot | o0 b | 12 10 300 built-
Watershed .IOt excluding roadway upon area upon area
right-of-way or 12% built-
upon area
1 du per one-half acre or
Balance of 1 du per 20,000 square 24% built- 24 to 50% built-
WS- Watershed foot lot excluding upon area upon area
roadway right-of-way or P P
24% built-upon area
1 du per one-half acre or
- 1 du per 20,000 square |, 00 ik | 24 to 50% built-
Critical Area foot lot excluding UDon area UDon area
roadway right-of-way or P P
24% built-upon area
1 du per one-half acre or o
WS-V 1 du per 20,000 square | Zgnmalr)euzlal't-or
foot lot excluding p360/ buiI:[-
Protected roadway right-of-way or u 0[;] area 24 to 70% built-
Area 24% built-upon; or 3 dus witphout curb upon area
per acre or 36% built- and gutter

NOTE: Source of table is Model Water Supple Watershed Protection Ordinance published by NCDEMLR,

Stormwater program.

(B) CALCULATION OF PROJECT DENSITY. The following requirements
shall apply to the calculation of project density:

(1) Project density shall be calculated as the total built-upon area
divided by the total project area;




©

@)

)

)
)

®)
)

A project with "existing development,” as that term is defined
in Chapter 7, may use the calculation method in Sub-Item (1)
of this Item or may calculate project density as the difference
of total built-upon area minus existing built-upon area divided
by the difference of total project area minus existing built-
upon area.

Expansions to existing development are excluded unless the
expansion is part of a larger common plan of development
that is subject to these regulations and shall be subject to
15A NCAC 02B .0624 except as excluded in Rule 15A NCAC
02B .0622 (1)(d).

Where there is a net increase of built-upon area, only the
area of net increase shall be subject to the regulations.

Where existing development is being replaced with new built-
upon area, and there is a net increase of built-upon area, only
the area of net increase shall be subject to the regulations.
Total project area shall exclude the areas below the Normal
High Water Line (NHWL).

Projects under a common plan of development shall be
considered as a single project for purposes of density
calculation except that on a case-by-case basis, local
governments may allow projects to be considered to have
both high and low density areas based on one or more of the
following criteria:

(a) natural drainage area boundaries;

(b) variations in land use throughout the project; or

(c) construction phasing.

LOW DENSITY PROJECTS. In addition to complying with the project
density requirements of Item (A) of this Rule, low density projects
shall comply with the following:

€Y)

VEGETATED CONVEYANCES. Stormwater runoff from the
project shall be released to vegetated areas as dispersed flow
or transported by vegetated conveyances to the maximum
extent practicable. In determining whether this criteria has
been met, the local government shall take into account site-
specific factors such as topography and site layout as well as
protection of water quality. Vegetated conveyances shall be
maintained in perpetuity to ensure that they function as
designed. Vegetated conveyances that meet the following
criteria shall be deemed to satisfy the requirements of this
Sub-Item:
(@) Side slopes shall be no steeper than 3:1
(horizontal to vertical) unless it is demonstrated



@)

)

(b)

to the local government that the soils and
vegetation will remain stable in perpetuity based
on engineering calculations and on-site soil
investigation; and

The conveyance shall be designed so that is does
not erode during the peak flow from the 10-year
storm event as demonstrated by engineering
calculations.

CURB OUTLET SYSTEMS. In lieu of vegetated conveyances,
low density projects shall have the option to use curb and
gutter with outlets to convey stormwater to grassed swales or
vegetated areas. Requirements for these curb outlet systems
shall be as follows:

@

(©)

©
(d)
©)
™

The curb outlets shall be located such that the swale or
vegetated area can carry the peak flow from the 10-
year storm and at a non-erosive velocity;

The longitudinal slope of the swale or vegetated area
shall not exceed five percent except where not practical
due to physical constraints. In these cases, devices to
slow the rate of runoff and encourage infiltration to
reduce pollutant delivery shall be provided;

The swale's cross section shall be trapezoidal with a
minimum bottom width of two feet;

The side slopes of the swale or vegetated area shall be
no steeper than 3:1 (horizontal to vertical);

The minimum length of the swale or vegetated area
shall be 100 feet; and

Low density projects may use treatment swales
designed in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .1061 in
lieu of the requirements specified in Sub-ltems (a)
through (e) of this Sub-Item.

10/70 OPTION. Outside of the critical areas of WS-11 and WS-
IV watersheds, new development under the "10/70 option" is
allowed in accordance with the following requirements:

@

()

A maximum of 10 percent of the land area of a water
supply watershed outside of the critical area and within
Watauga County’s planning jurisdiction may be
developed with new development projects and
expansions of existing development of up to 70 percent
built-upon area.

The beginning amount of acreage available under this
option shall be based on the County’s jurisdiction as
delineated on the date the water supply watershed
classification became effective. The acreage within the



































































































AGENDA ITEM 5:

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED 2022
SCHEDULE OF VALUES

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

A public hearing has been scheduled for the 2022 Schedule of Values that will be used in
establishing prices for properties. A public hearing is required to allow public comment on the
Schedule of Values. The Schedule of Values have been available on the County’s website and a
hard copy in the Tax Administrator’s Office. The Schedule of VValues is 486 pages and is included
in the Board’s Information Packet/Closed Session link.

Board action is required to adopt the 2022 Schedule of Values as presented.






AGENDA ITEM 6:

UPDATE ON THE NEW RIVER CONSERVANCY’S SOUTH FORK PROJECT
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Chelsea Blount, New River Conservancy, will update the Board on current projects. The
report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.












































































































































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM 7:

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA MEDICAL CENTER BYLAWS
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Deanna S. Mool, ARHS attorney, will request the approval of an amendment to Article 11 that
would allow more flexibility in the At-Large selection process and updates the term limit
provisions applicable to the current board members.

In addition, Ms. Mool will request approval of the slate of candidates for the Watauga seats on
both the WMC and ARHS boards.

CLERK’S NOTE: THE SLATE OF CANDIDATES ARE UNDER BOARDS AND
COMMISSIONS WHERE THEY NORMALLY ARE EACH YEAR.

Board action is required to approve the amendment to Article Il regarding the At-Large selection
process and term limit provisions along with the slate of candidates.


















AGENDA ITEM 8:

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, will provide an update on the Coronavirus
(COVID-19).

The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.






AGENDA ITEM 9:

REQUEST TO PURCHASE MOBILE RADIOS
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Major Redmon, Watauga County Sheriff’s Office, will request Board approval for the purchase of
eight dual band mobile radios for the FY 21-22 vehicles from Two Way Radio of Carolina, Inc.
Total cost is $32,080. Adequate funds are available in the Sheriff’s budget to cover the expense.

Board action is required to approve the purchase of eight dual band mobile radios from Two Way
Radio of Carolina, Inc. in the amount of $32,080.


















AGENDA ITEM 10:

PROPOSED REPLACEMENT OF THE COURTHOUSE HVAC CONTROLS SYSTEM
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request after action approval by the Board for
repairs to the courthouse HVAC main controls. The cost of the repair was $15,561.88. Due to the
critical nature of the system and cold weather setting in staff authorized the repair to limit any
disruption to the system.

Board approval is required to approve the repair of the HVAC system in the amount of $15,561.88
with Johnson Controls.















Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 11:

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be
available for questions and discussion.

The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.



Monthly Collections Report

Watauga County

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The

reported

totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer

Monthly Report October 2021

|
M&b}gcii &/ £ Tax Collections Director

Tax Administrator

Current Month Current Month  Current FY Current FY Previous FY
Collections Percentage Collections Percentage Percentage

General County
Taxes 2021 2,413,517.50 12,190,966.42 33.02% 32.21%
Prior Year Taxes 20,109.07 153,382.81
Solid Waste User Fees 161,692.62 811,916.61 30.26% 29.36%
Green Box Fees 0.00 94,77 NA NA
Total County Funds $2,595,319.19 $13,156,360.61
Fire Districts
Foseoe-Fire 32770473 176;92235 3712% 36:67%
Boone Fire 48,370.56 279,764.94 30.68% 2931%
Fall Creek Service Dist, 678.73 3,361.64 35.17% 32.67%
Beaver Dam Fire 7,578.46 33,231.67 31.52% 31.55%
Stewart Simmons Fire 17,598.14 92,870.60 35.12% 29.56%
Zionville Fire 6,589.35 33,807.52 28.40% 30.85%
Cove Creek Fire 15,323.02 80,770.22 33.18% 3161%
Shawneehaw Fire 8,652.70 41,870.31 39.00% 34.33%
Meat Camp Fire 9,969.48 62,949.55 28.86% 29.38%
Deep Gap Fire 12,203.02 58,926.37 30.30% 28.67%
Teodd Fire 5,325.42 21,901.02 34.82% 36.67%
Blowing Rock Fire 33,990.01 191,193.69 37.93% 37.39%
M.C. Creston Fire 570.37 1,823.29 30.53% 30.31%
Foscoe Service District 4,092.09 26,226.76 34.72% 28.59%
Beech M. Service Dist. 281.85 382.96 23.10% 31.13%
Cove Creek Service Dist. 0.00 12.20 3.76% 3.76%
Shawneshaw Service Dist 654.78 1,833.97 2741% 26.28%

$203,903.98 $1,104,487.42
Towns
Boone 542,357.60 1,892,607.66 28.00% 29.18%
Municipal Services 56,055.21 90,838.98 43.43% 32.58%
Boone MV Fee NA NA NA NA NA
Blowing Rock NA NA NA NA NA
Seven Devils NA NA NA NA NA
Beech Mountain NA NA NA NA NA
Total Town Taxes $398,412.81 $1,983,446.64
Total Amount Collected  $3,397,635.98 $16,244,294.67




AGENDA ITEM 11:

TAX MATTERS

B. Refunds and Releases
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Larry Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports. Board action is required to
accept the Refunds and Releases Reports.



er erp solution

10/ 29/ 2021 14: 32 WATAUGA COUNTY P 1
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 10/01/2021 TO 10/29/2021 tncrar pt
CAT YEAR Bl LL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR
OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
1539663 BANNER MANOR CORP PP 2021 2619 10/ 29/ 2021 0 1 102. 72
600 SILVER SPRI NGS DR 539663999 Fo1 FO1 12.75
TAX RELEASES 7920 Q1L 10. 27
BANNER ELK, NC 28604- 7486 BUSI NESS SOLD FO1L 1.28
127.02
1022094 BYRD, BERN CE RE 2021 1430 10/ 29/ 2021 38,350 FO1 19.18
209 DOCK BYRD RD 1878- 56- 7000- 000 FO1 Q1 154. 55
TAX RELEASES 7930
BANNER ELK, NC 28604- EXEMPTI ON DI D NOT TRANSFER 173.73
1348234 DANCY, AGNES | RENE W PP 2021 2045 10/ 29/ 2021 0 SW 80. 00
147 FRANK BROWN RD 348234999 FO7 Q1 4.11
TAX RELEASES 7924 FO7 .51
VI LAS, NC 286928341 SOLD WH I N 2019 Q1L .41
FO7L .05
85. 08
1794566 HUNT, PETE PP 2020 3507 10/ 29/ 2021 0 F12 7.28
HUNT, ANNE 307 F12 Q1 58. 64
1812 TOPSAI L LANE REFUND RELEASE 7926 SWF 80. 00
SOLD I N 2019- NEW OMNER HAS LI STED AND F12L .73
NORTH MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29582-6823 PAI D 2020 FORWARD Q1L 5.86
152.51
1794566 HUNT, PETE PP 2020 3507 10/ 29/ 2021 0 F12 -7.28
HUNT, ANNE 307 F12 Q1 -58. 64
1812 TOPSAI L LANE REFUND RELEASE 7929 SWF -80. 00
SOLD I N 2019- NEW OMNER HAS LI STED AND F12L -.73
NORTH MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29582-6823 Reversal of rel ease 7926 Q1L -5.86
-152.51
1794566 HUNT, PETE PP 2021 1129 10/ 29/ 2021 0 F12 -7.06
HUNT, ANNE 3071 F1 Q1 -56. 86
1812 TOPSAI L LANE TAX RELEASES 7927 SWF -80. 00
SOLD I N 2019 F12L -.71
NORTH MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29582-6823 Rever sal of rel ease 7925 Q1L -5.69




er erp solution

10/ 29/ 2021 14: 32 WATAUGA COUNTY P 2
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 10/01/2021 TO 10/29/2021 tncrar pt
CAT YEAR Bl LL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR
OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
1794566 HUNT, PETE PP 2021 1129 10/ 29/ 2021 0 F12 7.06
HUNT, 3071 F12 Q1 56. 86
1812 TCPSAI L LANE TAX RELEASES 7925 SWF 80. 00
SOLD I N 2019 F12L .71
NORTH MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29582-6823 Q1L 5.69
150. 32
1558569 LOWES HOVE CENTERS, | NC RE 2021 39945 10/ 29/ 2021 3,424,200 C02 15, 066. 48
ATTN. TAX DEPARTMENT 2910-61-1916- 000 02 Q1 13, 799. 53
1000 LOWES BLVD TAX RELEASES 7921
MOORESVI LLE, NC 28117 PROPERTY TAX COWM SSI ON SETTLEMENT 28, 866. 01
1558569 LOWES HOVE CENTERS, | NC RE 2021 39945 10/ 29/ 2021 -3,424,200 Q02 - 15, 066. 48
ATTN: TAX DEPARTMENT 2910-61-1916- 000 Cco2 Q1 -13,799.53
1000 LOVES BLVD TAX RELEASES 7922
MOORESVI LLE, NC 28117 PROPERTY TAX COWM SSI ON SETTLEMENT -28,866.01
Reversal of rel ease 7921
1558569 LONES HOVE CENTERS, | NC RE 2021 39945 10/ 29/ 2021 3,424,200 (02 15, 066. 48
ATTN. TAX DEPARTNENT 2910-61-1916- 000 02 Q1 13, 799. 53
1000 LOWES BLVD TAX RELEASES 7923
MOORESVI LLE, NC 28117 PROPERTY TAX COMM SSI ON SETTLEMENT 28, 866. 01
1748978 MOUNTAI N MYSTI C SPRAY TANNI NG LLC PP 2021 395 10/ 29/ 2021 0 Q02 35. 77
285 HWY 105 EXT 1229 Cco2 @1 32.76
TAX RELEASES 7919
BOONE, NC 28607 BUSI NESS CLOSED 2020 68. 53
1519481 RHYNE, ROBI N RHODES RE 2021 24741 10/ 28/ 2021 0 FO02 56. 85
349 LEI SURE LN 2809- 46- 7225- 000 F02 @1 381. 84
TAX RELEASES 7931
BOONE, NC 28607 From CAMA I ntegration 438. 69
DETAI L SUMVARY COUNT: 12 RELEASES - TOTAL 3,462, 550 29, 759. 06



* % MunNis

b a tyler erp solution
10/ 29/ 2021 14:32 WATAUGA COUNTY P 3
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 10/01/2021 TO 10/ 29/ 2021 t ncr ar pt

RELEASES - CHARGE SUMVARY FOR ALL CLERKS

YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT
2020 PP F12 BLOW NG ROCK FI RE PP .00
2020 PP Fl2L BLOW NG ROCK FI RE LATE LI ST .00
2020 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP .00
2020 PP GD1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST .00
2020 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE .00

2020 TOTAL .00
2021 RE Q02 BOONE RE 15, 066. 48
2021 RE FO1 FOSCOE FI RE RE 19.18
2021 RE F02 BOONE FI RE RE 56. 85
2021 RE @01 WATAUGA COUNTY RE 14, 335. 92
2021 PP Q02 BOONE PP 35.77
2021 PP FO1 FOSCCE FI RE PP 12. 75
2021 PP FO1L FOSCCE FI RE LATE LI ST 1.28
2021 PP FO7 COVE CREEK FI RE PP .51
2021 PP FO7L COVE CREEK FI RE LATE LI ST .05
2021 PP Fl12 BLOW NG ROCK FI RE PP .00
2021 PP F12L BLOW NG ROCK FI RE LATE LI ST .00
2021 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 139. 59
2021 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 10. 68
2021 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00

2021 TOTAL 29, 759. 06

SUMVARY TOTAL 29, 759. 06



er erp solution

10/ 29/ 2021 14:32 WATAUGA COUNTY 7 P 4
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 10/01/2021 TO 10/ 29/ 2021 t ncr ar pt

RELEASES - JURI SDI CTI ON SUMVARY FOR ALL CLERKS

JUR YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT
C02 2021 C02 BOONE PP 15, 102. 25
C02 2021 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13, 832. 29

C02 TOTAL 28,934.54
FO1 2021 FO1 FOSCCE FI RE PP 31.93
FO1 2021 FO1L FOSCCE FI RE LATE LI ST 1.28
FO1 2021 Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 257. 27
FO1 2021 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 10. 27

FO1 TOTAL 300. 75
FO2 2021 FO2 BOONE FI RE RE 56. 85
FO02 2021 01 WATAUGA COUNTY RE 381. 84

FO02 TOTAL 438.69
FO7 2021 FO7 COVE CREEK FI RE PP .51
FO7 2021 FO7L COVE CREEK FI RE LATE LI ST .05
FO7 2021 Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 4.11
FO7 2021 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST .41
FO7 2021 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00

FO7 TOTAL 85.08
F12 2020 F12 BLOW NG ROCK FI RE PP .00
F12 2020 F12L BLOW NG ROCK FI RE LATE LI ST .00
F12 2020 Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP .00
F12 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST .00
F12 2020 SW SANI TATI ON USER FEE .00
F12 2021 F12 BLOW NG ROCK FI RE .00
F12 2021 F12L BLOW NG ROCK FI RE LATE LI ST .00
F12 2021 Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP .00
F12 2021 Q1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST .00
F12 2021 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE .00

F12 TOTAL .00

SUMVARY TOTAL 29, 759. 06



Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 12:

FINANCE MATTERS

A. FY 2021 Carry Forward Purchase Orders

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Ms. Watson will present carry forward purchase orders for Fiscal Year 2021.

Board action is required to approve the carry forward purchase order as presented.



Carry Forward Purchase Orders

Account Description Purpose Amount PO#
104141-429000 |Marketspace Solutions Monitors for revaluation 3,829.00 20201187
Vincent Valuations Revaluation for commercial and 207,173.00 2021201
104141-469500 residential properties
104180-451000 |Antivirus Security Antivirus security 1,000.00 2021181
104199-469103  |Clark Nexsen Facilities study 7,500.00 2020118
104210-439500 |Vermont Systems Training for software for CRC 2,926.74 2019148
104210-439500 |Vermont Systems Rec Trac training 4,160.00 2020103
104210-442201 |Rec Trac Rec Trac software for CRC 480.00 2019148
104210-442201  |Antivirus Security Antivirus security 9,500.00 2021181
104210-442201  |Tyler Technologies ESS module 1,500.00 2020038
104210-442201  |Tyler Technologies Crystal reporting module 4,940.00 2020221
104210-444000 |Rec Trac Maintenance for Rec Trac for CRC 1,357.37 2019148
104210-444000 |Tyler Technologies ESS maintenance 897.04 2020038
104210-444000 |Vermont Systems Rec Trac maintenance 211.79 2020103
104210-452000  [Firewall IT - Firewall 25,000.00 2021198
104261-435100 [Muter Courthouse roof 634,777.00 2021111
104263-435101  |Admin roof Admin building roof 10,285.50 2021111
104267-435101  |Carolina Pavement Technology Aealing and striping admin lot 8,564.00 2021154
104272-458000 |Western Watauga Community Center  |Renovations for grant received 3,491.00 2020242
104273-435101  |Carolina Pavement Technology Sealing and striping parking lots 3,504.00 2021154
104273-458000 |Parking deck study Parking deck study 64,175.47 2021201
104275-435101  |Carolina Pavement Technology Sealing and striping human services 18,058.00 2021154
lot
104277-435100 |Midway Carpet LEC carpet replacement 4,847.44 2021175
104283-135103  |CRC relocation of fields, tennis courts, |CRC relocation of fields, tennis 335,416.69 2021201
basketball and pickle ball courts, basketball and pickle ball
104283-135103  |Triangle Fence Color coating, striping and equipment 58,250.00 2021115
at Sports Complex
104283-135103 | Tri-County Paving paving at Sports Complex 104,298.99 2021116
104283-135103  |McCall Commercial Fencing Fencing at Sports Complex 22,647.59 2021114
104283-457006  |JW Hampton Middlefork Greenway Sect 4 1,204,298.00 2021178
104285-457007  [South Fork New River Phase Il South Fork New River Phase |1 68,167.80 2021201
104289-456000 |Community Rec Center equipment Small cleaning equipment 8,161.47 2021201
104289-458003 | Timmons Group Design Services for Engineering and design of the 3,410.00 2019149
Watauga County outdoor facilities at the new
Community Recreation Center
104310-421200 |Dana Safety Ballistic duty vests 4,378.20 2021186
104310-439501 [Dana Safety Ammunition 1,500.00 2021184
104310-454000 [Police upfitting on vehicles Police upfitting on vehicles 26,488.92 2021173
104310-454000 |Dana Safety K-9 kennel for Durango 4,173.00 2021185
104310-454000 [llderton Dodge Police vehicles (7) 211,236.00 2021137
104310-454000 |[NCDMV Taxes and tag on vehicles 6,412.58 2021138
104310-454000  |Piedmont Specialty Vehicle Emergency equipment for vehicles 8,250.00 2021189
104310-454000 |Mobile Communications Kenwood Viking Dual radio 4,583.50 2020222
104311-451000 |Emergency Management Equipment Emergency Management Equipment 96,484.49 2021201
upgrades upgrades
104311-451008 |Emergency Management Tower Emergency Management Tower 6,111.05 2021201
Upgrades Upgrades
104380-454000 |Animal Control vehicle replacement Animal Control vehicle replacement 24,795.00 2021201
104920-463000  |Artemis Independent Boonies Videos 10,000.00 2020053
104960-429002  [No Till Drill Carry forward per Grant 3,829.76 2016238




Carry Forward Purchase Orders

104960-449902  |Bill Edmisten Memorial donations Memorial donations 380.61 2010369
104960-449917  |Wards Mill Dam Removal Wards Mill Dam Removal 102,443.75 2021201
104960-469853  |Soil and Water Special Allocation Soil and Water Special Allocation 4,577.98 2021202
105550-449901  |POA carry forward funds Carry forward MIPAA grant funds 3,020.00 2021194
105550-449902  |POA carry forward funds Carry forward Exxon grant funds 5,826.21 2021197
106120-412600 |Childcare part-time salaries Rec Center |Childcare part-time salaries Rec 20,000.00 2021195
Center
106120-449900 |Carry forward senior games Senior games 7,263.73 2016237
145310-449902  |Foster Care Discretionary Funds Carry forward foster care funds 3,689.39 2021199
145310-449903  |Adult Protective Services Carry forward adult protective 1,836.47 2021199
service funds
145310-449904  |CPS Discretionary Funds Carry forward CPS funds 1,354.28 2021199
145410-440006  |Adoption promotion Adoption promotion 1,144.91 2021199
145310-442201  |Antivirus Security Antivirus security 2,500.00 2021181
264330-422000  [Priority Dispatch Annual maintenance 16,800.00 2021050
505914-469103  |Clark Nexsen Valle Crucis School architect 2,457,750.00 2021192
667420-441100 [Rent at container site Container Site 4,400.00 2020233
667420-449966  |Antivirus Security Antivirus security 500.00 2021181
667420-457001 |Padco Excavating Transfer station improvements 163,789.97 2021168
667420-457001  |Transfer station improvements Stormwater pond, trailer storage, 1,573,837.00 2021181

transfer station, scale turning lane,
and inbound scale improvements




Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 12:

FINANCE MATTERS

B. Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, will present the contract renewal with Insurance
Management Consultants for catastrophic insurance for inmates housed in the County jail. The
insurance shields the County from large medical claims that occur while inmates are being housed
in the Watauga County Jail.

Board action is required to approve the contract with Insurance Management Consultants, Inc. for
catastrophic insurance coverage for $25,328.52, a $11,567 decrease, with a $5,000
deductible. Adequate funds are available to cover the contracted cost.



WATAUGA COUNTY

FINANCE OFFICE
814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007 Fax (828) 265-8006

MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Misty Watson, Finance Director
SUBJECT: Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract
DATE: November 9, 2021

Attached please find information on the renewal contract from Insurance Management Consultants,
Inc. (administered through Hunt Insurance Group, LLC) for the insurance policy for large medical
claims incurred on behalf of inmates in the County’s care. The renewal amount is $25,328.52 with
the $5,000 deductible. This represents an $11,567 decrease from last year’s premium. Funds of
$45,000 are available in the current detention budget for this contract. Option 1 includes prior to
booking coverage and option 2 excludes the booking coverage. Based on prior claims, I
recommend the acceptance of option 2 with a $5,000 deductible.

Board approval is requested for the contract.



\\ »S ENDORSED

ENDORSED BY THE
NATIONAL SHERIFFS' ASSOCIATION

ADMINISTERED BY
HUNT INSURANCE GROUP, LLC

Date of Proposal: October 11,2021
Proposed Insured: Watauga County Sheriff's Office
City, State: Boone, NC
Facilities Include: watauga County Detention Center
Issuing Company: - sjriys America Insurance Company, A.M. Best Rating "A-" Excellent
Coverage Type: Limited Health Expense Benefits - provided outside the walls of the facility, or facilities, listed above and as outlined in the Insurance Policy.
Policy Form: Blanket Accident Medical
Effective Date: December 1,2021
Number of Inmates: 69

Per Inmate Deductible: $5,000 $5,000
Per Inmate Coverage Limit: $250,000 $250,000
Policy Maximum: $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Rate Per Inmate Per Month: $45.89 $30.59
Prior to Booking / During Pursuit Coverage: Included Excluded

Eligible Medical Services shall accumulate to satisfy the Per Inmate

Claim A lation Basis: . - . .
aim Accdmediation Basts Deductible as outlined below and be reimbursed at the following:

Covered Expenses:
In-Patient Hospital Services:
Outpatient Hospital Services:
Physician Services:
Outpatient Diagnostic and Lab Services: Per NC Statutes 153A-225.2 and 148-19.3 Per NC Statutes 153A-225.2 and 148-19.3
Ambulance Services:

Medical Services and Supplies:

Dialysis:
. Limited to those provided and administered during a Limited to those provided and administered during a
Prescription Drugs: X . . .
Hospital Stay. Specialty Drugs are not covered. Hospital Stay. Specialty Drugs are not covered.
TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM: $37,996.92 $25,328.52

Conditions and Assumptions

« Includes coverage for AIDS/HIV & Pregnancy; Specialty Drugs are excluded.

« Mental and Nervous or Substance Abuse benefits are excluded from coverage.

« This proposal is based on data submitted and other information furnished relevant to underwriting the risk, including all claims or possible claims, paid, pending, or denied
pending additional information, or which the prospective insured or authorized representative should otherwise be aware of. Any inaccuracy in the data submitted or failure to
disclose any such information can change the terms, conditions, rates, or factors of this offer or can void offer and coverage.

« Claim Provisions: From: To:

Claims Incurred: December1,2021  November 30,2022
Claims Reported:  December1,2021  May 31,2023
Claims Submitted: December1,2021  May 31,2023

« This proposal is valid for the stated effective date shown above provided the prospective insured or its authorized representative elects one of the above options by
November 30, 2021, by submitting a signed application, which will be provided after your selection is made. Until we obtain the signed application, the rates and factors are
subject to change as additional information is received.

« Acceptance of this quote is contingent upon and subject to the actual terms of the policy as issued, which occurs upon binding and premium payment. If there is any conflict
between this quote and the policy, the policy will govern in all cases.

Desired Coverage: D Option 1 D Option 2

Printed Name: Title: Date:

Signature of Prospective Insured:

A North Carolina Sheriffs’ Association

Catastrophic Inmate Medical Insurance Administered by: Hunt Insurance Group, LLC
2075 Center Poinfe Blvd, Ste. 101, Tallahassee, FL 32308 o-o Toll Free: (800) 763-4868 o0 huntbenefits@huntinscom o0 wwwinmatemedicalinsurancecom

© 2021 Hunt Insurance Group LLC The precise coverage afforded is subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions of the actual policies as issued by the insurance company. This document and all its contents are CONFIDENTIAL and
PROPRIETARY and cannot be replaced, disclosed or duplicated to any third party without the prior, written consent of Hunt Insurance Group, LLC.


https://www.huntins.com/
https://www.sheriffs.org/insurance/Hunt-Insurance

Blank Page




AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Proposed Acceptance of Communications Grant on Behalf of NC State Highway Patrol
TSU/NCEM

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Board approval is requested to accept the grant as a subrecipient from the Homeland Security
Grant Program (HSGP) in the amount of $400,000 for the VIPER System for their use in installing
a microwave monitoring system throughout the state. The system will be in use at multiple radio
sites within Watauga County and is a critical upgrade which benefits our public safety radio
systems. The grant is similar to the $350,000 grant that was previously accepted for radios for our
State EM local members.

Board action is required to accept the grant as a subrecipient from the Homeland Security Grant
Program (HSGP) in the amount of $400,000.



Watauga County Emergency Services

184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D
Boone, NC 28607
Phone 828-264-4235
Fax 828-265-7617

Fire Marshal ¢ Emergency Management ¢ Communications

November 4, 2021
To: Board of Commissioners

CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager
Misty Watson, Finance Director
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Subject: Acceptance of Communications Grant on behalf of NCSHP TSU/NCEM

Board of Commissioners,

Please consider my request to accept the FY21 HSPG Grant as a subrecipient on behalf of North Carolina
Emergency Management (NCEM) and the NC State Highway Patrol VIPER System for their use in
installing a microwave monitoring system for use in all 100 Counties and the Eastern Band of the
Cherokee Indians. This grant is in the amount of $400,000.00 and will executed by the NC State Highway
Patrol. This system will be in use at multiple radio sites within Watauga County and is a critical upgrade
which benefits our public safety radio systems.

Respectfully,

Will Holt
ES Director



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 )
North Carolina Department of Public Safety

m Emergency Management

Roy Cooper, Governor William C. Ray, Director
Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP)
Fiscal Year 2021
AL #: 97.067
Grant#: EMW-2021-SS-00039

SUBAWARD NOTIFICATION

William Holt Period of Performance: October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024
Watauga County Project Title: VIPER Microwave Monitoring System - Telenium
184 Hodges Gap Rd Total Amount of Award: $400,000.00

Boone , NC 28607-8736 MOA #: 2140046

North Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM) is pleased to inform you that the federal Fiscal Year (FY) 2021
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) has been approved for funding. In accordance with the provisions of FY
2021 HSGP award, NCEM hereby awards to the foregoing subrecipient a grant in the amount shown above.

Payment of funds: The grant shall be effective upon final approval by NCEM of the grant budget and program
narrative and the execution of the forthcoming Memorandum of Agreement. Grant funds will be disbursed
(according to the approved project budget) upon receipt of evidence that funds have been invoiced and products
received and/or that funds have been expended (i.e., invoices, contracts, itemized expenses, etc.).

Conditions: The subrecipient shall understand and agree that funds will only be expended for those projects
outlined in the funding amounts as individually listed above. Subrecipient shall also certify the understanding and
agreement to comply with the general and fiscal terms and conditions of the grant including special conditions; to
comply with provisions of the 2 CFR 200 and all applicable laws governing these funds and all other federal, state
and local laws; that all information is correct; that there has been appropriate coordination with affected agencies;
that subrecipient is duly authorized to commit the applicant to these requirements; that costs incurred prior to grant
application approval will result in the expenses being absorbed by the subrecipient; and that all agencies involved
with this project understand that federal funds are limited to the period of performance. Subrecipient must read and
sign forthcoming Memorandum of Agreement for acceptance of the award.

For projects involving construction or the installation of equipment:

Prior to funds being expended from this award the subrecipient must complete and submit an Environmental
Planning and Historical Preservation form to NCEM for approval. On receipt of the approval letter from NCEM the
subrecipient may begin to expend grant funds.

Supplanting: The subrecipients confirm that sub-grant funds will not be used to supplant or replace local or state
funds or other resources that would otherwise have been available for homeland security activities. In compliance
with that mandate, the subrecipient will certify that the receipt of federal funds through NCEM shall in no way
supplant or replace state or local funds or other resources that would have been made available for homeland
security activities.

GRANT AWARD NOTICE: THIS AWARD IS SUBJECT TO THE GRANT SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND
FINAL APPROVAL BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY, NORTH CAROLINA EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT GRANT PROGRAM BUDGET AND NARRATIVE

%
CHR
NDRTHC&Q
MAILING ADDRESS OFFICE LOCATION
4236 Mail Service Center 1636 Gold Star Drive
Raleigh NC 27699-4236 Raleigh, NC 27607-3371
www.readync.org Telephone: (919) 825-2500
www.ncdps.gov Fax: (919) 825-2685

An Equal Opportunity employer



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

bPs’

Roy Cooper, Governor William C. Ray, Director
Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary

North Carolina Department of Public Safety

Emergency Management

Homeland Security Grant Program
(HSGP)

Fiscal Year 2021

AL #:97.067
Grant #: EMW-2021-SS-00039

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)

between
Recipient: Subrecipient:
State of North Carolina Watauga County
Department of Public Safety Tax ID/EIN #: 566001816-A
Emergency Management Duns #. 08-998-8216
MOA #: 2140046 Award amount: $400,000.00

Period of performance:
October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024

1. Purpose

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to establish responsibilities and procedures to implement
the terms and conditions of the US Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Homeland Security Grant Program
(HSGP). More information about HSGP is available at: https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/homeland-security.
This MOA is to set forth terms by which the Recipient, State of North Carolina, Department of Public Safety, North
Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM), shall provide HSGP funding to the Subrecipient to fund projects related to
Homeland Security Planning, Operations, Equipment purchases, Training and Exercises. For a more detailed description
of the approved Scope of Work see Attachment 1.

2. Program Authorization and Regulations
This MOA is authorized under the provisions of: (1) Section 2002 of the Homeland Security Act of 2002 (Pub. L. No.
107-296, as amended) (6 U.S.C. 8 603 - § 609), (2) Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2021 (Pub.
L. No. 116-260), (3) FY 2021 HSGP Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO): https://www.fema.gov/media-
collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity, (4) applicable FEMA Grant Programs Directorate
Information Bulletins (see https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/about/informational-bulletins), and (5) NC
Emergency Management Act, North Carolina General Statutes (N.C.G.S.) Chapter 166A.

The funds awarded under this grant must be used in compliance with all applicable federal, state, local and tribal laws
and regulations, including N.C.G.S. 88 143C-6-21, 143C-6-22, 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M. By accepting this award,
the Subrecipient agrees to use these funds in a manner consistent with all applicable laws and regulations.

3. Projects managed by Recipient (NCEM) on behalf of Subrecipient - Return of Funds
By initialing, Subrecipient requests that Recipient (NCEM on behalf of State of North Carolina) retains all funds
awarded to Subrecipient under this grant. Subrecipient desires for NCEM and/or its assigns to conduct the activities
described in Attachment 1 of this MOA on its behalf. These activities are related to planning, making equipment
purchases, and conducting training and exercises to improve prevention, protection, preparedness, response, and
recovery capabilities. Subrecipient relieves itself from the requirements set forth in this MOA with respect to all funds
returned to Recipient.

HSGP MOA 2021 1of 16


https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/homeland-security
https://www.fema.gov/media-collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity
https://www.fema.gov/media-collection/homeland-security-grant-notices-funding-opportunity
https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/about/informational-bulletins

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

4. Assignment of Funds by Subrecipient to Designated Third Party (not NCEM)
__ By initialing, Subrecipient agrees to assign all funds awarded under this grant to a designated third party (an
entity/organization other than NCEM). Subrecipient and designated third party agree to complete Appendix 6 to this
MOA, which is to be signed by both parties, designating third party to assume responsibility for all requirements set
forth in this MOA with respect to all funds assigned to third party.

5. Compensation
Recipient agrees that it will pay Subrecipient compensation for eligible services to be rendered by Subrecipient.
Payment to Subrecipient for expenditures under this MOA will be reimbursed after Subrecipient’s cost report is
submitted and approved for eligible scope of work activity. Grant funds will be disbursed (according to the approved
project budget) upon receipt of evidence that funds have been invoiced, products or services received (i.e., invoices,
contracts, itemized expenses, etc.), and proof of payment is provided.

Subrecipients must meet all reimbursement requirements contained herein. Non-compliance may result in denial of
reimbursement request(s) or revocation of equipment and/or grant funds awarded for this project. See also paragraph 9
below regarding compliance.

6. Funding Eligibility Criteria
Federal funds administered through Recipient (NCEM on behalf of State of North Carolina) are available to local
governments to assist in the cost of developing and maintaining a comprehensive homeland security response program.
Continued HSGP funding is contingent upon completion of all HSGP funding requirements. The following eligibility
criteria must be adhered to during the entire duration of the grant program:

A. Recipient/Subrecipient must:

i. Be established as a state, local, or nonprofit agency by appropriate resolution/ordinance.

ii. Subrecipient must have a DUNS number, prior to any funds being released. DUNS numbers may be obtained
from either of the following websites: www.dnb.com or http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform.

iii. Each subrecipient shall ensure their organization is registered with the System for Award Management (SAM).
Every applicant is required to have their name, address, DUNS number and EIN up to date in SAM, and the
DUNS number used in SAM must be the same one used to apply for all FEMA awards. SAM information can
be found at http://www.sam.gov. Future payments will be contingent on the information provided in SAM,;
therefore it is imperative that the information is correct.

iv. Complete any procurement(s) and expenditures no later than February 28, 2024.

v. Provide quarterly progress reports to NCEM Grant Managers (ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov) using the grant
ngrterly Report form (Attachment 2), by the following dates: January 15", April 15", July 15" and October
15"

vi. Submit requests for reimbursement with all required documentation attached.

B. File Retention (see Attachment 5 “Required Subrecipient File Documentation”):

Subrecipient is required to maintain records and (invoices) of this grant for three years after termination of the grant,
or audit if required, or longer where required by law, as outlined below, attached and incorporated by reference.
Recipient must meet the record retention requirements in 2 CFR 200.334 and must maintain a file for each HSGP
grant award. However, if any litigation, claim or audit has been initiated prior to the expiration of the three-year
period and extends beyond the five-year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit
findings involving the records have been resolved. The following files must be available for review by NCEM staff
for site visits, project closeout and audits:

i. Resolution/ordinance establishing Subrecipient as a state or local government, or nonprofit organization.

ii. Award letter, MOA, and supporting appendices.

iii. Completed appropriate reports with specifications, solicitations, competitive quotes or proposals, basis for
selection decisions, purchase orders, contracts, invoices and proof(s) of payment.

iv. Audit findings and corrective action plans.

v. Equipment inventory records with photo documentation of labeling using labels provided by NCEM.

7. Conditions
The Subrecipient certifies that it understands and agrees that funds will only be expended for those projects outlined in
the funding amounts as individually listed in the FY 2021 HSGP Application packet, incorporated by reference herein.
The Recipient and Subrecipient certify that each understands and agrees to comply with the general and fiscal terms
and conditions of the grant including special conditions; to comply with provisions of the applicable laws, rules and

HSGP MOA 2021 2 0f 16


http://www.dnb.com/
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://www.sam.gov/
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

10.

policies governing these funds; that all information is correct; that there has been appropriate coordination with affected
agencies; that the Recipient is duly authorized to commit the Subrecipient to these requirements; that costs incurred
prior to grant application approval will result in the expenses being absorbed by the Subrecipient; and that all agencies
involved with this project understand that all federal funds are limited to the federal period of performance.

Supplantation

Subrecipients are required to assure and certify that these grant funds will not be used to supplant or replace local or
state funds or other resources that would otherwise have been available for homeland security activities. Subrecipients
may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal resources occurred for reasons other
than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds.

Compliance

Subrecipient shall comply with applicable federal, state, local and/or tribal statutes, regulations, ordinances, licensing
requirements, policies, guidelines, reporting requirements, certifications and other regulatory matters for the conduct of
its business and purchase requirements performed under this MOA. This includes all requirements contained in the
applicable FY 2021 HSGP NOFO referenced in paragraph 2 above. Subrecipient shall be wholly responsible for the
purchases made under this MOA and for the supervision of its employees and assistants.

Failure to comply with the specified terms and conditions of this MOA may result in the return of funds and any other
remedy for noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339, and/or termination of the award per 2 CFR 200.340. Additional
conditions may also be placed upon Subrecipient for noncompliance with the specified terms and conditions of this
MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring.

Responsibilities
Recipient:

A. Recipient shall provide funding to Subrecipient to perform the activities as described herein.
B. Recipient shall conduct a review of the project to ensure that it is in accordance with HSGP requirements.

C. The federal award date is October 1, 2021. Funds allocated must be encumbered and invoices received by NCEM
by February 28, 2024.

D. Recipient shall directly monitor the completion of this project.
Subrecipient:

A. This MOA must be signed and returned to NCEM within 45 days after Subrecipient receives notice of this award.
The grant shall be effective upon return of the executed Grant Award and MOA and final approval by NCEM of
the grant budget and program narrative.

B. The Subrecipient shall expend FY 2021 HSGP Grant Program funds in accordance with the FY2021 HSGP NOFO,
the grant application, and Subaward Notification.

C. Closeout Reporting Requirements. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.344, Subrecipient must submit to Recipient, no
later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, all financial, performance, and other
reports as required by the terms and conditions of the federal award, this MOA and DHS Standard Terms and
Conditions (Attachment 4), incorporated by reference herein, for the performance of the activities.

D. Procurement. The Subrecipient shall utilize State of North Carolina and/or local procurement policies and
procedures for the expenditure of funds, and conform to applicable state and federal law and the standards identified
in 2 CFR 200.317 — 200.327. Subrecipient must follow procurement procedures and policies as outlined in the
applicable FY2021 HSGP NOFO, Appendix Il of 2 CFR Part 200-Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity
Contracts Under Federal Awards, and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual. Subrecipient shall comply
with all applicable laws, regulations and program guidance. Subrecipient must comply with the most recent version
of the funding administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit requirements. Administrative and
procurement practices must conform to applicable federal requirements. A non-exclusive list of regulations
commonly applicable to DHS grants are listed below, codified in the following guidance: 15 CFR Part 24; Federal
Acquisition Regulations (FAR), Part 31.2; 28 CFR Part 23 “Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies”; 49
CFR Part 1520 “Sensitive Security Information”; Public Law 107-296, The Critical Infrastructure Act of 2002; Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000 et. seq.; Title IX of the Education Amendments of
1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et. seq; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C.

HSGP MOA 2021 30of 16


https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_contract-provisions-guide_6-14-2021.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_contract-provisions-guide_6-14-2021.pdf

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

794; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 6101 et. seq.; Cash Management Improvement
Act (CMIA) and its implementing regulations at 31 CFR Part 205; FEMA Grant Programs Directorate, Grants
Management Division, Match Guidance; Certifications and Assurances regarding Lobbying 31 U.S.C. 1352, Drug-
Free Workplace Act, as amended, 41 U.S.C. 701 et. seq. and Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace
Requirements, Debarment and Suspension Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 and certification regarding
debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters; 28 CFR Parts 66, 67, 69, 70 and 83; and Grant Award and
Special Conditions documents.

E. Submit invoice(s) requesting reimbursement for item(s) received to NCEM Grants Management Branch
(ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov). Recipient will reimburse Subrecipient for eligible costs as outlined in the applicable
DHS program guidelines and FY2021 HSGP NOFO . Subrecipient must take possession of all purchased equipment
and receive any grant-eligible service prior to seeking reimbursement from the Recipient. Subrecipient must submit
request for reimbursement within 60 days of payment of invoice. Requests for reibursement submitted more than
60 days after Subrecipient payment of invoice may be denied.

F. Complete the procurement(s) process not later than February 28, 2024.

G. Provide quarterly progress reports to NCEM Grant Managers (ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov) using the grant Quarterly
Report form (Attachment 2), by the following dates: January 15th, April 15th, July 15th and October 15th.

H. Maintain a grant management filing system as required in this MOA (Attachment 5).

I.  Provide a list at project Closeout to NCEM Grants Management Branch (ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov), DPR Chair,
and Branch Office of all items purchased through this grant. This information is to be reported on the “Grant-
Funded Typed Resource Report” (Attachment 3) or similar spreadsheet. See FEMA Resource Typing Library Tool
(RTLT) at https://rtlt.preptoolkit.fema.gov/Public.

J. Comply with the applicable federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements, reporting
requirements and certifications as outlined in the FY 2021 HSGP NOFO and Subaward Notification, and DHS
Standard Terms and Conditions (Attachment 4).

K. Comply with current federal laws and suspension and debarment regulations pursuant to 2 CFR 200.213 — 200.214,
2 CFR Part 180 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Guidance, which requires in pertinent part that
when a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at a lower tier, the non-federal entity must
verify that the entity is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded. Subrecipient shall be responsible to ensure
that it has checked the federal System for Awards Management (SAM), https://sam.gov/content/exclusions and the
State Debarred Vendors Listing, https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors, to verify that contractors
or subrecipients have not been suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal government.

L. Ensure that HSGP funds are not used to support hiring sworn public safety officers for the purposes of fulfilling
traditional public safety duties or to supplant traditional public safety positions and responsibilities.

M. Non-Supplanting Requirement. See paragraph 8 (Supplantation).

N. All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain this acknowledgement: “This project was
supported by a federal award from the US Department of Homeland Security, Department of Public Safety, North
Carolina Emergency Management.” Use of the federal program logo must be approved by DHS. Printed as a legend,
either below or beside the logo shall be the words “Funded by US Department of Homeland Security”.

O. Subrecipient shall have sole responsibility for the maintenance, insurance, upkeep, and replacement of any
equipment procured pursuant to this MOA as follows:

i. Recipient and Subrecipient shall take an initial physical inventory of any equipment. Equipment is defined as
tangible, non-expendable property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000
or more per unit. Subrecipient may have property management guidelines that are more restrictive, requiring a
unit of equipment with a value of less than $5,000 to be inventoried. If so, such equipment purchased under this
award allocation shall be included on the report submitted to Recipient. The grant summary, cost reports with
backup documentation, certificate of title, and any other Subrecipient reports or inventory reports that include
information regarding the grant, vendor, invoice number, cost per item, number of items, description, location,
condition and identification number may be used to meet this requirement.

HSGP MOA 2021 4 0of 16


mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov
https://rtlt.preptoolkit.fema.gov/Public
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions
https://sam.gov/content/exclusions
https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

P.

o

ii. Subrecipient must ensure a control system exists to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage or theft.
Subrecipient shall be responsible for replacing or repairing equipment which is willfully or negligently lost,
stolen, damaged, or destroyed. Any loss, damage or theft of the property must be investigated and fully
documented, and made part of the official project records.

iii. Subrecipient or equipment owner must ensure adequate maintenance procedures exist to keep the equipment in
good condition.

iv. Disposition Procedures. Unless otherwise directed by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA, Subrecipient may dispose
of the equipment when the original or replacement equipment acquired under the grant award is no longer
needed for the original project or program, or for other activities currently or previously supported by a federal
awarding agency. However, Subrecipient must notify NCEM Grants Management Branch prior to disposing
of any equipment purchased with grant funds. Items with a fair market value of less than $5,000 may be retained,
transferred or otherwise disposed of with prior approval of NCEM and in accordance with disposition
requirements in 2 CFR 200.313. Unless otherwise directed by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA, items with a current
per unit standard federal or fair market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained, transferred or otherwise
disposed of with prior NCEM approval in accordance with disposition requirements in 2 CFR 200.313.
Subrecipient must provide documentation that includes the method used to determine current fair market value.

v. Only allowable equipment listed in the Authorized Equipment List (AEL) for HSGP are eligible for purchases
from this grant.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment purchased with HSGP funds shall be titled to Subrecipient, unless
otherwise specified by NCEM, DHS and/or FEMA. Subrecipient shall be responsible for the custody and care of
any property and equipment purchased with HSGP funds furnished for use in connection with this MOA, and shall
reimburse the Recipient for any loss or damage to said property until the property is disposed of in accordance with
HSGP Program requirements. Recipient will not be held responsible for any property purchased under this MOA.

Subrecipient must utilize all property and equipment as intended in their project application to NCEM. Any
variation from this intended use must be requested in writing and approved by NCEM. Any property and equipment
purchased under the HSGP grant, including this specific grant award to Subrecipient, is subject to use as a regional
asset to be utilized and directed by DHS, NCEM, and Domestic Preparedness Region (DPR) partners statewide as
needed.

Per 2 CFR 200.313, during the time that equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired,
Subrecipient must also make the equipment available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously
supported by this or other federal grants, provided that such use will not interfere with the work on the projects or
program for which it was originally acquired. First preference for other use must be given to other programs or
projects supported by DHS that financed the equipment and second preference must be given to other programs or
projects under grants from other federal awarding agencies. NCEM, in conjunction with DHS and DPR partners,
will determine and direct how equipment will be redeployed.

Failure to comply with these terms and conditions may result in the return of funds and any other remedy for
noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339, and/or termination of the award per 2 CFR 200.340. Additional
conditions may also be placed upon Subrecipient for noncompliance with the specified terms and conditions of this
MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring and special conditions placed on future awards per 2
CFR 200.208.

Indirect Costs. No indirect or administrative costs will be charged to this award. See 2 CFR 200.332(a).

Communications equipment. In an effort to align communications technologies with current statewide
communications plans, systems, networks, strategies and emerging technologies, the NCEM Communications
Branch requires that purchases made with grant funds meet the standards identified in Attachment 6.

The purchase or acquisition of any additional materials, equipment, accessories or supplies, or the provision of any
training, exercise or work activities beyond that identified in this MOA, shall be the sole responsibility of
Subrecipient and shall not be reimbursed under this MOA.

Conflicts of Interest. Per 2 CFR 200.112 and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual, all subrecipients must
disclose in writing to NCEM, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflict of interest that may arise during
the administration of a federal grant award. For purposes of this MOA, conflicts of interest may arise in situations

HSGP MOA 2021 50f 16


https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools/authorized-equipment-list
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=de00dfd10f09071c905d0928428a197d&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3164f893d6d82447c92d899285ce22b2&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=081a194046528468942c369470c2966a&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:28:200.313

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

11.

12.

13.

14.

where a subrecipient employee, officer, or agent, any members of his or her immediate family, or his or her partner
has a family relationship, close personal relationship, business relationship, or professional relationship, with
anybody at DHS, FEMA and/or NCEM involved in the administration of this grant award.

Per 2 CFR 200.318 and the 2021 FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual, all subrecipients that are non-federal entities
other than states are required to maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing
the actions of their employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts. No employee,
officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a federal award
if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such conflicts of interest would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization that employs or
is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal
benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the subrecipient may neither
solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.
However, subrecipients may set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift
is an unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions to be applied
for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents of the subrecipient. All subrecipients must disclose
in writing to NCEM, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflicts of interest with respect to procurement,
contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award. Upon request, subrecipients must also
provide a copy of their standards of conduct policy covering conflicts of interest with respect to procurement,
contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award.

U. Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Compliance. Subrecipients proposing projects that
could impact the environment, including, but not limited to, the construction of communication towers,
modification or renovation of existing buildings, structures, and facilities, or new construction including
replacement of facilities, must participate in the DHS/FEMA EHP review process. For details see:
https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/preparedness-grants-ehp-compliance.

V. Subrecipient must have an acceptable local travel regulation plan or accept the state travel regulations. Refer to 2
CFR 200.475 for travel costs.

Funding
All terms and conditions of this MOA are dependent upon and subject to the allocation of funds from DHS and NCEM
for the purposes set forth, and the MOA shall automatically terminate if funds cease to be available.

Allowable costs shall be determined in accordance with applicable DHS Program Guidelines, which include, but may
not be limited to, the FY2021 HSGP NOFO, 2 CFR 200 Subpart E, Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Part 31.2,
OMB Circulars A-21, and applicable DHS and FEMA financial management guidance available at
https://www.dhs.gov/dhs-grants and https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools. Allowable costs are also subject to
the approval of the State Administrative Agent for the State of North Carolina, the Secretary of the Department of Public
Safety.

Taxes
Subrecipient shall be considered to be an independent subrecipient and as such shall be responsible for ALL taxes.
There shall be no reimbursement for taxes incurred by the subrecipient under this grant.

Warranty

As an independent subrecipient, the Subrecipient will hold Recipient harmless for any liability and personal injury that
may occur from or in connection with the performance of this MOA to the extent permitted by the North Carolina Tort
Claims Act. Nothing in this MOA, express or implied, is intended to confer on any other person any rights or remedies
in or by reason of this MOA. This MOA does not give any person or entity other than the parties hereto any legal or
equitable claim, right or remedy. This MOA is intended for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto. This
MOA is not made for the benefit of any third person or persons. No third party may enforce any part of this MOA or
shall have any rights hereunder. This MOA does not create, and shall not be construed as creating, any rights
enforceable by any person not a party to this MOA. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State of North Carolina.

State of North Carolina Reporting Requirements per NCGS 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M

North Carolina state law (N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M) requires every non-state entity (including non-profit
organizations, counties and local governments) that receives state or federal pass-through grant funds from state

HSGP MOA 2021 6 of 16


https://www.fema.gov/grants/preparedness/preparedness-grants-ehp-compliance
https://www.dhs.gov/dhs-grants
https://www.fema.gov/grants/guidance-tools
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-6-23.html
http://ncrules.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/subchapter%20m%20rules.pdf
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-1-1.html

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

agencies to file annual reports on how those grant funds were used no later than three months after the end of the non-
state entity’s fiscal year.

Refer to “State Grant Compliance Reporting Forms” on the following website for instructions and applicable forms
for subrecipients to meet these requirements: https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-
management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance .

Level I (Less than $25,000)
A grantee receiving less than $25,000 (combined) in state or federal pass through funds must submit:

e Certification Form.

e State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of Less than $25,000.

e Level | form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.

Level 11 ($25,000 - $499,999)

A grantee that receives between $25,000 - $499,999 (combined) in state or federal pass-through funding must submit:

e Certification Form.

e State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More.

e Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures.

e Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports.

o Level Il form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.

Level 111 ($500,000 - $749,999)

A grantee that receives a combined $500,000 or more in state funding or federal pass-through funding must submit:

e Certification Form.

e State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More.

e Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports.

o Level Il form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.

e Submit within nine months of the grantee's fiscal year end: Submit to DPS Internal Audit a single audit prepared
and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards. See paragraph 15 below
for audits.

Level 111 Continued ($750,000+)

A grantee that receives a combined $750,000 or more in funding from all federal funding sources, even those passed
through a state agency must submit:

e Certification Form.

e State Grants Compliance Reporting for Receipts of $25,000 or More.

e Program Activities and Accomplishments Reports.

e Level Il form and reporting instructions are available on the above website.
e Submit within nine months of the grantee's fiscal year end:

o Submitto DPS Internal Audit a single audit prepared and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted
Government Auditing Standards.

o Post the single audit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/).

o Make copies of the single audit available to the public. See paragraph 15 below for audits.

15. Audit Requirements

HSGP MOA 2021 7 0f 16


https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance
https://www.ncdps.gov/our-organization/emergency-management/emergency-management-grants/grants-management-compliance
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

16.

17.

18.

19.

For all federal grant programs, Subrecipient is responsible for obtaining audits in accordance with 2 CFR 200 Subpart
F.

Per 09 NCAC 03M .0205, a subrecipient that receives a combined $500,000 or more in North Carolina state
funding or federal funding passed through a state agency must within 9 months of the subrecipient's fiscal year
end submit to DPS Internal Audit (AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov) a single audit prepared and completed in
accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS): https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook.

Per 2 CFR 200.501, a subrecipient that receives a combined $750,000 or more in funding from all federal funding
sources, even those passed through a state agency, must have a single audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR
200.514 and GAGAS within 9 months of Subrecipient’s fiscal year end. Subrecipient must:

A. Post the single audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.514 and GAGAS to the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/.

B. Submit to DPS Internal Audit (AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov) a single audit prepared and completed in
accordance with GAGAS. This can, at the option of Subrecipient, be the same single audit submitted to the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse in paragraph 15.A. above.

C. Make copies of the single audit available to the public.

Subrecipient Monitoring
See Attachment 7 for subrecipient monitoring.

Points of Contact

To provide consistent and effective communication between Subrecipient and the NCEM, each party shall appoint a
Principal Representative(s) to serve as its central point of contact responsible for coordinating and implementing this
MOA. The NCEM contact shall be, Assistant Director - Administration, the NCEM Grants Management Branch Staff,
and the NCEM Field Branch Staff. The Subrecipient point of contact shall be the person designated by the Subrecipient.
All confidential information of either party disclosed to the other party in connection with the services provided
hereunder will be treated by the receiving party as confidential and restricted in its use to only those uses contemplated
by the terms of this MOA. Any information to be treated as confidential must be clearly marked as confidential prior
to transmittal to the other party. Neither party shall disclose to third parties, the other party's confidential information
without written authorization to do so from the other party. Specifically excluded from such confidential treatment
shall be information that:

A. As of the date of disclosure and/or delivery, is already known to the party receiving such information.
B. Is or becomes part of the public domain, through no fault of the receiving party.

C. Is lawfully disclosed to the receiving party by a third party who is not obligated to retain such information in
confidence.

D. Isindependently developed at the receiving party by someone not privy to the confidential information.

Public Records Access

While this information under federal control is subject to requests made pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA), 5 U.S.C. 8552 et. seq., all determinations concerning the release of information of this nature are made on a
case-by-case basis by the FEMA FOIA Office. This MOA may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Act,
Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

Contracting/Subcontracting

If Subrecipient contracts/subcontracts any or all purchases or services under this MOA, then Subrecipient agrees to
include in the contract/subcontract that the contractor/subcontractor is bound by the terms and conditions of this MOA.
Subrecipient and any contractor/subcontractor agree to include in the contract/subcontract that the
contractor/subcontractor shall hold NCEM harmless against all claims of whatever nature arising out of the
contractors/subcontractor's performance of work under this MOA. If Subrecipient contracts/subcontracts any or all
purchases or services required under this MOA, a copy of the executed contract/subcontract agreement must be
forwarded to NCEM. A contractual arrangement shall in no way relieve Subrecipient of its responsibilities to ensure
that all funds issued pursuant to this grant be administered in accordance with all state and federal requirements.
Subrecipient is bound by all special conditions of this grant award as set out in the grant application and the grant award

HSGP MOA 2021 8 of 16


mailto:AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov
https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

letter Subaward Agreement incorporated by reference herein, as well as all terms, conditions and restrictions of the
FY2021 HSGP NOFO referenced herein.

Situs
This MOA shall be governed by the laws of North Carolina and any claim for breach or enforcement shall be filed in
State Court in Wake County, North Carolina.

Antitrust Laws
All signatories of this MOA will comply with all applicable state and federal antitrust laws.

Other Provisions/Severability

Nothing in this MOA is intended to conflict with current federal, state, local, or tribal laws or regulations. If a term of
this MOA is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of
this MOA shall remain in full force and effect.

Entire Agreement

This MOA and any annexes, exhibits and amendments annexed hereto and any documents incorporated specifically by
reference represent the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral and written statements or
agreements.

Modification
This MOA may be amended only by written amendments duly executed by the Recipient and the Subrecipient.

Prohibition on purchasing certain telecommunications - John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for
Fiscal Year 2019 — Public Law 115-232, section 889 — 2 CFR 200.16

Effective August 13, 2020, FEMA recipients and subrecipients may not use any FEMA funds under open or new awards
to:

A. Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services
as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system.

B. Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical
technology of any system.

C. Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered telecommunications equipment or services as
a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

Replacement Equipment and Services

FEMA grant funding may be permitted to procure replacement equipment and services impacted by this prohibition.
Recipients and subrecipients should refer to applicable program guidance or contact the applicable program office to
determine if replacement equipment or services is eligible under that program.

Definitions
Per section 889(f)(2)-(3) of the FY 2019 NDAA, covered telecommunications equipment or services means:

A. Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

B. For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical
infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment
produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua
Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

C. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.

Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the
Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau
of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the People’s
Republic of China.

FEMA Policy #405-143-1

Refer to FEMA Policy #405-143-1 for specific guidance:
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-
telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf

HSGP MOA 2021 9 of 16


https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_prohibitions-expending-fema-award-funds-covered-telecommunications-equipment-services.pdf

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

26.

217.

28.

29.

Certification of eligibility--Under the Iran Divestment Act

Pursuant to G.S. 147-86.60, any company identified as engaging in investment activities in Iran, determined by
appearing on the Final Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S, 147-86.58, is ineligible to
contract with the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision of the state. The Iran Divestment Act of 2015,
G.S. 147-86.55 et seq. requires that each vendor, prior to contracting with the state certifies, and the undersigned on
behalf of the Vendor does hereby certify, to the following:

A. That the vendor is not identified on the Final Divestment List of entities that the State Treasurer has determined
engages in investment activities in Iran.

B. That the vendor shall not utilize on any contract with the state agency any subcontractor that is identified on the
Final Divestment List.

C. That the undersigned is authorized by the Vendor to make this Certification.

The State Treasurer’s Final Iran Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address:
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules.

Further, pursuant to G.S. 147-86.82, any company identified as boycotting Israel, determined by appearing on the Final
Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S 147-86.81, is ineligible to contract with the State of
North Carolina or any political subdivision of the State. The State Treasurer’s Final Companies Boycotting Israel List
can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address: https.//www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-
treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules.

Termination

The terms of this MOA, as modified with the consent of all parties, will remain in effect until February 28, 2024. Either
party upon thirty days advance written notice to the other party may terminate this MOA. Upon approval by DHS,
FEMA and the issuance of the Grant Adjustment Notice, if this MOA is extended, the termination date for the extension
will be the date listed in the applicable DHS, Grant Adjustment Notice, incorporated by reference herein. If DHS
suspends or terminates funding in accordance with 2 CFR 200.340 and the 2021 HSGP NOFO, incorporated by
reference herein, the Subrecipient shall reimburse NCEM for said property and/or expenses.

Scope of Work
Subrecipient shall implement the HSGP project summarized below and as described in the approved project application.
That application is hereby incorporated by reference into this MOA:

A. Scope of Work Summary
i.  Completed appropriate report forms with invoices and proof(s) of payment.
ii.  Audit findings and corrective action plans.
iii. Equipment inventory records with photo documentation of labeling.

B. Documentation to be provided throughout the Period of Performance of the grant:
i.  Quarterly project progress reports.
ii.  Subrecipient involved legal action that pertains to Planning, Organization, Training, Exercise and
Equipment purchased with HSGP.
iii. After-action report from exercise in accordance with Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program
Doctrine (HSEEP).
iv. Training course roster and description.
v. Any other documentation that would be pertinent.
vi. All legible and complete invoices and receipts detailing the expenses associated with the project. Receipts
must contain the following information:
Name and address of the vendor or establishment providing the product or service.
Vendor/Payee invoice number, account number, and any other unique meaningful identifying number
Date the product or service was provided.
Itemized description of all products or services.
Unit price of products or services (if applicable).
e Total amount charged.
vii. Proof of payment of expenses associated with the project.

Lobbying Prohibition

HSGP MOA 2021 10 of 16


https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

30.

The Subrecipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

A

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person or
employee of any state or federal agency, a member of the NC General Assembly, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-
awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representative of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by
section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty
of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - procurement
During the performance of this contract, the subrecipient, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter
referred to as the “subrecipient”) agrees as follows:

A

Compliance with Regulations: The subrecipient shall comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in
Federally-Assisted Programs of the 2 CFR 200.300 and North Carolina regulation as they may be amended from
time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a
part of this contract.

Nondiscrimination: The subrecipient, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not
discriminate on the grounds of race, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of subrecipients, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The subrecipient shall not participate either directly or indirectly
in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the
contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the subrecipient for work to be performed under a subcontract,
including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subrecipient or supplier shall be notified
by the subrecipient of the subrecipients obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin.

Information and Reports: The subrecipient shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or
directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of
information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the Research and Special Programs
Administration (RSPA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions.
Where any information required of a subrecipient is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to
furnish this information the subrecipient shall so certify to the Recipient or the Research and Special Programs
Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain such information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the subrecipients noncompliance with nondiscrimination provisions
of this contract, the Recipient shall impose contract sanctions as it or the Research and Special Programs
Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

i. Withholding of payments to the subrecipient under the contract until the subrecipient complies.

ii. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions:_The subrecipient shall include the provisions of every subcontract, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant

HSGP MOA 2021 11 of 16



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

31.

32.

thereto. The contract shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurements as the Recipient or the
Research and Special Programs Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance: Provide, however, that in the event a subrecipient becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontract or supplier as a result of such direction, the subrecipient may request
the Recipient to enter into such litigation to protect the of the Recipient and, in addition the subrecipient may request
the United States to enter such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - regulations

Subrecipient hereby agrees that as a condition to receiving any federal financial assistance from the DHS it will comply
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to
as the Act) and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300 , Nondiscrimination in FederallyAssisted
Programs of the DHS - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the
Regulations) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in accordance with the Act, Regulations, and other pertinent
directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, sex or national origin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise discrimination under any program or activity for which the
Subrecipient receives federal financial assistance from the DHS, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will
promptly take any measures necessary to effectuate this MOA. This assurance is required by subsection 21.7(a) (1) of
the Regulations. More specifically and without limiting the above general assurance, the Subrecipient hereby gives the
following specific assurance with respect to the project:

A. Agrees that each "program™ and each "facility" as defined in subsections 21.23(e) and 21.23(b) of the Regulations,
will be (with regard to a "program™) conducted, or will be (with regard to ("facility') operated in compliance with
all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, the Regulations.

B. Insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids for work or material subject to the Regulations and, in
adapted form in all proposals for negotiated agreements:

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and 2
CFR 200.300 issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in
regard to any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, minority, business enterprises will be
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on
the grounds of race, color, sex or national origin in consideration for an award.

C. Insert the clauses of this MOA in every contract subject to the Act and the Regulations.

D. This assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which federal financial assistance is extended to the
project.

E. Provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of DHS or the official to
whom he delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that is, other recipients, subrecipients,
contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of federal financial assistance
under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Act, the Regulations and this
assurance.

F. Agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the
Act, and Regulations, and this assurance.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal grants, loans,
contracts, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Recipient by
the DHS and is binding on it, other recipients, subrecipients, contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors in
interest and other participants in the DHS Program. The person or persons whose signatures appear below are
authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the recipients.

Assurance of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 — deeds, licenses, permits, leases
The following clauses shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by
Subrecipient executed in expending these grant funds:

A. The [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate] for itself, herself/himself, his/her heirs, personal
representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and
agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that in the event facilities are
constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the said property described in this [deed, license, lease, permit,

HSGP MOA 2021 12 of 16



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

etc.] for a purpose for which a DHS program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits, the Subrecipient [licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.] shall maintain and operate such
facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300 and as said
Regulations may be amended.

That in the event of breach of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate
the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same
as if said [licenses, lease, permit, etc.] had never been made or issued.

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient shall have the right to
re-enter said lands and facilities thereon, and the above-described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and
vest in and become the absolute property of Subrecipient and its assigns.

The following shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar agreements entered into by
Subrecipient:

A

The [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate] for herself/himself, his/her personal
representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and
agree [in case of deeds, and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that (1) no person on the grounds of
race, color, sex, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over or
under such land and the furnishing services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin
shall be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination,
and (3) that the [Subrecipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.] shall use the premises in compliance with all other
requirements imposed by or pursuant 2 CFR 200.300, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and
as said Regulations may be amended.

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient shall have the right to
terminate the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold
the same as if said [license, lease, permit, etc.] had never been made or issued.

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Subrecipient shall have the right to
re-enter said land and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and
vest in and become the absolute property of Subrecipient and its assigns.

Reverted clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order
to effectuate the purpose of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

33. Assurance of Compliance with Privacy Act
The Subrecipient agrees:

A.

D.

To comply with the provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. §552A and regulations adopted there under,
when performance under the program involves the design, development, or operation of any system or records on
individuals to be operated by the Subrecipient, its third-party subrecipients, contractors, or their employees to
accomplish a DHS function.

To notify DHS when the Subrecipient or any of its third-party contractors, subcontractors, subrecipients, or their
employees anticipate a system of records on behalf of DHS in order to implement the program, if such system
contains information about individuals name or other identifier assigned to the individual. A system of records
subject to the Act may not be used in the performance of this MOA until the necessary and applicable approval and
publication requirements have been met.

To include in every solicitation and in every third-party contract, sub-grant, and when the performance of work,
under that proposed third-party contract, sub-grant, or sub-agreement may involve the design, development, or
operation of a system of records on individuals to be operated under that third-party contract, sub grant, or to
accomplish a DHS function, a Privacy Act notification informing the third party contractor, or subrecipient, that it
will be required to design, develop, or operate a system of records on individuals to accomplish a DHS function
subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 8552a, and applicable DHS regulations, and that a violation of the Act
may involve the imposition of criminal penalties; and

To include the text of Sections 30 parts A through C in all third-party contracts, and sub grants under which work
for this MOA is performed or which is awarded pursuant to this MOA or which may involve the design,

HSGP MOA 2021 13 of 16



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

34.

35.

36.

37.

development, or operation of a system of records on behalf of the DHS.

Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Subrecipients Other Than Individuals)

This certification is required by the regulations implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. The regulations,
published in the January 31, 1989 Federal Register, require certification by subrecipient, prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. The certification set out below is a material representation of the act upon which
reliance will be placed when the agency determines to award the grant. False certification or violation of the certification
shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension of
debarment, (See 2 CFR 200.415). Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace

by:
A. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use

of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken
against employees for violation of such prohibition.

B. Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
ii. The Subrecipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
iii. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs.
iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

C. Require that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by
paragraph A. .

D. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (A) that, as a condition of employment under the
grant, the employee will:
i. Abide by the terms of the statement.
ii. Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later
than five days after such conviction.

E. Notifying the agency within ten days after receiving notice under subparagraph (D) (ii), from an employee or
otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

F. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under subparagraph (D)(ii), with respect to
any employee who is convicted:
i. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination.
ii. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program
approved for such purpose by federal, state, local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

G. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs
(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F).

Execution and Effective Date

This grant shall become effective upon return of this original Grant Award and MOA, properly executed on behalf of
the Subrecipient, to NCEM and will become binding upon execution of all parties to this MOA. The terms of this MOA
will become effective October 1, 2021. The last signature shall be that of Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary for the North
Carolina Department of Public Safety.

Term of this Agreement
This MOA shall be in effect from October 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024.

Statement of Assurances
Subrecipient must complete either Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Standard Form 424B Assurances — Non-
Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances — Construction Programs, or both, as applicable.

A. Subrecipients that only have construction work and do not have any non-construction work need only submit the
construction form (i.e., SF-424D) and not the non-construction form (i.e., SF-424B), and vice versa. However,
subrecipients who have both construction and non-construction work under this grant must submit both the
construction and non-construction forms.

B. Subrecipient must complete the appropriate form(s) and submit to NCEM Grants Management Branch
(ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov) upon execution of this MOA. Subrecipient must still complete the appropriate form(s)

HSGP MOA 2021 14 of 16


https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424b.pdf
https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424b.pdf
https://clintonwhitehouse5.archives.gov/media/pdf/sf424d.pdf
mailto:ncemgrants1@ncdps.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

even if certain assurances in the form may not directly apply to subrecipient’s specific program to ensure that all
possible situations are covered.

38. Attachments
All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated as if set out fully herein.

A. In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the language of this MOA and the attachments hereto,
the language of such attachments shall be controlling, but only to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.

B. This MOA includes the following attachments or documents incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein:

e Attachment 1 Scope of Work

e Attachment 2 Quarterly Report Form

e Attachment 3 Grant Funded Typed Resource Report

e Attachment 4 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions

e Attachment 5 Required Subrecipient File Documentation
e Attachment 6 NCEM Communications Branch Memo

e Attachment 7 Subrecipient Monitoring

HSGP MOA 2021 15 of 16


https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FB077 For Official Use Only

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each executed this MOA and the parties agree that this MOA will be
effective as of October 1, 2021.

N.C. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY WATAUGA COUNTY
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 184 HODGES GAP RD
1636 GOLD STAR DR BOONE, NC 28607-8736

RALEIGH, NC 27607

BYWNilliam (. Kay BY:
WILLIAM C. RAY, DIRECTOR

& DEPUTY HOMELAND SECURITY ADVISOR
NC EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

BY:
APPROVED AS TO PROCEDURES: BY:
BY: BY:

TARA WILLIAMS-BROWN, CONTROLLER
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

BY'W&M Polle

WILLIAM POLK, DEPUTY GENERAL COUNSEL
REVIEWED FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF

PUBLIC SAFETY, BY WILLIAM POLK,

DPS DEPUTY GENERAL COUNSEL, TO FULFILL THE
PURPOSES OF THE US DEPARTMENT OF
HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAMS

BY:
EDDIE M. BUFFALOE JR., SECRETARY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

THIS MOA WAS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE FOR THE FY 2021 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM ONLY AND IS SUBJECT TO
EXECUTION BY CASANDRA SKINNER HOEKSTRA, INTERIM SECRETARY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC SAFETY. THIS MOA SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR OTHER MOAS FOR THE HSGP FOR OTHER
FISCAL YEARS.

HSGP MOA 2021 16 of 16



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Attachment 1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

North Carolina Emergency Management

Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) Application
Fiscal Year 2021

All fields are mandatory. Responses should be limited to the spaces allocated. If additional space is
needed append the added text to this application. Clear, complete, and concise information is required

for the review panel to make fair and equitable decisions.

Contacts

Enter requested information for all contacts listed below.

Applicant
Applicant
This is the agency applying for grants.
Applying agency Department of Public Safety — State Highway Patrol - VIPER
Street address 512 North Salisbury Street
City Raleigh ZIP+4 27604
Email Tanya.Luter@ncshp.org
EIN/Tax ID number 30-0712287
DUNS number 078351786
SAM registered Yes Expiration date 3/11/2021
Is the agency applying as a nonprofit with 501(c)(3) status? No
Your name Tanya Luter
Are you authorized to apply for grants on behalf of the applying agency? | Yes

Field help
Point of contact

Grants point of contact

This is the focal point for any ongoing communications regarding the grants.

Name Tanya Luter
Agency DPS - State Highway Patrol - VIPER
Title IT Project Manager Il

Phone (work)

984-349-6913 | Phone (mobile)

| 919-268-1167

Street address 3318 Garner Road
City Raleigh | 2P+ 4 | 27610
Email Tanya.Luter@ncshp.org

Field help




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

MOA signatory

Grants MOA signatory

them in the project Additional information section.

This is the individual whose name appears on the signature page of the memorandum of agreement. While only
one signatory is required, space for an additional signatory is provided. If even more signatories are required, add

Name Click or tap here to enter text.
Agency Click or tap here to enter text.
Title Click or tap here to enter text.
Street address (not PO Box) Click or tap here to enter text.
City Click or tap here to enter text. ZIP +4 Click or tap here to enter text.
Email Click or tap here to enter text.
Name William Holt
Agency Watauga County Emergency Services
Title Emergency Services Director
Street address (not PO box) 184 Hodges Gap Road
City Boone |zp+4 | 28607
Email Will.Holt@watgov.org
Field help

Host local government (if project funds are being returned to the State)

Hosting county

This is the county that is agreeing to “turn back” awarded funds to the State.

Contact name Will Holt
County Watauga
Street address 184 Hodges Gap Road, Suite D
City Boone ZIP +4 28607-8635
Email Will.Holt@watgov.org
EIN/Tax ID number 56-6001816
DUNS number 089988216
SAM registered Yes | Expiration date | 1/16/2022
MOA signatory name John Welch | E-mail | Will.Holt@watgov.org
Field help
Projects

Complete information for up to three projects.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Project # 1
Enter requested information in the sections listed below.

Project information

General information
Enter information describing the project.

Title VIPER Microwave Monitoring System — Telenium MegaSystem

Description VIPER’s current monitoring system does not have the capability of
monitoring the microwave radios at our tower facilities. We are
seeking grant funds to purchase the Telenium MegaSystem. This
system would tie into our existing DPS monitoring system and
enable us to monitor our microwave radios and paths. With this
system, we would be able to map the microwave paths across the
network which is a critical element when troubleshooting network
outages. This system would enable us to detect issues with our
microwave radios and paths to proactively provide our statewide
users with continuous voice communications.

Goal Provide monitoring of our microwave network to ensure
continuous, statewide voice communications.

Classification Local non-DPR DPR number (if “DPR”) | Choose an item.
Does the project address a gap identified in THIRA? Choose an item.
Is the project deployable? Yes
Is the project shareable? Yes
Does the project contribute to the development or operation of the fusion center? No
If this project supports a previously awarded investment enter the following:

Year of award ‘ 2004-2020 Project name VIPER Award amount
Construction/renovation required No
Structural attachment required No

Core capabilities addressed
Select primary and secondary (if applicable) core capabilities addressed by this project.

Primary Operational Communications
Secondary Infrastructure Systems
Capabilities building Build (increase current capabilities)

Project timeline milestones
List the major project events and their completion dates.

Milestone Completion Date
MOA executed 4/2021

Grant budget setup 4/2021

Purchase all equipment 5/2021

Equipment delivery 7/2021

Equipment installation completed 9/2021

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap to enter a date.

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap to enter a date.

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap to enter a date.

Field help



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Planning/Training/Exercise costs
For each cost item select an activity area and then a description and the amount.
Activity area Description Cost
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Equipment costs
Enter equipment items and their costs into the table and then enter the total of the costs in the field below.
Description AEL # Quantity | Item cost Extended cost Shipping/ | Total cost
handling

Telenium MegaSystem 1 400,000.00
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Funding summary
For each activity area enter the amount funded and any funds allocated for Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention (LETP).
Activity area Funding amount Funds dedicated to LETP

Planning Enter amount. Enter amount.

Equipment 400,000.00 Enter amount.

Training Enter amount. Enter amount.

Exercise Enter amount. Enter amount.
Total funding 400,000.00 Enter total.

Field help
Additional information (if needed)
Project information

Budget
Planning/Training/Exercise costs
For each cost item select an activity area and then a description and the amount.
Activity area Description Cost
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Equipment costs
Enter equipment items and their costs into the table and then enter the total of the costs in the field below.



file:///C:/Users/jcox/Documents/North%20Carolina%20Emergency%20Management6%20temp.docx%23hsgp1_fundingamount
file:///C:/Users/jcox/Documents/North%20Carolina%20Emergency%20Management6%20temp.docx%23hsgp1_fundingamount

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Description AEL # Quantity | Item cost | Extended | Tax | Shipping/ | Total cost
cost handling
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.
Click or tap here to enter text. Enter cost.

Funding summary

For each activity area enter the amount funded and any funds allocated for Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention (LETP).

Activity area

Funding amount

Funds dedicated to LETP

Planning Enter amount. Enter amount.
Equipment Enter amount. Enter amount.
Training Enter amount. Enter amount.
Exercise Enter amount. Enter amount.
Total funding Enter total. Enter total.
Field help

Additional information (if needed)




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Certification

Certification

Review each certification item and check where appropriate.

| certify that:

This application includes complete and accurate information.

No project (supported through federal and/or matching funds) having the potential
to impact Environmental or Historical Preservation (EHP) can be started without
the prior approval of FEMA, including but not limited to communications towers,
physical security enhancements, new construction, and modifications to buildings,
structures and objects that are 50 years old or greater. Applicant must comply with
all conditions placed on the project as the result of the EHP review. Any change to
the approved project scope of work requires re-evaluation for compliance with
these EHP requirements. Any activities that have been initiated without the
necessary EHP review and approval will result in a non-compliance finding and will
not be eligible for FEMA funding.

In accordance with HSPD-5, the adoption of the National Incident Management
System (NIMS) is a requirement to receive federal preparedness assistance through
grants, contracts, and other activities. By submitting this grant application, you and
all participating entities are certifying that your locality/state agency is NIMS
compliant.

Submission of the project proposal does not guarantee funding.

Projects with funds allocated for equipment are required to check all equipment
purchases against the Allowable Equipment List.
(https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list).

Any changes made to this grant application after the submission deadline must be
approved by the NCEM Grants Branch Manager and an updated application must
be submitted.

If applying as a nonprofit agency you must have a 501(c)(3) status. A copy of that
certification must be submitted with your application.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Attachment 2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Quarterly Progress Report

FY 2021 HSGP

Subrecipient: NC State Highway Patrol
MOA #: 2140046
Grant award amount: S 400,000.00

Select a quarter and complete the funds-expended blanks, activities status, and submission information. Return the completed form to your
grants manager.

Quarter [ October — December (due January 15)
[ January — March (due April 15)

I April = June (due July 15)

[ July — September (due October 15)

Funds expended prior quarters | Click or tap here to enter text.

Activities

Metric

Current Status

Equipment

Dates, current status. For examples, list identified
needs, items in vendor negotiation, purchased, placed
in service, etc.

Planning

Dates, current status. For examples, list identified
needs, updates or revisions made to plans, or those to
be made.

Training

Dates, status of training. For example, list identified
needs, training planned, in progress, or conducted.
Attach agenda and roster.

Exercise

Dates, status of exercise. For example, list identified
needs, exercise(s) planned, in progress, or conducted.
Attach after action report.

Submitted by

Click or tap here to enter text.

Date

Click or tap here to enter text.

Forward the completed report to ncemgrantsl@ncdps.gov.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Attachment 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77
Attachment 3 - EXAMPLE Grant-Funded Typed Resource Report

Tool Instructions:

1. Each row should contain one piece of equipment purchased with or training held using grant funds for current reporting period. Only report purchases and trainings that have already been completed and
funds have been expended and drawn down.

2. Choose from the drop-down menu whether the line is for equipment or training, the NIMS Typed Discipline, NIMS Typed Resource and NIMS Type #, as published by FEMA's National Integration Center (NIC) that
the equipment supports, if NIMS Typed.

2a. If equipment or training is not NIMS Typed, choose "State/Local Other" in drop-down menu and provide State/Local typing or Community of Interest information in the Comments.

3. Choose whether the piece of equipment or training is to "Sustain Current" existing capabilities or will increase or "Add New" capability .

4. Choose the Core Capability or Capabilities that the Typed Resource supports. If more than one Core Capability is applicable, expand the columns by clicking the '+' above the 'Cost of Purchase' column to show
more 'Core Capability Supported' columns.

5. Enter the cost of the equipment or training.

6. Enter additional information in the Comments, including a brief description of whether the training or equipment purchased sustains existing capabilities; adds or improves an existing capability; or builds a new
capability from scratch. This Form Can be accessed at www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/28973?id=6432

SUBGRANTEE: GRANT#: PROJECT:
|Caro|ina County 2013-SS-00033-S01-13xx Generators & Generator Switches
NIMS Typed Discipline .
Equipment or or State/Local NIMS Typed Resource NIMS State/Local Typed Typed Equipment #of I?ersonnel # of Typed Sust.a.ln Current -
Trainin Discipline/Communit Supported Tye # Resource Supported purchased Trained for Teams Capability/Add New | Core Capability Supported | Cost of Purchase Comments
g P v PP P (if applicable) Typed Teams Trained Capability

of Interest Supported

This new PPE will increase a
Type Il to a Type | HazMat
Entry Team by fullfiling the
S 90,000.00 PPE requirements for a Type |
team. This investment
completes the upgrade of this
team.

WMD Liquid Splash- i
iquid Splasl N/A N/A Add W Environmental Response

Equipment Fire / Hazmat HazMat Entry Team N/A i
quip / v / Protective CPC / Health and Safety

This Training sustained policy
awareness for a State and two
Regional IMTs. This training

Incident maintains emergency staff

Training Incident Management 1] N/A N/A 55 Sustain Current  Operational Coordination $ 150,000.00
Management Team awareness that would have
otherwise been out-of-date

within 3 months of the

training.

w

The ALS Rescue Boat meets
State typing for Water
State / Local Other State / Ambulance. This equipment
(provide in Local Water Amkolance ALS Rescue Boat N/A N/A Add New Mass Care Services S 100,000.00 purchase adds a new
comments section) Other capability to the local EMS.
Teams will begin training to
complete the resource.

Public Health and

Equipment Medical

63 Responders were trained in
structural collapse to support
Mass Search and Rescue 23 Type Il USAR Teams. This
Training Search and Rescue US&R Task Forces Il N/A N/A 63 23 Sustain Current Operations S 75,000.00 training sustained current
levels of staffing in
anticipation of current staff
retiring.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Attachment 3 Grant-Funded Typed Resource Report

Tool Instructions:

1. Each row should contain one piece of equipment purchased with or training held using grant funds for current reporting period. Only report purchases and trainings that have already been completed and funds have been expended and drawn down.
2. Choose from the drop-down menu whether the line is for equipment or training, the NIMS Typed Discipline, NIMS Typed Resource and NIMS Type #, as published by FEMA's National Integration Center (NIC) that the equipment supports, if NIMS Typed.
2a. If equipment or training is not NIMS Typed, choose "State/Local Other" in drop-down menu and provide State/Local typing or Community of Interest information in the Comments.

3. Choose whether the piece of equipment or training is to "Sustain Current" existing capabilities or will increase or "Add New" capability .

4. Choose the Core Capability or Capabilities that the Typed Resource supports. If more than one Core Capability is applicable, expand the columns by clicking the '+' above the 'Cost of Purchase' column to show more 'Core Capability Supported' columns.
5. Enter the cost of the equipment or training.

6. Enter additional information in the Comments, including a brief description of whether the training or equipment purchased sustains existing capabilities; adds or improves an existing capability; or builds a new capability from scratch.

SUBGRANTEE: GRANT#: PROJECT:

NIMS Typed Discipline or
Equipment or State/Local NIMS Typed Resource NIMS State/Local Typed Resource Typed Equipment
Training Discipline/Community of Supported Type # Supported (if applicable) Purchased
Interest Supported

# of Personnel Sustain Current

. # of Typed . - Cost of
Trained for Typed Teams Trained Capability/Add New Core Capability Supported Comments

Purch:
Teams Capability urchase




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

Attachment 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

2021 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions

The 2021 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions apply to all new federal financial assistance awards
funded in FY 2021. These terms and conditions flow down to subrecipients, unless an award
term or condition specifically indicates otherwise. The United States has the right to seek
judicial enforcement of these obligations.

Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations and Certifications

DHS financial assistance recipients must complete either the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Standard Form 424B Assurances — Non-Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D
Assurances — Construction Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not
be applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office (DHS FAQO) may require
applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants are required to fill out the assurances applicable
to their program as instructed by the awarding agency. Please contact the DHS FAO if you have any
questions.

DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at
Title 2, Code of Federal Requlations (C.F.R.) Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002.

By accepting this agreement, the recipient and its executives, as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 170.315, certify that
the recipient’s policies are in accordance with OMB’s guidance located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, all applicable
federal laws, and relevant Executive guidance.

DHS Specific Acknowled | 2

All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree to
comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents,
information, facilities, and staff.

1. Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance investigations conducted by
DHS.

2. Recipients must give DHS access to, and the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and
other documents and sources of information related to the federal financial assistance award and
permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as
required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance.

3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate DHS officials
and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports.

4. Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation
requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in programguidance.

5. Recipients of federal financial assistance from DHS must complete the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation
Tool within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Notice of Award or, for State Administrative Agencies,
thirty (30) days from receipt of the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation Tool from DHS or its awarding
component agency. After the initial submission for the first award under which this term applies,
recipients are required to provide this information once every two (2) years if they have an active
award, not every time an award is made. Recipients should submit the completed tool, including
supporting materials, to_CivilRightsEvaluation@hg.dhs.gov. This tool clarifies the civil rights
obligations and related reporting requirements contained in the DHS Standard Terms and
Conditions. Subrecipients are not required to complete and submit this tool to DHS. The evaluation
tool can be found at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-civil-rights-evaluation-tool.

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions Version 11.4 1 February 17, 2021


http://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SF424B-V1.1.pdf
http://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SF424B-V1.1.pdf
http://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SF424D-V1.1.pdf
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=e02daaa551dec05bfb82ed9f85151c09&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=1&SID=8555d12a140ebf3beaca203a931f8ecd&ty=HTML&h=L&r=PART&n=pt2.1.3002
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=1&SID=8555d12a140ebf3beaca203a931f8ecd&ty=HTML&h=L&r=PART&n=pt2.1.3002
https://www.dhs.gov/office-civil-rights-and-civil-liberties
mailto:crcl@hq.dhs.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

2021 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions

The 2021 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions apply to all new federal financial assistance awards
funded in FY 2021. These terms and conditions flow down to subrecipients, unless an award
term or condition specifically indicates otherwise. The United States has the right to seek
judicial enforcement of these obligations.

Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations and Certifications

DHS financial assistance recipients must complete either the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Standard Form 424B Assurances — Non-Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D
Assurances — Construction Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not
be applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office (DHS FAQO) may require
applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants are required to fill out the assurances applicable
to their program as instructed by the awarding agency. Please contact the DHS FAO if you have any
questions.

DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at
Title 2, Code of Federal Requlations (C.F.R.) Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002.

By accepting this agreement, the recipient and its executives, as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 170.315, certify that
the recipient’s policies are in accordance with OMB’s guidance located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, all applicable
federal laws, and relevant Executive guidance.

DHS Specific Acknowled | 2

All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree to
comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents,
information, facilities, and staff.

1. Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance investigations conducted by
DHS.

2. Recipients must give DHS access to, and the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and
other documents and sources of information related to the federal financial assistance award and
permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as
required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance.

3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate DHS officials
and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports.

4. Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation
requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in programguidance.

5. Recipients of federal financial assistance from DHS must complete the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation
Tool within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Notice of Award or, for State Administrative Agencies,
thirty (30) days from receipt of the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation Tool from DHS or its awarding
component agency. After the initial submission for the first award under which this term applies,
recipients are required to provide this information once every two (2) years if they have an active
award, not every time an award is made. Recipients should submit the completed tool, including
supporting materials, to_CivilRightsEvaluation@hg.dhs.gov. This tool clarifies the civil rights
obligations and related reporting requirements contained in the DHS Standard Terms and
Conditions. Subrecipients are not required to complete and submit this tool to DHS. The evaluation
tool can be found at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-civil-rights-evaluation-tool.

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions Version 11.4 1 February 17, 2021


https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/form-instructions/sf-424b-instructions.html
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&amp;rct=j&amp;q&amp;esrc=s&amp;source=web&amp;cd=2&amp;cad=rja&amp;uact=8&amp;ved=2ahUKEwiym6qp1LDmAhWOg-AKHejrCywQFjABegQIBRAC&amp;url=https%3A%2F%2Fapply07.grants.gov%2Fapply%2Fforms%2Fsample%2FSF424B-V1.1.pdf&amp;usg=AOvVaw2Xkl7pxObD3mNs_b9omZzb
https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SF424D-V1.1.pdf
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/form-instructions/sf-424d-instructions.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=1191538219ec604d92e781425a4f1984&amp;mc=true&amp;node=pt2.1.3002&amp;rgn=div5
mailto:CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov
http://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-civil-rights
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-civil-rights-evaluation-tool

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5F51A0A0-CAB4-4FED-B4D6-8FE77A0FBO77

2021 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions

The DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties will consider, in its discretion, granting an extension if
the recipient identifies steps and a timeline for completing the tool. Recipients should request
extensions by emailing the request to CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov prior to expiration of the 30-day
deadline.

Standard T & Conditi

l. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS

Recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press
releases, requests for proposal, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or
programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds.

Il. Activities Conducted Abroad

Recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are
coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate
licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.

. Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Recipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub.L No.
94-135 (1975) (codified as amended at Title 42, U.S. Code, § 6101 et seq.), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

v, A . ith Disabilities Act of 1990
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles |, Il, and Ill of the Americans with
Disabilities Act, Pub. L. No. 101-336 (1990) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101—
12213), which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the
operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public
accommodation, and certain testing entities.

V. Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information
Recipients who collect personally identifiable information (PIl) are required to have a publicly
available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of the Pll they
collect. DHS defines PIl as any information that permits the identity of an individual to be
directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that
individual. Recipients may also find the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance
and Privacy Template as useful resources respectively.

V. Civil Rights Act of 1964 — Title VI
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the
United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program
or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations for the Act are
found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

VIIl.  Civil Rights Act of 1968
Recipients must comply with Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub. L. 90-284, as
amended through Pub. L. 113-4, which prohibits recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental,
financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (see 42 U.S.C.
§ 3601 et seq.), as implemented by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development at
24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that
new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units—i.e., the public and common use areas
and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in

DHS Standard Terms and Conditions Version 11.4 2 February 17, 2021



mailto:CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap76-sec6101.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap126.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap126.pdf
http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/privacy/privacy_pia_guidance_june2010.pdf
http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/privacy/privacy_pia_guidance_june2010.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/privacy_pia_template%202017.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/privacy_pia_template%202017.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap21-subchapV.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap21-subchapV.pdf
https://gov.ecfr.io/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=d222a5d9b3f4e07b56707352d167dc6a&amp;amp%3Bmc=true&amp;amp%3Bnode=pt6.1.21&amp;amp%3Brgn=div5
https://gov.ecfr.io/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=d3b77417b5af28b2b692e5b4f1b4de07&amp;amp%3Bmc=true&amp;amp%3Bnode=pt44.1.7&amp;amp%3Brgn=div5
http://legcounsel.house.gov/Comps/civil68.pdf
http://legcounsel.house.gov/Comps/civil68.pdf
http://legcounsel.house.gov/Comps/civil68.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap45.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2017-title42/pdf/USCODE-2017-title42-chap45.pdf
https://gov.ecfr.io/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=cc92a369ab8ed44c7be43094c5ca10d9&amp;amp%3Bmc=true&amp;amp%3Bnode=pt24.1.100&amp;amp%3Brgn=div5


























































AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Proposed Appalachian State University Tower Lease Renewal

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Appalachian State University is requesting the renewal of a lease for a tower, antenna, and small
building at the County’s Rich Mountain tower site for broadcasting of their radio station. ASU
continues to assure there would be no interference with County equipment at that site.

Property owned by the County may be leased or rented for such terms and upon such conditions
as the Board may determine, for up to ten (10) years. Property may be rented or leased only
pursuant to a resolution of the Board authorizing the execution of the lease or rental agreement
adopted at a regular Board meeting upon 10 days' public notice. Notice shall be given by
publication describing the property to be leased or rented, stating the annual rental or lease
payments, and announcing the Board's intent to authorize the lease or rental at its next regular
meeting.

The resolution was advertised and adopted previously in September 2020. Board approval,
contingent upon County Attorney review, is required to approve the lease and completion of PO-28
Lease proposal form.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.


















































Anita.Fogle
Highlight




Anita.Fogle
Highlight

Anita.Fogle
Highlight


AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Sheriff’s Salary

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Per Statute, prior to the filing period for the fall elections, the Board must establish the salary for
the Sheriff in order for filing fees to be determined as listed in the draft resolution. The entry level
salary on the County’s current pay plan is $81,919.

Board action is required to set the salary by adopting the proposed resolution.






AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

D. January Meeting Schedule
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Board has traditionally cancelled one of the meetings in December or January depending on
how the holidays have fallen. Due to where Christmas and New Year’s fall during the week, staff
would recommend the Board cancel the first meeting in January as there would be insufficient
time to prepare the Board packets. Historically, December and the first weeks in January have few
issues requiring Board action.

Staff seeks direction from the Board in cancelling the first meeting in January.






AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

E. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Watauga County Board of Adjustment

The Board of Adjustment term of Mr. Lonnie Webster expires in November. He does not wish to
be reappointed. The revised NC General Statute 160D no longer makes any mention of
appointments representing zoned areas of counties with partial-county zoning; therefore, it is not
necessary to consider where appointees live. The term will be for three years.

Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees

The Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees has recommended Ms. Lisa Cooper, Mr. Kent
Tarbutton, and Ms. Jan Winkler for reappointment as Board Trustees. Each of their terms would
be effective January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2024. These are first readings.

Vaya Board

1. Each Board of County Commissioners needs to vote on up to two (2) Regional Board
representatives during their November or December meeting, criteria (included in the Oct. 13
CCAB Resolution, and approved by DHHS on Oct. 27) as follows:

* Required: one of whom is an elected county commissioner,

* Optional: in addition to the required county commissioner member above, BOCCs may
additionally appoint a representative from their county that meets the following criteria: a county
commissioner, county manager, Department of Social Services director, public health director, or
law enforcement representative
2. County Manager submits Regional Board representative names to your Community Relations
Regional Director, and the Secretary to the Board, Christina Rose Carter
3. The Secretary to the Board and the Community Relations Regional Directors will schedule the
first Regional Board meetings for each of the four (4) regions, to occur in either December or no
later than January

* Regional Boards will appoint their two (2) Governing Board representatives
4. Goal: *New* Vaya Health Governing Board initial meeting in February 2022












AGENDA ITEM 13:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

F. Announcements
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Due to the ongoing COVID pandemic, the Annual County Christmas Luncheon has been
cancelled.



AGENDA ITEM 14:

PuBLIC COMMENT

AGENDA ITEM 15:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 16:

CLOSED SESSION

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)



	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the November 16, 2021, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Public Comment on Proposed Amendments to the Watauga County Planning & Development Ordinance
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed 2022 Schedule of Values
	Update on the New River Conservancy’s South Fork Project
	Proposed Amendments to the Watauga Medical Center Bylaws
	Coronavirus (COVID-19) Community Update
	Request to Purchase Mobile Radios
	Proposed Replacement of the Courthouse HVAC Controls System
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases

	Finance Matters
	A.  FY 2021 Carry Forward Purchase Orders
	B.  Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Acceptance of Communications Grant on Behalf of NC State Highway Patrol TSU/NCEM
	B.  Proposed Appalachian State University Tower Lease Renewal
	C.  Proposed Resolution Establishing the Sheriff's Salary
	D.  January Meeting Schedule
	E.  Boards and Commissions
	F.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	111621 Agenda.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM


	Coverage Options: Off
	Printed Name: 
	Title: 
	Date: 


